
Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: July 3,2012 rJ 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 ~ 

Division Director/Man.a.ger: Ann71.Bowlin, Division Director of Development 

Services ~U\. 
Department Head: Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the 
filing of an instrument to vacate two ten foot wide drainage easements and a 25 foot 
wide drainage easement located over and across portions of Lots 1 and 2 of Baldwin 
Subdivision and a portion of Lot 15 of Westlake Hiqhlands Section 5, Phase 2, 
Revised - Precinct Two. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
TNR staff has received a request to vacate two ten foot wide drainage easements 
and a 25 foot wide drainage easement located over and across portions of Lots 1 
and 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 
2, Revised. The easements are dedicated per their respective plats and are 
schematically shown on the face of the plats. The subject lots front on Camino Alto, 
a street maintained by Travis County. 

To be more specific, there is a ten foot wide drainage easement located along the 
south lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and along with a 25 foot wide 
drainage easement located along the common lot line of Lots 1 and 2 of the Baldwin 
Subdivision. There is also a ten foot wide drainage easement located along the 
common lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of the Westlake 
Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, Revised. These easements run adjacent to each 
other to form one 6,864 square foot easement. 

Professional engineer Robert C. Thompson has stated that: 

"These easements are apparantly not needed and are an encumbrance to the full 
use of the property (such as the use of the easement, or area within 25 feet of the 
easement, for a septic system). In support of the fact that they are not needed, 
we've attached an exhibit with the City's GIS topography (Exhibit B) confirming that 
the easement area is on the order of eight (8) feet above the low point in the street 
(the easement is not helpful, currently or in the future, to the drainage of the street) 
and that no significant run-off from any lot discharges to the easement. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Additionally, it can be seen from the GIS topography that the street currently 
discharges along the side of Lot 3 (next to Lot 2) in the Baldwin Subdivision. We've 
also attached photos (Exhibit C) showing views from the street further supporting 
these facts. Lastly, we can find no evidence of storm sewers in the area and 
therefore no evidence that there is a storm line in the easement. In fact, even the 
existing drainage 'from the cul-de-sac is overland, not in an inlet and storm sewer. 
Therefore, we are not sure why the easement was dedicated but we cannot find a 
reason for it being needed now or in the future." 

After review of the submitted request and recommendation, staff has no objections 
to this vacation request. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As of this memo staff has not received any inquiries in regards to this vacation 
request. The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation 
requests meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends the 
vacation. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
According to the request letter the subject drainage easements are not necessary 
and are a encumbrance to the 'full use of the property. These uses could be future 
construction and septic setbacks to drainage easements. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes and Sketch 
Request/Engineer's Letter 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin .., Division Director Development Services 854-7561 
John Ellis Cr'fZ/ Engineer Development Services 854-9805 

u 

cc.
 
Stacey Scheffel Program Manager TNR Permits 854-7565 

SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services - Baldwin Subdivision and Westlake Highlands Section 5, 
Phase 2, Revised 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Meeting Date: 07/03/2012, 9:00 AM, Voting Session 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Alan Miller, Planning and Budget Office, 854-9726 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County Executive 
Planning and Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 
permissions to continue: 

A. New application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for funds 
to evaluate the Travis County Criminal Court's indigent defense system; and 

B. New application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to 
receive United States Department of Justice one-time resources for a command 
and support vessel for the Lake Travis Patrol Unit of the Travis County Sheriff's 
Office. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Item A is a new application for funds to review the Travis County indigent defense 
system. It provides funds and operating expenses for 1 FTE from 07/01/12 to 03/31/14. 

Item B is a new application for a one-time grant to purchase a boat for the Lake Travis 
Patrol Unit of the Travis County Sheriff's Office. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
PBO recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Additional information is provided on each item's grant summary sheet. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None of the proposed grant actions require any additional funding through 
Commissioners Court. It is possible that there could be a future budget request to cover 
all or part of the anticipated $20,350 annual anticipated operating cost of the new 
command and support vessel. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Planning and Budget Office 
County Judge's Office 

Leslie Browder 
Cheryl Aker 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 5



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 7



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 9



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRee/854-4821 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning & Budget ~ 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health 
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund 
for payment of $1,166,906.80, for the period of June 15 to June 21,2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Director or Risk Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and concurs 
with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits Contract 
Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $1,166,906.80. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

See attached. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Employee Health Benefit Fund (526) - $1,166,906.80 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Dan Mansour, 854-9499 
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170 
Leroy Nellis, 854-9106 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI,Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 10



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 11



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR LAKE OAK 
ESTATES SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, RFQ 
NO. Q120134-JW, TO THE HIGHEST QUALIFIED FIRM, BROWN & GAY 
ENGINEERS, INC.  

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 This project is for the necessary improvements to bring those identified 
roads of Lake Oak Estates, located east of RM 620 and west of Lake 
Austin, up to minimum Travis County standards so that they can be 
accepted for maintenance.  Currently such roads do not meet Travis 
County standards and cannot be accepted into the Travis County 
maintained roadway system.  The lack of organized and routine 
maintenanace will only allow further deterioration of roadway conditions, 
decreasing the safety of the roads and jeopardizing access to homes. 

 On February 29, 2012, six (6) proposals were received for the design of 
Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road Improvements project, in which 
TNR staff evaluated and rated the qualifications of each firm using a 
standard rating form, as developed by TNR. As a result, a short-list 
consisting of the top three ranking firms was generated.  Each short-
listed firm was interviewed on April 5, 2012 to determine the highest 
qualified firm for completing the required work. TNR staff rated the firms 
based upon their responses to standardized questions as developed by 
TNR.  

 As a result, on April 24, 2012 the court authorized staff to commence 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 12



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

negotiations with Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc.   

 TNR and Purchasing has negotiated a scope and fee for the project and 
recommends awarding a Professional Services Agreement to the 
highest rated firm, Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc., in the amount of 
$109,321.10. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  $109,321.10    
Contract Type:   Professional Services Agreement  
Contract Period:  Through Completion 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 94  Responses Received: 6  
HUB Information: Vendor is 
not a HUB 

 % HUB Subcontractor: 33.5%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000172 
  Cost Center/Fund Center(s): 1490190001 
  Comments: 

 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE-TNR 

411 West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854·9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 

June 20, 2012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent 
~~e: i)sJ1.sYFt Purchasing Agent 

st~~~~~It:, tounty Executive-TNR 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road 
Improvements, RFQ # Q120134-JW 

The following information is for your use in preparing a PSA and agenda item for 
Commissioners Court action. Please contact Lee Turner at 512-854-7598 if you have any 
questions. 

Proposed Motion: 

Consider and take appropriate action on a request to approve a Professional Services Agreement 
for the design of the Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road Improvements, in Precinct Three. 

Summary and Staff Recommendations: 

Commissioners Court approved the use of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for the design of improvements to selected 
substandard roads in the Lake Oak Estates Subdivision in northwestern Travis County in June 
2011. TNR requested the Purchasing Office obtain professional consulting services for 
engineering design on February 3, 2012. Purchasing developed an RFQ for these services and on 
February 29, 2012 received proposals from six firms. TNR staff evaluated and rated the 
qualifications of each firm and on April 24, 2012 presented to the Commissioners Court a 
recommendation to begin negotiations with the highest qualified firm, determined to be Brown & 
Gay Engineers, Inc. (Brown & Gay). Since the approval by the Court, TNR has completed scope 
and fee negotiations and obtained approval from the Travis County CDBG office to proceed with 
the PSA. 

After approval of the PSA and issuance of a notice-to-proceed by the Purchasing Office, the 
consultant will have 210 calendar days to complete the engineering work. Due to the project 
being funded with CDBG funds, additional time might be required to obtain required approvals 
from HUD. The 210 calendar days does not include time for County staff to review submittals or 
designs from Brown & Gay. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TNR recommends approval of the PSA with Brown & Gay engineering and Consulting, Inc. for 
the Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road Improvements project. 

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact: 

This project was included in the CDBG Program Year 2011 project list that was approved by the 
Commissioners Court in June 2011. The total estimated project cost is approximately $675,000. 
HUD allows as much as 20% of the total project costs to be allocated for surveying and 
engineering services. HUD will provide 100% of the project funding through its grant program. 
TNR Engineering and Survey staff will be used to supplement Brown & Gay, if necessary, to 
insure the funding rules and guidelines are met. 

The cost of the PSA will be $109,321.10 (See attached fee summary). This amounts to 
approximately 160/0 of the total anticipated project cost for the six substandard roads scheduled to 
be improved. 

Funds Reservation Document Number: 3000000172 
Fund: 2054 
Grant: 800073 
Funds Center 1490190001 
Sponsored Program: 6000005 
Sponsored Class: 521040 

Issues and Opportunities: 

The required consultant services include all work necessary to provide plans, specifications, 
estimates and construction documents for improving the roadways. The improvements involve 
reconstructing the following roads to bring them into compliance with Chapter 84 of the Travis 
County Code, Unaccepted Substandard Roadway Specifications: 

•	 Cavalier Canyon Dr. - 1000 ft from No Name cross street to Covenant Canyon 
Trail 

•	 Bowling Lane - 1200 ft from No Name cross street to Covenant Canyon Trail 
•	 Holly Lane - 1600 ft from Meadowlark St to Covenant Canyon Trail 
•	 Meadowlark St - 300 ft North ofNightingale Lane 
•	 Covenant Canyon Trail- 600 ft from Holly Lane to Cavalier Canyon Dr. 
•	 Unnamed Side Streets - 500 ft between Holly Lane, Bowling Lane and Cavalier 

Canyon Dr. 

The reconstruction will typically be limited to matching the existing roadway geometry and 
making only those improvements needed to achieve an appropriate pavement structure, 
minimum safe lane width and stopping site distance, minimum roadside safety requirements, an 
effective roadway drainage system capable of conveying a 25-year storm event without 
overtopping the roadway, and appropriate signing and pavement markings, With the possible 
exception of slope, drainage, and site-distance easements, the project will be designed to be 
contained within existing dedicated right-of-way in order to minimize right-of-way acquisitions 
and maximize roadway improvements. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



The project will be funded through the Federal Community Development Block Grant program 
and must be completed in compliance with all requirements of the NEPA, 24 CFR Part 58.5 and 
58.6 and 24 CFR Part 51. The NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act) process requires 
analyses ofmultiple factors to determine their impact upon the environment and the community. 

Background: 

Lake Oak Estates is located east of RM 620 and west of Lake Austin, in northwestern Travis 
County. It is identified as a low to moderate-income area. The roads in the Lake Oak Estates area 
are low speed-low volume roads. The roads do not meet minimum Travis County standards, so 
they cannot be accepted into the Travis County maintained roadway system. Lack of an 
organized and routine roadway maintenance program will cause further deterioration of roadway 
conditions that will decrease the safety of the roads and jeopardize access to homes. This project 
will provide the improvements necessary to bring the roadways that serve low to moderate 
income households in Lake Oak Estates to minimum Travis County standards, so they can be 
accepted for maintenance by the County. 

This project will include modifications to roadways and intersections, and drainage structures 
and systems. The scope of services include utility relocation coordination, traffic maintenance 
plans, ensuring compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 
NEPA related Statutes and Authorities (24 CFR Part 58.5 and 58.6), and HUD environmental 
standards (24 CFR Part 51), public meetings and hearings, and construction administration 
services. 

Required Authorizations: 

CDBG Office: Christy Moffett 

County Attorney's Office: Chris Gilmore 

Planning & Budget Office: Jessica Rio 

Attachment: 

Brown & Gay Fee Summary 

Location Map 

CC: 

Steve Sun, P.E. TNR Public Works 

Lee Turner, P.E., TNR Public Works 

Donna Williams-Jones, TNR Financial Services 

Tawana Gardner, TNR Financial Services 

Jason Walker, Purchasing 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Funds Reservation 300000172
General Data

Document type NE

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 06/13/2012

Posting date 06/13/2012

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by GARDNET

Last changed by

Created on 06/13/2012

Last changed

More Data

Text SSR-LAKE OAK ESTATES-BROWN & GAY ENGINEERS

Reference

Overall Amount             109,321.10  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 521040

Fund 2054

Cost center

Vendor

Funds center 1490190001

G/L account 521040

Due on

Customer

Text DESIGN SERVICES

Amount           109,321.10  USD

Earmarked fund 300000172 printed on 06/21/2012/08:04:22 Side 1 of 1

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

BROWN & GAY ENGINEERS, INC.

FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

FOR

LAKE OAK ESTATES SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

CONTRACT NO. I2AEOI34JW

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA)

TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE
SECTION:

I EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT 2
2 BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 2
3 CONSTRUCTION COST 3
4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 5
5 PERIOD OF SERVICE 6
6 COORDINATION WITH COUNTY 6
7 WORK PRODUCT 8
8 REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT 9
9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 9
10 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 10
11 CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY 14
12 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 18
13 MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS 18
14 MISCELLANEOUS: 19

14.1 VENUE 19
14.2 SEVERABILITY 19
14.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 19
14.4 CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT 19
14.5 BIDDING EXEMPTION 20
14.6 NOTICE 20
14.7 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 21
14.8 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT 21
14.9 PURCHASE ORDER 22
14.10 PAYMENTS 22
14.11 PREVAILING WAGES 23
14.12 PROPERTY TAXES 23
14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION 23
14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 24
14.15 SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS 24

ENTERPRISES
14.16 FUNDING OUT 26
14.17 FUNDING 26
14.18 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT 26
14.19 MEDIATION 26
14.20 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT 27
14.21 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS 27
14.22 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE 27
14.23 GRATUITIES 28
14.24 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY TO RECEIVE FEDERAL FUNDS 29
14.25 LOBBYING CERTIFICATION 30
14.26 MONITORING 31
14.27 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, ATTACHMENTS, AND APPENDICES 31
14.28 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 32
14.29 CONFIDENTIALITY 32
14.30 AMENDMENT 32

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



14.31 ENTITY STATUS 32
14.32 SIGNATORY WARRANTY 32
14.33 PAYMENT OF TAXES 33
14.34 NON-DELINQUENCY ON FEDERAL DEBT 33
14.35 TAXES 33
14.36 PRECEDENCE 33
14.37 USE OF CDBG FUNDS 33
14.38 AUTOMATIC INCORPORATION OF CHANGES 34

IN HUD STATUTES AND REGULATIONS
14.39 INCORPORATION OF STANDARD CDBG TERMS AND CONDITIONS 34

15 DEFINITIONS 34
16 COMPLIANCE WITH “SECTION 3” 37
17 ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REPORTING AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS 38

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURE PAGE 40

EXHIBIT I COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 41
AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

EXHIBIT 2 HOURLY RATES 43
EXHIBIT 3 PROJECT SCHEDULE 44

ATTACHMENT I — PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 45
ATTACHMENT 2—UTILITY RELOCATION SERVICES 46
ATTACHMENT 3— CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 47

EXHIBIT 4 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 53
EXHIBIT 5 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 55
EXHIBIT 6 ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 58

ATTACHMENT I KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS LIST 59

EXHIBIT 7 61
ATTACHMENT 7-1: NOTICE OF INTENT TO SUBCONTRACT 62

WITH HUBS
ATTACHMENT 7-2: TRAVIS COUNTY HUB SUBCONTRACTOR 63

PAYMENT REPORT
ATTACHMENT 7-3: HUB SUBCONTRACTOR/SUBCONSULTANT 64

CHANGE FORM
EXHIBIT 8 CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, 65

INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS

EXHIBIT 9 DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 66
EXHIBIT 10 SECTION 3 REQUIREMENTS 68

ATTACHMENT 10-1: SECTION 3 INCOME LIMITS 70
ATTACHMENT 10-2: SECTION 3 LOCAL OPPORTUNITY PLAN 71
ATTACHMENT 10-3: SECTION 3 DEFINITIONS 72
ATTACHMENT 10-4: RESIDENT EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY DATA 74
ATTACHMENT 10-5: SECTION 3 REPORT 75
ATTACHMENT 10-6: SECTION 3 CERTIFICATION 77

EXHIBIT 11 INFORMATION REGARDING DUNS NUMBERS AND 79
CCR REGISTRATION AND CERTIFICATION
REGARDING REGISTRATION

EXHIBIT 12 CONTRACTOR ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION FORM 82

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



APPENDIX A SCOPE OF SERVICES 83
APPENDIX B CONSULTANT’S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT 96

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA)

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, a political
subdivision of the State of Texas, (the “COUNTY”) and Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc. (the
“CONSULTANT”) (this “Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the County has received certain funds from the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (“HUD”) under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974,
as amended, 42 USA. 5301 et.seq. (hereinafter referred to as “the Community Development Act”),
for utilization in connection with its community development block grant fund operating budget
(hereinafter referred to as “Grant Fund”) for community development services;

WHEREAS, the County wishes to engage the Consultant to carry out the Project;

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2254, Subchapter A, sets forth requirements
which the County must follow to enter into contracts for professional services as defined in Section
2254.002(2);

WHEREAS, this Agreement is supported, in whole or in part, by federal funds from HUD,
applicable federal regulations require the procurement of professional contract services using
qualifications-based selection procedures whereby each respondent’s qualifications are evaluated
and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable
compensation; (or procurement by non-competitive proposals as authorized by applicable federal law
and upon approval of the County);

WHEREAS, the professional services covered hereunder were procured in accordance with
applicable federal law and state law;

WHEREAS, the County desires to obtain professional engineering services, design-related
services, and other related services in connection with the Project;

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has the professional ability and expertise to fulfill the
requirements of the Project, and to counsel the COUNTY in the selection and analysis of cost-
effective alternatives; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is exempted from the bidding requirements of the County Purchasing
Act pursuant to Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Local Government Code as this is a contract for
professional services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein,
the amount and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT agree
as follows:

1

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

SECTION 1
EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT

1.1 The COUNTY agrees to contract with the CONSULTANT as an independent contractor and
the CONSULTANT agrees to perform professional architectural, landscape architectural, and
engineering services as described herein. As a condition to this contractual obligation, it is
specifically agreed that any disputes arising hereunder must be submitted to the County
Executive of the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department (the
“COUNTY EXECUTIVE”). Disputes pertaining to non-technical matters will be handled in
accordance with Paragraph 11.9 of this Agreement. The COUNTY EXECUTIVE has complete
authority for the purpose of resolving technical matters. In all other cases, the decision of the
Travis County Commissioners Court (the “Commissioners Court”) will be final and binding.

1.2 The COUNTY will provide the CONSULTANT convenient access to all existing plans, maps,
studies, reports, field notes, statistics, computations, and other data in its possession relative
to existing facilities and to the Project. The CONSULTANT must make copies of needed
information and promptly return all originals. Cost of such copies will be a reimbursable
expense. The CONSULTANT’s copies of the foregoing material must be returned to the
COUNTY upon completion of the Project, if the COUNTY EXECUTIVE so instructs the
CONSULTANT.

1.3 The COUNTY cannot guarantee the accuracy of all information which it provides to the
CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT may rely on professional sealed documents to the extent
that the original professional would have been held liable for the information contained therein,
in accordance with industry standard practice. Information provided in record or as-built
documents that is critical to the current design work should be field-verified by the
CONSULTANT in accordance with his professional judgment. The CONSULTANT may rely
on other project information provided by the COUNTY, such as program data or design criteria,
in accordance with industry standards, except as otherwise modified herein.

1.4 If the COUNTY EXECUTIVE observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in
the Work Product, as defined herein, the COUNTY EXECUTIVE will give prompt written notice
thereof to the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT must correct any such fault or defect at no
cost to the COUNTY.

SECTION 2
BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT

2.1 The CONSULTANT is responsible for the complete design and documentation of the work
described herein, and must prepare the Work Product, as defined herein, in a manner that will
be acceptable to the COUNTY EXECUTIVE. The CONSULTANT must also serve as the
COUNTY’S professional consultant in those phases of the Project to which this Agreement
applies and must consult with and give advice to the COUNTY during the performance of the
Project.

2.2 The CONSULTANT must perform the “Basic Services,” which mean:

2

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

2.2.1 all elements of labor, materials and equipment required for the Project, which must be
rendered to the satisfaction of the COUNTY EXECUTIVE and the Commissioners Court
and in accordance with the requirements, policies, and standard practices of Travis
County;

2.2.2 the detailed Scope of Services for the Project, set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto
and made a part hereof (the “Scope of Services”);

2.2.3 all requirements stated in the Qualifications Statement submitted by the CONSULTANT
in response to the RFQ for this Project, which is incorporated herein by reference as if
set out attached hereto as Appendix B and made a part hereof;

2.2.4 the Work Product, as defined herein, which the CONSULTANT must submit to the
COUNTY for review at regular intervals, as specified in the Project Schedule to be
provided by the CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and made a part hereof.

2.2.5 all aspects of the design requirements, any obligations under a HUD grant fund
agreement, and federal requirements pertinent to identifying and composing each item
of work in a construction contract.

2.3 The CONSULTANT must use all applicable codes in performing the Basic Services for the
Project. The standards, codes, specifications, or other technical, design or professional
requirements applying to this project must be the latest edition in effect on the date on which
this PSA is executed, unless the CONSULTANT and the COUNTY expressly agree otherwise.
The applicable codes for this project include, but are not limited to:

a. Uniform Building Code
b. National Fire Code
c. National Plumbing Code
d. National Mechanical Code
e. City of Austin Energy Guidelines/Codes, or applicable electric service provider’s

guidelines/codes
f. Travis County Design Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in

Subdivisions
g. AASHTO A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets
h. Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways

(current edition and revisions)
Texas Department of Transportation Construction Manual

j. City of Austin Drainage Criteria Manual (current version and updates)
k. Texas Department of Transportation’s Standard Specifications for Construction

of Highways, Streets and Bridges, 2004
National Environmental Policy Act (N EPA)

m. Architectural Barriers, Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation
n. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Regulations
o. Army Corps of Engineers Regulations
p. Edwards Aquifer Regulations
q. Texas Commission on Environmental Quality applicable regulations

3

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

2.4 As part of the Basic Services, the CONSULTANT must report to the County any suspected
hazardous materials in the areas of proposed construction. Hazardous materials assessment
and abatement work will be provided by the County under separate contract.

2.5 The performance of services under this Agreement by a subconsultant or subcontractor of the
CONSULTANT does not relieve the CONSULTANT of any responsibilities under this
Agreement.

SECTION 3
CONSTRUCTION COST

3.1 The construction cost is the total cost to the COUNTY of all elements of the Project designed
or specified by the CONSULTANT (the “Construction Cost”).

3.2 The Construction Cost includes the cost at current market rates, including a reasonable
allowance for overhead and profit, (i) of labor and materials and any equipment which has
been designed, specified, selected, or specially provided for by the CONSULTANT and (ii) of
permitting fees and other fees and charges required by the City of Austin or other
governmental authorities. It may be necessary to conduct a cost or price analysis in
accordance with 24 C.F.R. Section 85.36(f), and a fair and reasonable profit will be estimated
as a separate element in accordance with 85.36(f)(2). The Construction Cost does not include
the compensation of the CONSULTANT and other consultants.

3.3

3.3.1 Consistent with 24 C.F.R. Section 85.36(f), the Consultant shall prepare a detailed
estimate of Construction Costs which consists of a tabulated listing of construction bid
items, documenting the professional’s estimate of the Project’s total Construct Cost.
The listing includes the description, unit bid price and quantity of each bid item for the
major categories of work, such as roadway items, bridge items, items in other
categories as defined by the engineer, and all other different categories of work
included in the Project, such as work performed by the County [utility work, storm
sewer, sidewalk, landscaping, etc.], and work eligible or ineligible for federal funding.
Such cost estimates must be consistent with the federal cost principles set forth in 24
C.F.R. Section 85.22.

3.3.2 Subject to 24 C.F.R. Section 85.36(f) and 24 C.F.R. Section 85.22, detailed estimates of
the Construction Cost prepared by the Consultant represent the Consultant’s best
judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. The
Consultant may rely on RS MEANS current edition for unit prices. It is recognized,
however, that neither the Consultant nor the County has control over the cost of labor,
materials, or equipment, or control over contractor’s methods of determining bid prices,
or over competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions.

3.4 The CONSULTANT may include contingencies for design, bidding, and price escalation to
determine what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are to be
included in the Work Product (as defined in Section 7), and may include in the Work Product
alternate bids to adjust the Construction Cost to the fixed limit.

4

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

3.5
If the Project budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost is exceeded by the lowest responsible
bid, the COUNTY may:

3.5.1 give written approval of an increase in the Project budget or fixed limit,
3.5.2 authorize rebidding of the Project within a reasonable time,
3.5.3 if the Project is abandoned, terminate this Agreement, or
3.5.4 revise the scope of the Project to reduce the Construction Cost.

3.6 If the COUNTY chooses to proceed under clause 3.5.4 above, the CONSULTANT, without
additional compensation, must modify the documents that the CONSULTANT is responsible
for preparing under the Basic Services portion of this Professional Services Agreement, as
necessary to comply with the fixed limit.

3.7 The CONSULTANT must estimate the total project budget, including reimbursables,
contingencies, permit fees, and agency fees. The budget must not include (1) hazardous
material testing and removal if any is required or (2) any costs for furniture, fixtures and
equipment. As part of the services, the CONSULTANT must report any suspected occurrence
of hazardous materials in the areas of proposed remodeling to the County. Hazardous
materials abatement work will be provided by the County under separate contract.

SECTION 4
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

4.1 In consideration of the CONSULTANT’s performance of the Basic Services, the
CONSULTANT will receive the Basic Services compensation described in Exhibit 1, attached
hereto and made a part hereof. The Basic Services compensation will be paid in accordance
with the payment schedule set forth in Exhibit 1.

4.2 For the performance of services not specifically described in the Basic Services (the
“Additional Services”), the CONSULTANT will receive the Additional Services compensation
described in Exhibit 1.

4.3 County shall not be liable to Consultant for the payment of any unallowable costs described in
applicable provisions of 2 C.F.R. Part 225 (including Appendices A and B thereto) or other
applicable federal law.

4.4 Satisfactory progress of work shall be maintained as a condition of payment.

4.5 The compensation and payment obligations hereunder shall not apply to any work performed
before or after the contract period.

4.6 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s services as “Basic” or
“Additional” services under this Agreement, the decision of the COUNTY EXECUTIVE will be
final and binding on the CONSULTANT.

4.7 Compensation hereunder shall not include taxes paid by the Consultant. The Consultant may

5

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

obtain a tax exempt certificate from the Travis County Purchasing office.

SECTION 5
PERIOD OF SERVICE

5.1 The CONSULTANT must perform the professional services described herein, whether “Basic”
or “Additional” services, in accordance with the Project Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 3
and made a part hereof. Any such modification must include an update to the Project.

5.2 This Agreement will become effective on the Effective Date, as defined herein, and will remain
in full force and effect for the period required for the complete design of, construction contract
award for, and construction of the Project, including warranty periods and any extensions of
time as provided herein (the “Project Completion Date” or “End Date”), unless sooner
terminated as provided for herein.

5.3 If the performance by CONSULTANT or the COUNTY of either party’s obligations hereunder is
interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own conduct, whether such
occurrence be an act of God or the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign conduct, or
the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party hereto, then it will be excused from
such performance for such period of time as is reasonably necessary after such occurrence to
remedy the effects thereof. Upon the discovery of such an event, the party whose
performance is affected under this section must notify the other party, and a special meeting
will be called by the COUNTY EXECUTIVE to propose a program for a solution to the problem,
and if necessary, to establish an estimated period of time for resolving the problem without
extending the Project Completion Date. A written request for an extension of time, when
properly documented and justified by the circumstances, may be granted by the COUNTY
EXECUTIVE as long as the Project Completion Date is not extended.

SECTION 6
COORDINATION WITH COUNTY

6.1

6.1.1 The COUNTY EXECUTIVE will serve as the Project Manager and will act on behalf of
the COUNTY with respect to any and all services to be performed under this
Agreement. The County will monitor this Agreement to verify that the Consultant is
performing the professional services covered hereunder in compliance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and to ensure compliance with the type of work and
work schedule set forth in this Agreement, including Appendix A, and Exhibit 3. The
Project Manager will monitor the Consultant’s performance to ensure Consultant’s
compliance with applicable federal requirements. The Project Manager will also monitor
the Consultant’s performance to ensure that performance goals are being achieved to
ensure that the work progress is on schedule and that the Project remains within
budget, to identify any errors or omissions in Consultant’s performance of services
hereunder, and to coordinate with the Consultant to correct any errors or omissions in
such services; provided, however, nothing in this paragraph may be construed to relieve
the Consultant of its responsibility to discover and correct errors and omissions in its

6

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

services under this Agreement including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto. Such
monitoring will include periodic reviews of tasks against deliverables, as well as a
review of progress reports submitted by the Consultant against the tasks and
deliverables. The County will monitor each Program, function or activity covered
hereunder.

6.1.2 The COUNTY EXECUTIVE has complete authority to interpret and define the
COUNTY’s policies and decisions with respect to the CONSULTANT’s services. The
COUNTY EXECUTIVE may designate representatives to transmit instructions and
receive information. The Consultant’s services are also subject to applicable federal
regulations.

6.1.3 The County Executive may designate representatives to transmit instructions and
receive information.

6.1.4 The County Executive may visit the actual work site to inspect the work environment
and/or the administrative offices to review documents and other contract records.

6.2 The CONSULTANT must not commence work until the CONSULTANT has been thoroughly
briefed on the scope of the Project by the COUNTY EXECUTIVE. The CONSULTANT must
not commence work on the Project until receipt of a written notice to proceed issued by the
Travis County Purchasing Agent upon the recommendation of the COUNTY EXECUTIVE (the
“Notice to Proceed”). The CONSULTANT must not commence work on any phase of the
Project, as such phases are described in the Scope of Services, until receipt of a written Notice
to Proceed, which will be issued by the COUNTY EXECUTIVE.

6.3 At the beginning of each phase and before written authorization to proceed with that phase is
issued, the CONSULTANT must submit to the COUNTY EXECUTIVE the Project Schedule, as
updated and adjusted as required for each phase. In addition, the CONSULTANT must make
monthly progress reports with comparisons to the Project Schedule.

6.4 In addition to the CONSULTANT’s obligations described in the Scope of Services pertaining to
meetings, at intervals that must not exceed 30 days, the CONSULTANT must arrange for and
attend progress meetings with representatives of the COUNTY and, as applicable, any other
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project to explain and receive feedback on
the work-in-progress.

6.5 The CONSULTANT must furnish all available data and reasonable assistance necessary to
comply with established application, review, and approval processes for any permits, grants, or
planning advances required for the Project. The CONSULTANT must familiarize himself with
and comply with established application, review, and approval processes as necessary to
assure that reasonable compliance will cause no delay to the Project Schedule.

6.6 The CONSULTANT has the responsibility at all times under the terms of this Agreement for
advising the COUNTY whether in the CONSULTANT’s judgment it is feasible to proceed with
the Project given any constraints affecting the Project.

7

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

6.7 The CONSULTANT must cooperate and coordinate with the COUNTY’s staff and other
consultants and contractors as reasonable and necessary in performance of this Agreement
and as required by the COUNTY EXECUTIVE.

SECTION 7
WORK PRODUCT

7.1 The term “Work Product” means any reports, drawings, plans, specifications and any other
documents created, obtained or assembled in connection with performance of this Agreement
and with the services rendered in connection with the Project, including but not limited to any
and all deliverables for each phase of the Project as described in the Scope of Services.

7.2 The Work Product must be submitted by the CONSULTANT for each phase of the Project on
or before the dates specified in the Project Schedule provided by the CONSULTANT. Upon
receipt of the Work Product, the submission will be checked for completion. A “Complete”
submission means that all items listed, referenced and otherwise described in this Agreement
relating to that phase of the Project have been included.

7.3 If the submission is Complete, the COUNTY shall notify the CONSULTANT and the
COUNTY’s Technical Review Process, as defined herein, will begin. If the submission is
incomplete, the COUNTY will notify the CONSULTANT, who must perform such professional
services as are required to complete the Work Product for that phase and must resubmit it to
the COUNTY.

7.4 The COUNTY’s “Technical Review Process” means the County’s review of the Complete Work
Product for substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements included
in the Basic Services. If necessary, the Complete Work Product will be returned to the
CONSULTANT, who must perform any professional services required for such compliance and
resubmit the Complete Work Product to the COUNTY.

7.5 The process described in paragraph 7.3 and 7.4 will be repeated until the Work Product is
accepted by County. “Acceptance” means that in the COUNTY EXECUTIVE’s opinion
substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements has been achieved.

7.6 After Acceptance, the CONSULTANT must perform any required modifications, corrections,
redesigns, and additional work as requested by the COUNTY and any other governmental
entities having jurisdiction over the Project and as necessary to receive final approval by the
COUNTY EXECUTIVE. “Approval” means formal written recognition that the Work Product for
that phase is Complete and that compliance with the technical specifications and requirements
hasbeen fully achieved.

7.7 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s Work Product as
“Complete”, “Accepted”, or “Approved” under this Agreement, the decision of the COUNTY
EXECUTIVE will be final and binding on the CONSULTANT.

7.8 The Consultant must promptly advise the County in writing of events that have a significant
impact upon the progress of services provided hereunder including the following:

8

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

7.8.1 problems, delays, or adverse conditions which will materially affect or impair the
ability of the Consultant to meet Project goals. This disclosure must include a
statement of the action taken or contemplated, and any assistance needed to
resolve the situation; and

7.8.2 favorable developments which enable meeting time schedules and objectives
sooner or at less cost than anticipated or producing more beneficial results than
originally planned.

7.9 This Subsection 7.9 applies to all services performed under this Agreement. The County
and/or HUD representatives have the right to make site visits as warranted by program needs.
If any site visits are made on the premises of the Consultant or subconsultant or subcontractor,
Consultant must provide and require its subconsultants and subcontractors to provide all
reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the County
representatives and/or federal representatives in the performance of their duties.

SECTION 8
REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT

8.1 After Approval by the County of the Work Product for each Project phase, the CONSULTANT
must, without additional compensation, perform any professional services required as a result
of the CONSULTANT’s development of the Work Product which are found to be in error or
omission. In addition, if it is necessary to revise the Work Product in order to make the Project
constructible, the CONSULTANT must do so without additional compensation. However, after
Approval by County, any revisions, additions, or other modifications made at the COUNTY’s
request for the convenience of County, which involve extra services and expenses to the
CONSULTANT, will entitle the CONSULTANT to additional compensation for such extra
services and expenses and will be paid as Additional Services in accordance with Exhibits I
and 2. Written authorization for Additional Services must be obtained in advance in
accordance with Exhibit 1.

SECTION 9
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

9.1 “Reimbursable Expenses” means expenses in addition to the compensation for Basic Services
or Additional Services set forth in Exhibits I and 2, and shall include actual expenditures made
by the CONSULTANT in the interest of the Project for the expenses listed below:

9.1.1 Expense of reproductions, plotting of drawings, and/or other documents for other than
the in-house use of the CONSULTANT. Also allowable as reimbursables are postage,
delivery expenses, and mileage that are for the Work Product(s);

9.1.2 Expense of review and permitting fees as required by governmental authorities having
jurisdiction over the Project; and

9.1.3 The Sub-consultant Management Fee is a to be determined (TBD) percentage
negotiated between the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT, for the management of any
sub consultants utilized in the performance of the Basic Services or Additional Services

9

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

set forth in Exhibits I and 2. The COUNTY reserves the right to waive the Sub-
consultant Management Multiplier during negotiations.

9.2 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided herein, at no time may the
payments made for each of the above-listed categories of Reimbursable Expenses exceed
the amount shown in Exhibit 1.

9.3 To be eligible for reimbursement, the Consultant’s costs also must:

9.3.1 Be incurred in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement including the
Exhibits and Attachments hereto;

9.3.2 Be in accordance with Exhibits I and 2; and

9.3.3 Comply with cost principles set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 85.22 and 2 C.F.R. Part 225
(including Appendices A and B thereto).

9.4 Satisfactory progress of work shall be maintained as a condition of payment.

9.5 Any costs incurred before or after the contract period shall be ineligible for reimbursement. In
addition, those costs which are “unallowable costs” under 24 C.F.R. Section 85.22 or 2 C.F.R.
Part 225 (including Appendices A and B thereto) shall not be reimbursable hereunder. Costs
which may not be reimbursed under Section 85.22 or 2 C.F.R. Part 225 also shall not be
reimbursable hereunder.

9.6 Payment of Reimbursable Expenses will be made monthly upon presentation of the
CONSULTANT’s statement of services rendered or expenses incurred. Receipts for all
reimbursable expenses must be submitted with each invoice.

9.7 The COUNTY does not reimburse for sales taxes paid by the CONSULTANT. The
CONSULTANT may obtain a Tax Exempt Certificate from the Travis County Purchasing
Office.

9.8 If federal funds are used to reimburse costs incurred under this Agreement, the services and
all reimbursements will be subject to periodic review by HUD.

SECTION 10
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

10.1 SUSPENSION. The COUNTY may suspend performance of this Agreement at any time for
any reason without terminating this Agreement by giving CONSULTANT written Notice of
Suspension (a “Notice of Suspension”). The “Effective Date of Suspension” is the date on
which CONSULTANT receives the Notice of Suspension, and this date begins the Suspension
Period. Performance may be reinstated and this Agreement resumed in full force and effect
within 60 days of receipt by the CONSULTANT of written notice of reinstatement from the
COUNTY. Upon the Effective Date of Suspension, the CONSULTANT must follow the
procedures described below:

10

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

10.1.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Suspension, the CONSULTANT must, unless the Notice
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in
connection with the performance of this Agreement and must prepare a statement
detailing the services performed under this Agreement prior to the Effective Date of
Suspension. Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, and
specifications prepared under this Agreement prior to the Effective Date of Suspension,
including but not limited to the Work Product, must be prepared for possible delivery to
the COUNTY upon COUNTY’s request.

10.1.2 During the Suspension Period, the CONSULTANT may submit the above-referenced
statement to the COUNTY for payment of the approved services actually performed
under this Agreement, less previous payments.

10.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. The COUNTY reserves the right to terminate this
Agreement for reasons other than default by the CONSULTANT, including for any reason
deemed by Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from any
governmental law, ordinance, regulation, or court order, by delivering to the CONSULTANT a
written notice (a “Notice of Termination”), which will take effect on the tenth day following
receipt by the CONSULTANT (“Termination for Convenience”). Termination for Convenience
will not be made when termination is authorized under any other provisions of this Agreement
and Termination for Convenience will not be taken with the intention of awarding the same or
similar contract requirements to another source.

10.2.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination and prior to the effective date of termination, the
CONSULTANT must, unless the Notice of Termination otherwise directs, immediately
begin to phase out and discontinue all services in connection with the performance of
this Agreement and must proceed to promptly cancel all existing orders and contracts
insofar as such orders and contracts are chargeable to this Agreement. Within 30 days
after receipt of a Notice of Termination, the CONSULTANT must submit a statement
showing in detail the services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date
of termination.

10.2.2 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and other
work product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination
must be delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any final payment due under this
Agreement.

10.2.3 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY will pay the CONSULTANT for
approved services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less
previous payments.

10.2.4 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in paragraph
10.2.1 and to comply with the above stated conditions constitutes a waiver by the
CONSULTANT of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that CONSULTANT may
rightfully be entitled to for services performed under this Agreement.

10.3 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT. Failure by either party to this Agreement to perform its
obligations under this Agreement constitutes a breach of this Agreement; and, in the event of

11

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

such breach, the other party is entitled to pursue any and all rights and remedies allowed
under applicable federal or Texas law (statutory law, case law, rules or regulations). Without
limiting the County’s right to terminate under Subsection 10.5 hereof, either party may
terminate this Agreement for the failure of the other party to perform any provisions of this
Agreement, through no fault of the terminating party (“Termination for Default”) by delivering
written notice of termination (a “Notice of Termination for Default”) to the defaulting party. The
Notice of Termination for Default will take effect on the tenth day following receipt by the
defaulting party. In the event of Termination for Default, the COUNTY and its officials, agents
and representatives will not be liable for loss of any profits.

Termination by CONSULTANT:

10.3.1 In the event the CONSULTANT exercises its right to terminate for default by the
COUNTY, within thirty (30) days after receipt by the COUNTY of the
CONSULTANT’s Notice of Termination for Default, the CONSULTANT must submit a
statement detailing the services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective
date of termination.

10.3.2 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and
other work product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of
termination must be delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any final payment
due under this Agreement.

10.3.3 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY will pay the CONSULTANT for
approved services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less
previous payments.

10.3.4 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in
paragraph 10.3.1 and to comply with the above stated conditions constitutes a waiver
by the CONSULTANT of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that
CONSULTANT may rightfully be entitled to for services performed under this
Agreement.

Termination by COUNTY:

10.3.5 Upon receipt by the CONSULTANT of a Notice of Termination for Default and prior to
the effective date of termination, the CONSULTANT must, unless the Notice of
Termination otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all
services in connection with the performance of this Agreement and must proceed to
promptly cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and contracts
are chargeable to this Agreement. Within 30 days after receipt of a Notice of
Termination for Default, the CONSULTANT must submit a statement showing in
detail the services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of
termination.

10.3.6 Copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, specifications and
other work product prepared under this Agreement prior to the effective date of

12

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

termination must be delivered to the COUNTY as a precondition to any final payment
due under this Agreement.

10.3.7 Upon the above conditions being met, the COUNTY will pay the CONSULTANT for
approved services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less
previous payments.

10.3.8 Failure by the CONSULTANT to submit the required statement described in
paragraph 10.3.5 and to comply with the above stated conditions constitutes a waiver
by the CONSULTANT of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee that
CONSULTANT may rightfully be entitled to for services performed under this
Agreement.

10.4 All references to time in this Agreement will be measured in calendar days unless otherwise
specified.

10.5 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE.

10.5.1 The County may terminate this Agreement if the Consultant violates the provisions of
this Agreement covering the County Ethics Policy or the provisions of this Agreement
covering utilities.

10.5.2 In addition, the County may terminate this Agreement if the Consultant violates any
provision or requirement set forth in this Agreement, including the Exhibits and
Attachments hereto, concerning the Historically Underutilized Business Program.

10.5.3 Termination by the County for cause shall be effected in the manner prescribed in
Paragraph 10.3. hereof.

10.6 CONSULTANT’S DEFAULT. In accordance with 24 C.F.R § 85.43, the County may declare the
Consultant in default by written notice thereof to the Consultant, and terminate the whole or any
part of the Agreement for any of the following reasons:

10.6.1 Failure to begin the Scope of Services within the time or in the manner specified in
the Agreement;

10.6.2 Failure to perform the Scope of Services with sufficient labor, equipment, or material
to insure the completion of the specified work in accordance with the terms of the
Agreement;

10.6.3 Unsatisfactory performance of the Scope of Services;

10.6.4 Discontinuance of the Scope of Services without approval;

10.6.5 Failure to resume the Scope of Services, which has been discontinued, within a
reasonable time after notice to do so;

10.6.6 Insolvency or bankruptcy;

13

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

10.6.7 Assignment made for the benefit of creditors;

10.6.8 Failure or refusal within ten days after written notice by the Executive Manager or her
designee, to make payment or show cause why payment should not be made, for any
services rendered or provided in connection with the provision or performance of the
Scope of Services;

10.6.9 Failure to protect, to repair, or to make good any damage or injury to property;

10.6.10 Failure to obtain any permit, license or the cancellation or termination of any permit,
license or certification necessary or required to perform or carry out the Scope of
Services;

10.6.11 Material breach of any provision of the Agreement, which shall include but not be
limited to:

10.6.11.1 Failure to comply with any rules, regulations or provisions governing
CDBG Programs, or such statutes, regulations, executive orders, and
HUD guidelines, policies or directives as may become applicable at any
time; or

10.6.11.2 Ineffective or improper use of the CDBG funds provided by the County
pursuant to the Agreement; or

10.6.12 Misrepresentation or falsification of Consultant’s application, financial statements,
financial documents or other submissions;

10.6.13 Failure to provide or omitting any information required or requested by County
relating to the approval of the Agreement; or

10.6.14 Misrepresenting, falsifying or omitting information from reports or performance
requirements.

SECTION 11
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY

11.1 The CONSULTANT covenants to undertake no task in which a professional license or
certificate is required unless CONSULTANT or someone under CONSULTANT’s direction is
appropriately licensed. In the event such licensed individual’s license expires, is revoked, or is
canceled, the CONSULTANT must inform the COUNTY of such event within five working days.

11.2 The CONSULTANT is responsible for conformance with applicable federal and state laws,
COUNTY permitting requirements, and city ordinances currently in effect. Federal and state
laws, rules, regulations and codes include but are not limited to:

11.2.1 Workers Compensation laws;

11.2.2 Minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, including but not
14

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

limited to:
(A) Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended;
(B) Equal Pay Act of 1963, PL 88-38; and
(C) all applicable regulations implementing the above laws;

11.2.3 Non-discrimination statutes and regulations, including but not limited to:
(A) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended;
(B) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;
(C) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; and
(D) all applicable regulations implementing the above laws;

11.2.4 Licensing laws and regulations;

11.2.5 Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards (“TAS”) and ADA requirements, issued
by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, under the Architectural Barriers
Act, or other applicable Texas law;

11.2.6 Requirements under the Architectural Barriers Act and the Americans with Disabilities
Act set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 570.614;

11.2.7 All applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 1857h-4, Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1368),
and Executive Order 11738;

11.2.8 Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in
the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act (PUB L 94-163, 89 Stat. 871) codified at 42 U.S.C.A. Section 6321 et
seq.;

11.2.9 National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”), as amended, including Environmental
Protection Agency regulations (40 C.F.R. Part 15), applicable HUD regulations set forth
in 24 C.F.R. Parts 50 and 58 including authorities cited therein, and National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, including Federal Historic Preservation Regulations (36
C.F.R. Part 800), which require environmental clearance of federal aid projects; and in
connection with NEPA requirements, Consultant is responsible for the preparation of
NEPA documents required for environmental clearance of the Project covered
hereunder;

11.2.10 24 C.F.R. Section 5.105, including applicable authorities cited therein, as well as
applicable provisions of 24 C.F.R. Part 58, including Section 58.5 and applicable
authorities cited therein and Section 58.6 and applicable authorities cited therein; and

11.2.11 In addition to the applicable laws referenced above, Consultant must also adhere to
compliance requirements in other applicable CDBG regulations.

When required, the Consultant shall furnish the County and/or HUD with satisfactory proof of
its compliance herewith.

15

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

11.3 Acceptance and Approval of the Work Product by the COUNTY does not release the
CONSULTANT of any responsibility or liability for the accuracy and competency of
CONSULTANT’s designs, working drawings, specifications, or other documents or work
performed under this Agreement. Neither Acceptance nor Approval by the COUNTY
constitutes an assumption of responsibility or liability by the COUNTY for any defect, error, or
omission in the designs, working drawings, specifications, or other documents prepared by the
CONSULTANT.

11.4 Notwithstanding anything in this AGREEMENT to the contrary, the CONSULTANT must
perform all services and responsibilities required of the CONSULTANT under this Agreement
using at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent CONSULTANT in Travis
County, Texas, would use in similar circumstances. The CONSULTANT must perform the
duties set forth in this Agreement in a professional manner and nothing in this Agreement is to
be construed to relieve the CONSULTANT of this duty.

11.5 Consultant’s personnel assigned to perform services under this Agreement must possess all
the expertise, knowledge and experience needed to perform the work assigned to them. Any
employee of the CONSULTANT, who in the opinion of the COUNTY is incompetent or whose
conduct becomes detrimental to the work or coordination with the COUNTY, must upon the
COUNTY’s request be immediately removed from association with the Project. If the
Consultant removes key personnel from the Project, the Consultant must notify the County in
writing as soon as possible, but no later than three business days after such removal, and give
the County a reason for such removal. The County must be satisfied that the new key
personnel is qualified to provide services hereunder. If the County determines that the new
key personnel is not acceptable, the Consultant may not use that person in that capacity and
must replace him or her with an individual satisfactory to the County within 45 calendar days.

11.6 The CONSULTANT must place his Texas Professional CONSULTANT’s seal of endorsement
on all documents and engineering data furnished to the COUNTY, as required by law.

11.7 The CONSULTANT is an independent contractor under this Agreement. Neither the
CONSULTANT nor any officer, agent, servant, or employee of the CONSULTANT will be
classified as an employee or servant of COUNTY.

11.8 INDEMNIFICATION. THE CONSULTANT AGREES TO AND MUST INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND
AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, ACTIONS, SUITS, AND LIABILITY
OF ANY KIND, WHETHER MERITORIOUS OR NOT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES FOR INJURY
TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY ARISING IN
WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, NEGLIGENT ERROR, OR NEGLIGENT
OMISSION OF THE CONSULTANT OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
REPRESENTATIVES, OR SUBCONTRACTORS ON ACCOUNT OF, ARISING OR
RESULTING FROM, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS
AGREEMENT.

11.8.1 If any claim, or other action, that relates to the CONSULTANT’s performance under

16

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

this Agreement, including proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or
brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against the CONSULTANT,
the CONSULTANT must give written notice to County of the following information:

(a) the existence of the claim, or other action, within ten working days after being
notified of it;

(b) the name and address of the person, firm, corporation, or other entity that made
a claim, or that instituted any type of action or proceeding;

(c) the alleged basis of the claim, action, or proceeding;

(d) the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding
was instituted; and

(e) the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made.

11.8.2 Except as otherwise directed, the CONSULTANT must furnish to County copies of all
pertinent papers received by the CONSULTANT with respect to making these claims
or actions and all court pleadings related to the defense of these claims or actions.

11.9 DISPUTES AND APPEALS: The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the
issuance and administration of this contract. In case of a dispute, any document, notice, or
correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person,
is void unless otherwise stated in this contract. If the CONSULTANT does not agree with any
document, notice, or correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized
County person, the CONSULTANT must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent, or
other authorized County person, within ten calendar days after receipt of the document, notice,
or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. If the matter is not
resolved to the Consultant’s satisfaction, Consultant may submit a Notice of Appeal to the
Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent, if the Notice is submitted within ten
calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply. Consultant then has the right to be
heard by Commissioners Court.

11.10 OTHER DISPUTES. The Consultant shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual
and administrative issues arising out of any procurement made by the Consultant in support of
the services authorized under this Agreement.

11.11 CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE.

11.11.1 If required under Chapter 176 Texas Local Government Code, the Consultant must
file a completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in accordance with the requirements
of that Chapter. Within the applicable, authorized time period prescribed in Chapter 176,
Consultant must file the completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the Travis
County Clerk, Recording Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The
Consultant must file an updated, completed questionnaire with the Travis County Clerk
not later than the seventh business day after the date of an event that would make a
statement in the questionnaire incomplete or inaccurate. The Consultant should note

17

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

that the law requires that the County provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the
official Travis County Internet website. However, the law does not require that the
County release information which is excepted from disclosure under the Texas Public
Information Act.

11.11.2 As between County and Consultant, Consultant shall be solely responsible for the
preparation of its Conflict of Interest Questionnaire, the accuracy and completeness of
the contents contained therein and ensuring compliance with all applicable
requirements of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code.

11.11.3 This Agreement is also subject to the conflict of interest provisions set forth in 24
C.F.R. Section 85.36, Subsection (b), Paragraph (3).

SECTION 12
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

12.1 The CONSULTANT must furnish the County with Work Product as requested, whether or not
they are complete at the end of the Project, or upon suspension or termination of this Agreement,
as provided herein. The CONSULTANT has the right to retain copies of the Work Product for its
records.

12.2 The Work Product, and any other documents, including estimates, computer tapes, graphic
files, tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, field notes, and data prepared by
the CONSULTANT in performance of this Agreement, together with all intellectual property and
proprietary rights in and to all such documents, will upon creation become the sole and
exclusive property of the COUNTY and upon completion of the Project must be delivered to
the COUNTY in an organized fashion with the CONSULTANT retaining a copy at its own
expense. HUD reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use, and authorize others to use, for federal government purposes: (a) the
copyright and any work developed under this Agreement; and (b) any rights of copyright to
which County or Consultant purchases ownership with grant support.

12.3 Any reuse by the CONSULTANT of any such documents described in paragraphs 12.1 and
12.2 without the specific and prior written consent of the COUNTY or HUD will be at the
CONSULTANT’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to the COUNTY. Should this
Agreement be terminated prior to completion of the Project, the CONSULTANT is not liable for
the COUNTY or HUD’s use of partially completed designs, plans, or specifications on this
Project or any other Project.

12.4 The CONSULTANT is not responsible for any use or any modifications to the documents
described in paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2 performed by any other entity, without the specific
written consent of the CONSULTANT.

SECTION 13
MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS

13.1 The Consultant shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, other records
and other evidence directly pertaining to services provided under this Agreement, including the

18

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibits and Attachments hereto, and costs and expenses of such services. With respect to
accounting records, the Consultant shall maintain appropriate accounting records of costs,
expenses, and payrolls of employees working on the Project, including source documentation
such as cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records if applicable,
Contract award documents, and other documentation as required by County. Consultant shall
give, and shall require all Subcontractors to give, County, HUD, the Comptroller General of the
United States, other authorized Federal officials, and any of their duly authorized
representatives access to and the right to examine, free of charge, all books, accounts, records,
reports, files, and other papers, things, or property belonging to or in use by the Consultant
pertaining to this agreement at reasonable times and for reasonable periods for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. These rights to access shall
continue as long as the records are required to be retained by the Consultant, and for any
additional time period that the records are retained by the Consultant. These rights shall include
accessibility for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the rules, regulations, and
provisions stated herein.

The records described in Subsection 13.1 above shall be maintained during the contract period
and for four years after the last year the Project is reported in the CDBG Consolidated Annual
Performance Evaluation Report and after all other pending matters concerning this Agreement
have been closed, whichever is later. The County will notify the Consultant regarding the last
year the Project is reported in the CDBG Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report.

SECTION 14
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1 VENUE. This Agreement is governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of
the United States of America and the State of Texas, and all obligations under this Agreement
are performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out of this Agreement
will lie in the appropriate court of Travis County, Texas.

14.2 SEVERABILITY. If any portion or portions of this Agreement are ruled invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it will
remain valid and binding.

14.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT. The CONSULTANT agrees, during the
performance of the services under this Agreement, to comply with the equal opportunity in
employment provisions cited in Exhibit 4, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

14.4 CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT certifies that neither the
CONSULTANT nor any members of the CONSULTANT’s firm has:

14.4.1 Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee, or
other consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely
for the CONSULTANT) to solicit or secure the services provided by this Agreement.

19

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

14.4.2 Agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this Agreement, to employ or
retain the services of any firm or person other than in connection with carrying out the
services to be performed under this Agreement.

14.4.3 Paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than bona fide
employees working solely for the CONSULTANT) any fee, contribution, donation, or
consideration of any kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the
services provided under this Agreement.

14.4.4 The CONSULTANT further agrees that this certification may be furnished to any
local, state or federal governmental agencies in connection with this Agreement and

, , for those portions of the Project involving participation of agency grant funds and is
subject to all applicable state and federal, criminal and civil laws

14.5 BIDDING EXEMPTION. This Agreement is exempted from the bidding requirements of the
County Purchasing Act pursuant to Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Local Government Code as
this is a contract for professional services.

14.6 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by one party to
the other must be in writing and must be given and deemed to have been given immediately if
delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom the notice is
given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the
address set forth in this section.

The address of the COUNTY for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is
specifically directed otherwise, is:

COUNTY: Cyd V. Grimes (or successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin. Texas. 78767

with copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Steven M. Manilla, P.E. (or successor)
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources, County Executive
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

The address of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice
is specifically directed otherwise, is:

Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc.

7000 North Mopac, Suite 300

Austin, TX 78731

20

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

14.7 INSURANCE. The CONSULTANT agrees during the performance of the services under this
Agreement to comply with the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit 5, attached hereto
and made a part hereof.

14.8 FORFEITURE OF AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT will forfeit all benefits of this Agreement
and the COUNTY will retain all performance by the CONSULTANT and recover all
consideration, or the value of all consideration, paid to the CONSULTANT pursuant to this
Agreement if:

(i) The CONSULTANT was doing business at the time of submitting its Qualifications
Statement or had done business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date
on which its Qualifications Statement was due with one or more Key Contracting
Persons; or

(ii) The CONSULTANT does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on
which the Qualifications Statement that resulted in this Agreement and prior to full
performance of this Agreement.

14.8.1 “Was doing business” and “has done business” mean:

(a) Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for
purchase of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or
equitable; or

(b) Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the
aggregate in a calendar year;

(c) but does not include:

(1) any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at
a posted, published, or marked price available to the general public;

(2) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for
personal, family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing
guidelines applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar risks as
determined by the CONSULTANT in the ordinary course of its business; or

(3) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf
of the CONSULTANT if the CONSULTANT is a national or multinational
corporation by an agent, employee or other representative of the
CONSULTANT who does not know and is not in a position that he or she
should have known about the Contract.

14.8.2 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in listed in Attachment I
to Exhibit 6, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

21

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

14.9 PURCHASE ORDER. The CONSULTANT and its contractors, subcontractors and vendors
must provide goods and services using the purchase order method. A purchase order number
will be assigned by the designated representative of the Travis County Purchasing Office. The
CONSULTANT and its contractors, subcontractors and vendors must reference the Agreement
number and the purchase order number on all invoices to the Travis County Transportation
and Natural Resources Department. The terms and conditions contained elsewhere in this
Agreement prevail over different or contrary terms in any purchase order. All invoices
submitted by the CONSULTANT and its contractors, subcontractors, and vendors must
reference the purchase order number on the invoice. The COUNTY will not pay invoices that
are in excess of the amount authorized by the purchase order.

14.10 PAYMENTS. Each payment made hereunder must be allowable under Title 24 C.F.R. Section
85.22 and 2 C.F.R. Part 225 (including Appendices A and B thereto) and must be consistent
with Attachment A and Attachment B. Payments hereunder (including reimbursements) also
may be subject to applicable provisions of Appendices C, D and E to Title 2 C.F.R. Part 225.
Payment will be made by check or warrant by upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance of
items and submission of a correct and complete invoice to the address below for orders placed
by the Purchasing Agent, or as indicated on Purchase Orders placed by other authorized
COUNTY offices and/or departments.

Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

14.10.1 In order to be considered “correct and complete,” an invoice must include at least the
following information:
(a) Name, address, and telephone number of the CONSULTANT and similar

information in the event payment is to be made to a different address,
(b) County Agreement, Purchase Order, or Delivery Order number,
(c) Identification of items or services as outlined in the Agreement,
(d) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount, and
(e) Any additional payment information which may be called for by this Agreement.

The Consultant must also submit a statement with each invoice showing the percentage
completion of the work accomplished during the preceding 30-day period and the
percentage completion to date, as well as any additional written information requested
by the County to document the progress of the work.

14.10.2 DISBURSEMENTS TO PERSONS WITH OUTSTANDING DEBTS PROHIBITED.

(a) In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer
evidencing the indebtedness of the CONSULTANT to the State, the COUNTY
or a salary fund, a warrant may not be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the
CONSULTANT, or an agent or assignee of the CONSULTANT until:

(1) the County Treasurer notifies the CONSULTANT in writing that the debt
is outstanding; and

22

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

(2) the debt is paid.

(b) “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from
written agreements with the COUNTY.

(c) COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes the CONSULTANT to the
outstanding balance of debt for which notice is made under section 14.10.2(a)
above, if the notice includes a statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY
to the CONSULTANT may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt.

14.10.3 Payments made under this Agreement are subject to cost principles set forth in Title
24 C.F.R. Section 85.22 and 2 C.F.R. Part 225 (including Appendices A and B
thereto and applicable provisions of Appendices C, D and E). In addition, this
Agreement is subject to the Texas Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Texas
Government Code. In the event of a clear conflict between Title 24 C.F.R. Section
85.22 or Title 2 C.F.R. Part 225 (including Appendices A and B thereto) and the
Prompt Payment Act, applicable provisions of 24 C.F.R. Section 85.22 or 2 C.F.R.
Part 225, as the case may be, shall control.

14.10.4 Consultant agrees that payment to any of its contractors, subcontractors or
subconsultants shall be the responsibility of the Consultant. Consultant must pay its
contractors, subcontractors, and subconsultants for satisfactory performance of their
contracts no later than ten days from the Consultant’s receipt of payments from
County hereunder.

14.10.5 Consultant shall complete and submit forms, reports, information or data, as required
by the County for compliance with HUD regulations.

14.10.6 The Consultant is prohibited from placing a lien on County property. This prohibition
shall be placed in all design professional subcontracts.

14.10.7 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS. Accrual and payment of interest on
overdue payments is governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

14.11 PREVAILING WAGES. To the extent that 42 U.S.C.A. § 1437j applies to the project covered
hereunder and in accordance with Section 1437j, the Consultant shall pay not less than the
wages prevailing in the locality, as determined by HUD, to all architects, technical engineers,
draftsmen, and technicians.

14.12 PROPERTY TAXES. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the CONSULTANT is
delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of providing the services rendered
under this Agreement, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns any payments to be made for
services rendered hereunder to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of
said delinquent taxes. The terms of this Section apply only insofar as allowed by the Grant.

14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION. The CONSULTANT must provide the COUNTY with an
Internal Revenue Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that
is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a

23

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

statement of entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any funds are
payable under this Agreement.

14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of
the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT and their respective successors, executors,
administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONSULTANT may assign, sublet,
or transfer their interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent of
the other party hereto. IT IS EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGED THAT NO OFFICIAL,
EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY,
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND THIS AGREEMENT EXCEPT PURSUANT TO
SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT.

14.15 SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES.

14.15.1 The County will take all affirmative steps to assure that small and minority firms and
women’s business enterprises are used when possible.

14.15.2 These affirmative steps include:

i. placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business
enterprises on solicitation lists;

ii. assuring that small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises
are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

iii. dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or
quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and
women’s business enterprises;

iv. establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, which
encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and with women’s business
enterprises; and
v. using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the
Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

14.15.3 If subcontracts are to be let, the Consultant shall take the affirmative steps listed in
Subsection 14.15.2 above, to assure that small and minority firms and women’s
business enterprises are used when possible.

14.15.4

14.15.4.1 To assure that small and minority businesses and women’s business
enterprises are used when possible, the County’s Historically Underutilized Business
Program (HUB) will be followed. In consideration of award of this Agreement to the
CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT agrees to maintain a subconsultant relationship
with any HUB Subconsultants identified on the HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED
BUSINESS (HUB) DECLARATION Form provided with the CONSULTANT’s

24

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Qualifications Statement and attached hereto as Exhibit 7 and made a part hereof.
Identification of this relationship should be accomplished through completion of a Notice
of Intent (NOl) to Subcontract with HUBs Form, attached hereto as part of Exhibit 7 and
made a part hereof. The NOl form should be signed by both the Consultant and HUB
subconsultant, with a separate form submitted for each subconsultant, and provided to
the Purchasing Agent after Notification of Contract Award but before beginning
performance of the contract. The CONSULTANT must make good faith efforts to meet
or exceed the HUB participation goals in the Professional Services category for an
overall 15.8% for Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE) and an Overall 15.8% for
Woman-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE). (Sub-goals: 1.9% African-American,
9.0% Hispanic-American, 4.9% Native/Asian-American) of the Contract Sum. For
purposes of this Agreement, all references to “HUB” means “certified HUB.” To be
considered as a “certified HUB,” the subcontractor must have been certified by, and
hold a current and valid certification with, any of the following three agencies: (1) The
State of Texas; (2) the City of Austin; or (3) the Texas Unified Certification Program.
Minimum good faith efforts include, to the extent practical and consistent with standard
and prudent industry practices, the following:

(a) dividing the Work into the smallest feasible portions, to allow for maximum HUB
subcontractor participation;

(b) providing to HUBs that exhibited genuine interest in bidding on a subcontract
adequate information regarding the Project (i.e. plans, specifications, scope of
work, bonding and insurance requirements and a point of contact within
CONSULTANT’s organization);

(c) notifying, in writing, three or more HUBs for each scope of work, allowing no less
than five working days prior to bid submission, of the planned work to be
subcontracted;

(d) providing notice of opportunities to minority or women trade organizations or
development centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the
information to their members/participants.

14.15.4.2 The CONSULTANT may go beyond the good faith efforts listed above when
soliciting HUB subcontractors.

14.15.5 During the term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT is encouraged to
inform the COUNTY of any problems anticipated or encountered, and of any other
concerns, regarding the utilization of HUBs, M/WBEs and DBEs.

14.15.6 During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant is requested to provide
payment information on each HUB subconsultant using the attached HUB
Subcontractor Payment Report Form, attached hereto as part of Exhibit 7 and made a
part hereof. This form should be submitted with each invoice from which a HUB
subconsultant will be paid

14.15.7 No changes or substitutions shall be made for the HUB subconsultants unless such
substitution is also a HUB. Any substitution or changes must have prior approval of the
Travis County Purchasing Agent or HUB Coordinator. To request a change, the HUB
Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form, attached hereto as part of Exhibit 7, must

25

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

be completed and submitted to the County Purchasing Agent. Should there not be a
HUB firm available as a replacement, Consultant may request an exemption from this
requirement from the Purchasing Agent or HUB Coordinator. For additional information,
refer to the completion instructions on the forms.

14.15.8 The COUNTY encourages the fostering of mentor/protégé relationships through the
Community Mentor Protégé Initiative, and Travis County Purchasing Office HUB staff
will cooperate with and assist the CONSULTANT in initiating and/or developing such
efforts.

14.16 FUNDING OUT. Consultant acknowledges that this Agreement is supported, in whole or in
part, by federal funds provided through HUD and that HUD may reduce, adjust, or withdraw
funding for future Program years. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this
Agreement, in the event that either no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated, whether by
the County or HUD, for any payments due under this Agreement for the period covered by
such budget or appropriation, this Agreement will terminate without penalty to the COUNTY or
HUD.

14.17 FUNDING.

14.17.1 It is anticipated that funds for payment on this Agreement will come from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

14.17.2 THE COUNTY CANNOT GUARANTEE THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS, AND
ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT ONLY TO THE EXTENT THAT COUNTY
FUNDS AND FEDERAL FUNDS ARE MADE AVAILABLE. THERE IS RISK
INVOLVED WITH THIS AGREEMENT. THE COUNTY’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT ARE CONTINGENT UPON THE ACTUAL RECEIPT BY THE
COUNTY OF SUFFICIENT FEDERAL FUNDS. IF SUFFICIENT FEDERAL
FUNDS ARE NOT AVAILABLE, THE COUNTY WILL NOTIFY THE
CONSULTANT IN WRITING WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME AFTER SUCH
FACT IS DETERMINED. THE COUNTY WILL THEN TERMINATE THIS
AGREEMENT AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR THE FAILURE TO MAKE ANY
PAYMENT TO THE CONSULTANT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

14.18 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT. No payment, act, or omission by the COUNTY may constitute
or be construed as a waiver of any breach or default of the CONSULTANT which then exists or
may subsequently exist. All rights of the COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically
reserved and any payment, act or omission will not impair or prejudice any remedy or title to
the COUNTY under it. Any right or remedy in this Agreement will not preclude the exercise of
any other right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law, except as expressly
provided herein, nor will any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a
waiver of any other rights or remedies.

14.19 MEDIATION. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising
under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or a person
appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, for mediation as described in Section 154.023
of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. Unless both parties are satisfied with the

26

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the
dispute. All communications within the scope of the mediation must remain confidential as
described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless both
parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.

14.20 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT. If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a
cooperative association, the COUNTY may purchase equipment or supplies from the
association only if no member of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit
from the purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends distributed generally to
members of the association.

14.21 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS:

14.21.1 The CONSULTANT certifies that the CONSULTANT (i) is a duly qualified,
capable and otherwise bondable business entity, (ii) is not in receivership and
does not contemplate same, (iii) has not filed for bankruptcy, and is not currently
delinquent with respect to payment of property taxes within Travis County, and
(iv) is duly licensed in the State of Texas to perform the work described in this
Agreement.

14.21 .2 The CONSULTANT further represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents and licenses which may exist on materials used in this
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the COUNTY will not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the COUNTY will apply for
the duration of this Agreement. The CONSULTANT must indemnify the
COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees from all claims, losses, damages,
causes of action and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, and
court costs and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in
connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses of
copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement.

14.21 .3 The Consultant certifies that it presently has adequate personnel in its
employment for performance of the services required under this Agreement,
including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, or it will be able to obtain such
personnel from sources other than the County.

14.21 .4 The Consultant represents that it has no conflict of interest that would in any way
interfere with its or its employees’ performance of services with the County.

14.21 .5 The Consultant certifies by executing this Agreement that it has no financial or
other interest in the outcome or conclusions stated in the Environmental Impact
Statement or Environmental Assessment Statement prepared by Consultant
hereunder.

14.22 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE

14.22.1. The CONSULTANT must provide all services and activities required in a manner
that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the

27

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336
[S.933] as if the CONSULTANT were an entity bound to comply with these laws.
The CONSULTANT must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment based on race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age or
handicapped condition.

14.22.2 The Consultant shall comply with 42 U.S.C.A Section 53.09 and 24 C.F.R. Parts
1, 6, and 8 as they relate to no discrimination Executive Order 11246 titled
“Equal Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 (41
C.F.R. 60) and all other applicable federal, state and local Equal Employment
Opportunity and affirmative action rules, regulations and laws.

14.22.3 The Consultant, with regard to work performed by it during the Agreement, shall
not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin
or disability.

14.22.4 In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the
Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement
of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor, subconsultant
or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations
under this Agreement and the regulations relevant to non-discrimination on the
grounds of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, age or disability.

14.22.5 The Consultant shall provide all information and reports necessary for the County
to comply with applicable HUD regulations and shall permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information, and facilities as may be
determined by HUD or the County to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
HUD regulations.

14.22.6 Where any information required of the Consultant is in the exclusive possession
of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, Consultant shall so
certify to the County and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the
information.

14.22.7 In the event of Consultant’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination
provisions of this Agreement, the County shall impose such contract sanctions as
the County may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
(a) Withholding of payments to the Consultant under this Agreement until the
Consultant complies; and/or

(b) Cancellation, termination, or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in
part.

14.23 GRATUITIES. The COUNTY may terminate this Agreement if it is found that gratuities of any
kind, including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by the CONSULTANT or any agent
or representative of the CONSULTANT, to any County Official or employee with a view toward
securing favorable treatment with respect to this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated
by the COUNTY pursuant to this provision, the COUNTY will be entitled, in addition to any

28

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

other rights and remedies, to recover from the CONSULTANT at least three times the cost
incurred by CONSULTANT in providing the gratuities.

14.24 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY TO RECEIVE FEDERAL FUNDS/DEBARMENT
CERTIFICATIONS.

14.24.1 Certification under this Section provides for compliance with certification
requirements. under CFR Part 84.13(a) and 24 CFR Part 24. The Consultant, by
signing this Contract, hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by and Federal
department or agency.

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph 14.24.1(b); and

(d) have not within a three year period preceding this Contract had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

14.24.2 Where Consultant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section,
Consultant shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this
Contract for County’s consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such
may result in termination of this Contract by County.

14.24.3 In the event of placement on the list between the time of bid/proposal/statement
submission and time of contract award, the bidder/proposer shall immediately notify the
Travis County Purchasing Agent.

14.24.4 Placement of Consultant on the federal government’s list of suspended,
ineligible, or debarred contractors, false certification, or failure to notify County as
required in this Subsection may result in County’s termination of this Agreement for
default.

14.24.5 The Consultant shall provide to the County the certification in Exhibit 8
(Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion
for Covered Contracts) in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 24 (Debarment and
Suspension).

29

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

14.25 LOBBYING CERTIFICATION.

14.25.1 The limitation on Use of Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal
Contracting and Financial Transactions Act, 31 U.S.C. Section 1352, provides in part
that no appropriated funds may be expended by recipient of a federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person, including the Consultant, for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress in connection
with any of the following covered federal actions:

14.25.1.1 the awarding of any federal grant;
14.25.1.2 the making of any federal grant;
14.25.1.3 the making of any federal loan;
14.25.1.4 the entering into of any cooperative agreement; and
14.25.1.5 the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any

federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

14.25.2 In executing this Agreement, the signatory certifies to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief that:

14.25.2.1 No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf
of the parties to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and any extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

14.25.2.2 If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement,
it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

14.25.3 The Consultant must include the language in 14.25.2 in all contracts and
subcontracts between Consultant and its contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants,
agents, or representatives.

14.25.4 The Consultant and its contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants, as
applicable, shall complete the Disclosure Form titled “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying” set forth in Appendix B to Title 24 C.F.R. Part 87 in accordance with its
instructions, as set forth in Exhibit 9 hereto. In accordance with 24 C.F.R. Section
87.110(c), the Consultant, and its contractors, subcontractors, or subconsultants, as
applicable, shall file a Disclosure Form at the end of each calendar quarter in which
there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affects the accuracy of
the information contained in any Disclosure Form previously filed by such person. This

30

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Agreement is subject to the provisions set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 87.110 and all
other applicable provisions of 24 C.F.R. Part 87. Any person who fails to file or amend
the Disclosure Form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each such failure.

14.26 MONITORING. The COUNTY reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of the
CONSULTANT’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement and of the adequacy and
timeliness of the CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement. After each monitoring
visit, the COUNTY will provide the CONSULTANT with a written report of the monitor’s
findings. If the report notes deficiencies in the CONSULTANT’s performances under the terms
of this Agreement, it will include requirements and deadlines for the correction of those
deficiencies by the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT must take action specified in the
monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified.

14.27 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, ATTACHMENTS, AND APPENDICES.

14.27.1 All of the exhibits, attachments, and appendices referred to in this Agreement
are incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein.

14.27.2 The following are the exhibits, attachments, and appendices to this Agreement:

(a) Exhibit I Compensation for Professional Services and Schedule of Payments
(b) Exhibit 2: Hourly Rates.
(c) Exhibit 3: Project Schedule

Attachment 1: Performance Schedule:
Attachment 2: Utility Relocation Services
Attachment 3 Construction Administration Services

(d) Exhibit 4: Equal Opportunity in Employment
(e) Exhibit 5: Insurance Requirements
(f) Exhibit 6: Ethics Affidavit

Attachment 1: Key Contracting Persons List
(g) Exhibit 7:

Attachment 7-1: Notice of Intent to Subcontract with HUB
Attachment 7-2: Travis County HUB Subcontractor Payment Report
Attachment 7-3: H U B Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form

(h) Exhibit 8: Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts

(i) Exhibit 9: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
(j) Exhibit 10: Section 3 Requirements

Attachment 10-1: Section 3 Income Limits
Attachment 10-2: Section 3 Local Opportunity Plan
Attachment 10-3: Section 3 Definitions
Attachment 10-4: Resident Employment Opportunity Data
Attachment 10-5: Section 3 Report
Attachment 10-6: Section 3 Certification

(k) Exhibit 11 Information Regarding DUNS Numbers and CCR Registration
and Certification Regarding Registration

(I) Exhibit 12 Contractor Eligibility Verification Form
31

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

(m) Appendix A: Scope of Services
(n) Appendix B: Consultant’s Qualifications Statement

14.28 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement
between the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either oral or written.

14.29 CONFIDENTIALITY

14.29.1 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. Notwithstanding any provision in this
Agreement to the contrary, disclosure of any information obtained by the County or any of
its officials, employees, agents or representatives in connection with this Agreement is
subject to the provisions of the Texas Public Information Act and all legal authorities
relating thereto, including but not limited to opinions, decisions and letter rulings issued by
the Texas Attorney’s General Office.

14.29.2 In addition, information obtained by the County or any of its officials, employees,
agents or representatives in connection with this Agreement shall be subject to
applicable federal statutes and regulations covering the confidentiality of or access to
such information.

14.30 AMENDMENT

14.30.1 This Agreement may not be altered, amended, or modified except by instrument in
writing signed by both parties. It is acknowledged by Consultant that NO OFFICIAL,
EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF TRAVIS COUNTY HAS ANY
AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO MODIFY OR AMEND THIS
AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE
GRANTED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

14.30.2 Consultant shall submit all requests for changes to this Agreement, including the Exhibits
and Attachments hereto, to the Travis County Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent
shall present Consultant’s requests to the Travis County Commissioners Court for
consideration.

14.30.3 Any amendments to this Agreement that require federal approval must be submitted to a
designated HUD representative for review and approval.

14.31 ENTITY STATUS. By my signature below, I certify that the CONSULTANT is a Texas
corporation, duly incorporated under Texas law and doing business in the State of Texas.

14.32 SIGNATORY WARRANTY.

14.32.1 The undersigned signatory for the Consultant hereby represents and warrants that
he or she is an officer of the organization for which he or she has executed this
Agreement and that he or she has full and complete authority to enter into this
Agreement on behalf of the firm and to bind the firm validly and legally to all the terms,
conditions and provisions of this Agreement. These representations and warranties are

32

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

not made for the purpose of inducing the County to enter into this Agreement.

14.32.2 If the Consultant later alleges that such person lacks such authority, County may
immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or liability, other than payments
owing Consultant for approved services actually performed hereunder.

14.33 PAYMENT OF TAXES. The Consultant agrees that neither federal, state, nor local income tax,
nor payroll tax of any kind will be withheld or paid by County on behalf of the Consultant or the
employees of the Consultant. The Consultant will not be treated as an employee with respect to
the services performed under the terms and conditions of this Agreement for federal and state
tax purposes. The Consultant accepts responsibility for the compensation of employees,
withholding and payment of taxes, and for purchasing any liability, disability or health insurance
coverage deemed necessary by the Consultant. The Consultant understands that the
Consultant is responsible to pay, according to the law, the Consultant’s income tax. If the
Consultant is not a corporation, the Consultant further understands that the Consultant may be
liable for self-employment (social security) tax, to be paid by the Consultant according to law.

14.34 NON-DELINQUENCY ON FEDERAL DEBT. The Consultant, by signing this Agreement,
certifies that the Consultant is not delinquent in repaying any Federal debt; has not been
judged to be in default on a Federal Debt; and has not had a judgment lien filed against it as a
result of a Federal debt. Failure to maintain this status will result in action by County up to and
including termination of this Contract.

14.35 TAXES. County will not be liable for state, local or federal excise taxes of the Consultant. The
Consultant must be able to demonstrate on-site compliance with the Federal Tax Reform Act of
1986, Section 1706, amending Section 530 of the Revenue Act of 1978, dealing with issuance of
Form W-2’s to common law employees. The Consultant is responsible for both Federal and
State Unemployment insurance coverage and standard Workers’ Compensation Insurance
coverage. The Consultant must comply with all Federal and State tax laws and withholding
requirements. County will not be liable to the Consultant or its employees for any
Unemployment or Workers’ Compensation coverage, or Federal or State withholding
requirements.

14.36 PRECEDENCE. All services and activities provided by the Consultant related to Grant
requirements and paid for by County utilizing Grant Funds (“Grant Activities”) shall be specifically
subject to terms of this Contract as well as those of the Grant. Should there be a conflict
between requirements which cannot be reconciled, as determined by County, then the terms
shall be given precedence as follows:

1. Grant
2. Contract

14.37 USE OF CDBG FUNDS. The Consultant agrees that the CDBG funds for this Agreement shall
be used solely and exclusively for the eligible CDBG activity described in the Scope of
Services attached hereto as Attachment C.

33

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

14.38 AUTOMATIC INCORPORATION OF CHANGES IN HUD STATUTES AND REGULATIONS.
Any change in any statute or in any regulation governing the CDBG Program shall be
automatically incorporated into the Agreement. The County, through the Department, will notify
the Consultant of any changes in law or regulation that materially affects this Agreement within
30 calendar days of receipt or finalization of such change in law and regulation. The
Consultant agrees to implement any change in law or regulation as directed by the County.
The County will maintain any such changes with the original Agreement.

14.39 INCORPORATION OF STANDARD CDBG TERMS AND CONDITIONS. The statutory and
regulatory provisions governing the CDBG Program shall apply to the use of the funds
provided under the Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 15
DEFINITIONS

15.1 GENERAL

Unless the context of the Agreement clearly indicates otherwise or unless re-defined for
purposes of a particular section or paragraph of the Agreement, the terms listed below are
defined as follows:

15.1.1 “Agreement” means this Agreement between Travis County, through its Health
and Human ServicesNeterans Services Department, and the Consultant to
perform the work, project, activity or service described in the Scope of Services
attached hereto as Appendix A.

15.1.2 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

15.1.3 “Contract Funds” means all funds paid by County to Consultant pursuant to
Section 14.10 and other applicable provisions of this Agreement. Contract Funds
may include Grant Funds as indicated by the context of the provision.

15.1.4 “Contract Term” means the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term, or any other
period of time designated in writing as a Contract Term by the Parties.

15.1.5 “County Auditor” means Susan Spataro, the Travis County Auditor, or her
successor.

15.1.6 “County Department,” “Department” and/or “TCHHSVS” mean Travis County
Health, Human Services and Veterans’ Services.

15.1.7 “County Purchasing Agent” means Cyd Grimes, the Travis County Purchasing
Agent, or her successor.

15.1.8 “Day(s)” means calendar day(s), unless otherwise specifically noted in any
individual provision.

15.1.9 “County Executive” means Steven M. Manilla of Travis County Transportation and
Natural Resources Department, or his successor or designated representative.

34

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

15.1.10 “Fiscal Year” means the County Fiscal Year, which is that twelve-month time
period between any October 1 and the next following September 30.

15.1.11 “General Revenue Funds” or “Current Revenue Fund” means funds in the County
treasury that are not grant funds and are available in the current fiscal year if
appropriated by commissioners court for purposes of funding this agreement.

15.1.12 “Grant” means any contract or agreement governing use of funds from any funding
source (other than County General Revenue Funds) from which funds will be paid
for services provided under this Contract.

15.1.13 “Grant Funds” means funds available which:

(a) have as their source a grant from a federal, state or local governmental
agency, private or non-profit organization; and

(b) have an identified purpose, performance expectations, and financial
standards that control expenditures; and

(c) have specific requirements for their use depending on whether the parties
to a Grant funded agreement are contractors, subcontractors, recipients,
sub-recipients, grantees or sub-grantees, as determined by the original
Grant, accounting practices, and applicable federal and state regulations;

OR

(d) are provided from a source which the County has determined to be a Grant
source.

15.1.14 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

(a) Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money valuable thing which is
worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or
for purchase of any property or property interest, either real or personal,
either legal or equitable; or

(b) Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or
having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than
$250 in the aggregate in a calendar year;

(c) but does not include:

(1) any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting
Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the
general public;

(2) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for
personal, family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing

35

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

guidelines applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar risks
as determined by Consultant in the ordinary course of its business;
or

(3) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on
behalf of Consultant if Consultant is a national or multinational
corporation by an agent, employee or other representative of
Consultant who does not know and is not in a position that he or she
should have known about the Contract.

15.1.15 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Attachment I to
the Affidavit attached to this Agreement and marked Exhibit 6.

15.1.16 “Median Family Income” means the guidelines established by the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development for the Austin-Round Rock
Metropolitan Statistical Area for the current Fiscal Year.

15.1.17 “Parties” and “Party” means the County and/or Consultant.

15.1.18 “Poverty Income Guidelines” means the guidelines established by the United
States Office of Health and Human Services for the current Fiscal Year of the
federal government.

15.1.19 “Reimbursable,” “Allowable,” or “Authorized Costs” means those amounts
authorized to be paid by County to Consultant under the terms of this Contract with
Contract Funds.

15.1.20 “Subcontract” means any agreement between Consultant and another party to
fulfill, either directly or indirectly, any of the requirements of this Contract, in whole
or in part. “Subcontract” includes contracts, subcontracts, recipient agreements,
sub-recipient agreements, grantee agreements and/or subgrantee agreements.

15.1.21 “Subcontractor” means any party providing services required under this Contract to
an Eligible Client or to Consultant under an agreement between Consultant and
that party, including contractor(s), subcontractor(s), and other subrecipient(s) of
Consultant, and any party or parties providing services for Consultant which will be
paid for using Contract Funds committed by County to be paid to Consultant under
this Contract. Subcontractor includes contractors, subcontractors, recipients, sub
recipients, grantees and sub-grantees.

15.1.22 “Business concern” means a business entity formed in accordance with State
law, and which is licensed under State, county or municipal law to engage in the
type of business activity for which it was formed.

15.1.23 “CDBG Program” means the Community Development Block Grant Program
established pursuant to the Housing and Community Development Act, P.L. 93-
383, 42 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq., as amended.

36

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

15.1.24 “Employment opportunities generated by section 3 covered assistance” means
all employment opportunities generated by the expenditure of section 3 covered
public and Indian housing assistance (i.e., operating assistance, development
assistance and modernization assistance, as described in 135.3(a)(1)). With
respect to section 3 covered housing and community development assistance,
this term means all employment opportunities arising in connection with section 3
covered projects (as described in 135.3(a)(2)), including management and
administrative jobs connected with the section 3 covered project. Management
and administrative jobs include architectural, engineering or related professional
services required to prepare plans, drawings, specifications, or work write-ups;
and jobs directly related to administrative support of these activities, e.g.,
construction manager, relocation specialist, payroll clerk, etc.

15.1.25 “Section 3” means section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968,
as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u).

15.1.26 “Section 3 business concern” means a business concern, as defined in this
section-

(1) That is 51 percent or more owned by section 3 residents; or

(2) Whose permanent, full-time employees include persons, at least 30 percent
of whom are currently section 3 residents, or within three years of the date of first
employment with the business concern were section 3 residents; or

(3) That provides evidence of a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25
percent of the dollar award of all subcontracts to be awarded to business
concerns that meet the qualifications set forth in paragraphs (1) or (2) in this
definition of “section 3 business concern.”

15.1.27 “Section 3 clause” means the contract provisions set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 135.38.

15.1.28 “Section 3 covered activity” means any activity which is funded by section 3.

SECTION 16
COMPLIANCE WITH “SECTION 3”

16.1 COMPLIANCE. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968, as
amended, and as implemented by the regulations set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 135, and all
applicable rules and orders issued hereunder prior to the execution of this Contract, shall be a
condition of the Federal financial assistance provided under this Contract and binding upon the
County, the Consultant and any of the Consultant’s Subcontractor(s). Failure to fulfill these
requirements shall subject County, Consultant and Subcontractor(s), the successors and
assigns, to those sanctions specified by the Contract through which Federal assistance is
provided. Consultant certifies and agrees that no contractual or other disability exists that would
prevent compliance with these requirements.

16.2 The Consultant acknowledges that it has read Exhibit 10 and understands its “Section 3”
37

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

obligations.

16.3 The Consultant shall certify its compliance with Section 3 by executing the Section 3 Certification
set forth in Attachment 10-6 of Exhibit 10.

SECTION 17
ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REPORTING AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

17.1 The County is a primary grant recipient of federal funds, and the Consultant is one of the
County’s first-tier grant recipients. Accordingly, the Consultant and each of its
subcontractors must comply with all requirements established by the Office of Management
and Budget concerning the Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System, the
Central Contractor Registration Database, and the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (“FFATA” or “Transparency Act”), P.L. 109-282, as amended by section
6202(a) of P.L. 110-252,, including appendix A to Part 25 of the Financial Assistance Use of
Universal Identifier and central Contractor Registration, 75 Fed. Reg. 55672 (Sept 14,
2010)(to be codified at 2 CFR part 25) and Appendix A to Part 170 of the Requirements for
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Implementation, 75 Fed. Reg. 55663
(Sept 14, 2010) (to be codified at 2 CFR part 170).

17.2 Definitions. As used in this Section:

17.2.1 Award means any grant, cooperative agreement or loan made with CDBG
funds. Award official means a person with the authority to enter into, administer, and/or
terminate financial assistance awards and make related determinations and findings.

17.2.2 Recipient means any entity other than an individual that receives funds in the
form of a grant, cooperative agreement or loan directly from the Federal Government.

17.2.3 Subaward means-

(1) A legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any portion
of the substantive project or program for which the recipient received this
award and that the recipient awards to an eligible subrecipient;

(2) The term does not include the recipient’s procurement of property and
services needed to carry out the project or program.

(3) A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an
agreement that the recipient or a subrecipient considers a contract.

17.2.4 Subcontract means a legal instrument used by a recipient for procurement of
property and services needed to carry out the project or program.

17.2.5 Subrecipient or Subawardee means a non-Federal entity that expends Federal
awards received from a pass-through entity to carry out a Federal program, but does
not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such a program. A subrecipient may
also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency.

38

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

17.3 The following is required to be included in this Agreement in order to implement the recipient
reporting and registration requirements in the Transparency Act:

(a)This award requires the recipient to complete projects or activities which are funded
by the Federal Government and to report on use of federal funds provided through this
award. Information from these reports will be made available to the public.
(b) Recipients and their first-tier recipients must maintain current registrations in the
Central Contractor Registration (http://www.ccr.gov) at all times during which they have
active federal awards funded. A Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System
(DUNS) Number (http://www.dnb.com) is one of the requirements for registration in the
Central Contractor Registration.
(c) The recipient shall report any information required by the Transparency Act to the
County upon request.

17.4 The Consultant acknowledges that the County also has monitoring and reporting
responsibilities pursuant to the Transparency Act. The Consultant must provide the County
with sufficient data for the County to comply with the County’s Transparency Act reporting
requirements.

17.5 The Consultant acknowledges that it has read Exhibit 11 (Information Regarding DUNS
Numbers and CCR Registration and Certification Regarding Registration).

17.6 The Consultant certifies that it has registered with the Data Universal Numbering System
operated by Dun and Bradstreet and has obtained a DUNS number and that its DUNS
Number listed on the Signature Page of the Agreement is true and correct. The Consultant
further certifies that it has completed the contractor information in the Contractor Certification
Registration (CCR) database and is currently registered in the CCR database. The
Consultant also certifies that it understands its reporting responsibilities under the
Transparency Act and that it will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal statutes
and rules. In addition, the Consultant must provide the certification in Exhibit 11 and require
each of its subcontractors to provide the certification in Exhibit 11.

17.7 The Consultant shall not perform any work, allow a subcontractor to perform any work, or
enter into any contractual agreement with a subcontractor until:
(a) the Consultant and any of its potential subcontractors have completed the information

in the Contractor Eligibility Verification Form which is attached hereto as Exhibit 12,
and

(b) the Travis County Purchasing Office provides written notice to the Consultant and the
subcontractor they have been cleared to perform the work.

17.8 All information provided by the Consultant and any of its subcontractors pursuant to the
reporting requirements of the Transparency Act is available to the public for viewing and/or
copying and may be posted on the following websites: www.co.travis.tx.us, and
www. USAspending .gov.

39

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

As a duly authorized representative of the CONSULTANT, I acknowledge by my signature below that
I have read and understand the above paragraphs and that the CONSULTANT has the obligation to
ensure compliance with its provisions by itself and its employees, agents, and representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the later date
set forth below (the “Effective Date”).

CONSULTANT

(e.y DUNS # >E ) Z)
By: LL. (2 ZLL CCR # Lf 3 2

Printed Name: Win.
Title: V
Authorized Representative

Date:

_________________

The Texas Board of Professional Engineers, 1917 South IH -35 South, Austin, Texas 78741, phone:
(512) 440-7723, has jurisdiction over individuals licensed under the Texas Engineering Practice Act,
Chapter 1001 of the Occupations Code.

TRAVIS COUNTY:

By:

_________________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

______________________________

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED:

By:

_________________________

Susan Spataro
Travis County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

_________________________

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Travis County Purchasing Agent

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

__________________________

Assistant County Attorney

40

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT I
COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

SECTION I — COMPENSATION FOR BASIC SERVICES

1.1 The fixed fee for the performance of the Basic Services is the sum of ($101,832.85).

1.1.1 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided herein, the
payments for the phases described below is:

(i) Desicin Phase: includes:
Work Product 1- 30% Design $49,675.49

Work Product 2 — 60% Design $30,465.32

Work Product 3 — 90% Design $12,131.80

Work Product 4 — 100% Design $9,560.24

TOTAL: $101 .832.85

SECTION 2 - FIXED FEE

2.1 The CONSULTANT and the COUNTY acknowledge the fact that the fixed fee is the total cost
of the Basic Services to be rendered under this Agreement. This fixed fee is based upon the
labor and non-labor costs, set forth in Exhibit 2 and described above, required in the
performance of the various phases of work provided for under this Agreement.

2.2 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the CONSULTANT’s services as either
“Basic” or “Additional” services, the decision of the COUNTY EXECUTIVE will be final and
binding on the CONSULTANT.

SECTION 3- COMPENSATION FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES

3.1 “Additional Services” are defined as any services performed by CONSULTANT not specifically
described in the Basic Services (Section 2 of this Agreement).

3.2 The County will pay the CONSULTANT for the performance of Additional Services only if:

3.2.1 TNR recommended the Additional Services to the Travis County Purchasing Agent, and
the Travis County Purchasing Agent issues a written authorization to the
CONSULTANT to perform the Additional Services before any of those services are
performed;

3.2.2 there is a written amendment to this Agreement regarding the Additional Services;
3.2.3 the work to be performed was not made necessary by the CONSULTANT’s errors or

omissions; and
3.2.4 the work is performed to the satisfaction of the County Executive.

41

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

3.3 The basis of compensation for the services of principals and employees engaged in the
performance of the Additional Services are the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit 2.

SECTION 4— REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

4.1 The CONSULTANT will be reimbursed for non-labor expenses and a subcontract management
fee incurred in the performance of the Basic Services under this Agreement, both of which are
at invoice cost plus a percent (%) fee. Detailed requirements for Reimbursable
Expenses are outlined in Section 9, Reimbursable Expenses.

Non-Labor reimbursable expenses: $7,488.25 x 1.00 = $7488.25

Sub-Contract Management Fee: $ x % = $iY.

REIMBURSABLES TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED: $7,488.25

SECTION 5—TOTAL AGREEMENT SUM

5.1 The Total Professional Services Agreement Sum, consisting of the Basic Services of
$101,832.85, plus the Not-to-Exceed Reimbursable Expenses (as listed in paragraph 4.1
above) of $7,488.25, is not to exceed $109,321.10.

SECTION 6—SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

6.1 Payments will be made on a monthly basis for work performed, as described in detail in the
Scope of Services, within 30 days of receipt of a correct and complete invoice, as defined in
paragraph 14.10, by the Transportation and Natural Resources Department.

42

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 2
HOURLY RATES

BASIC SERVICES

Schedule of Rates (Hourly):

Project Director $210.00
Project Manager $188.00
Sr. Engineer $174.00
Project Engineer $140.00
Design Engineer $125.00
EIT $110.00
CADD Tech $100.00
Admin Asst. $70.00

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Schedule of Rates (Hourly):

Project Director $210.00
Project Manager $188.00
Sr. Engineer $174.00
Project Engineer $140.00
Design Engineer $125.00
EIT $110.00
CADD Tech $100.00
Admin Asst. $70.00

43

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

EXHIBIT 3
PROJECT SCHEDULE

A. The CONSULTANT must provide a detailed schedule of services, including a list of tasks and
accompanying Work Product, to be performed for each phase described in the Scope of
Services (the “Project Schedule”). At the beginning of each phase, the COUNTY EXECUTIVE
and the CONSULTANT must update and adjust the details of the Project Schedule and
accompanying Work Product as may be required for each phase. The Project Schedule must
allow sufficient time for the development of the Work Product in each phase to a level of quality
and standard of completeness consistent with normal engineering practice, as well as to allow
time for the COUNTY’s Technical Review Process.

A.1 The CONSULTANT must provide and maintain sufficient Project staffing levels
necessary to produce the work in a timely and efficient manner consistent with the
Project Schedule.

A.2 The Project Schedule must be updated in the event that:

1. any COUNTY approval or decision is not made within the time frame set forth in
the Project Schedule;

2. the COUNTY makes a written request for a revision in the Work Product that is
inconsistent with written approval or instructions previously given by the
COUNTY and due to causes beyond the reasonable control of the
CONSULTANT;

3. a force majeure event has occurred; and
4. the CONSULTANT has not performed in accordance with the latest Project

Schedule.

A.3 If the CONSULTANT falls behind the Project Schedule by two or more weeks, then
the CONSULTANT must present the COUNTY EXECUTIVE with a recovery plan,
which sets forth the remedial actions to be taken by the CONSULTANT. At its sole
option, the COUNTY may withhold all or part of any payment due to the
CONSULTANT until the Project Schedule is recovered.

B. This Agreement will become effective upon the Effective Date and will remain in full force and
effect until the Project Completion Date, as defined herein.

C. The CONSULTANT must complete all design work described herein, and must submit its Work
Product for all phases as described in the Scope of Services, except for Bid Phase Services,
within 210 calendar days from the date of receipt by the CONSULTANT of the COUNTY’s
written Notice to Proceed.

Calculation of the 210 days referenced in paragraph C does not include any time period during
which the COUNTY maintains control of the Work Product or any other documents to be
submifted under this Agreement, for purposes that include but are not limited to performing the
Technical Review Process described in Section 7 of this Agreement.

44

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

ATTACHMENT I TO EXHIBIT 3

PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

Phase Precedent Duration
Work Product #1 —30% Design Notice-to-Proceed 90 calendar days
Work Product #2 — 60% Design County acceptance 60 calendar days

of WP #1
Work Product #3 —90 Design County acceptance 30 calendar days

of WP #2
Work Product #4 — 100% Design County acceptance 30 calendar days

of WP #3

45

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

ATTACHMENT 2 TO EXHIBIT 3

UTILITY RELOCATION SERVICES

I. Research records of properties within project limits of construction
a) identify all utility companies that serve the properties
b) identify easements on the property and obtain descriptions and copies of any dedication

instruments and plats
c) identify owners of utilities and their contact information

II. Obtain existing condition and proposed improvement information from utility companies
a) Determine type, size, and approximate location of existing utilities.

1) interview appropriate utility company representatives
2) obtain as-built drawings if available

b) determine future plans for utility work within the limits of construction
1) interview appropriate utility company representatives
2) if available, obtain preliminary utility engineering plans and schedule for future

improvements
3) If no engineering plans are available, obtain description of proposed improvements

including design criteria that will be used including but not limited to:
i) utility assignment
ii) depth requirements
iii) design requirements for separation from other utilities, structures, or activities

Ill. Review project design information for existing and potential conflicts
a) plan sheets showing existing and proposed conditions for roadways, bridges, buildings,

utilities, topography, fences, walls, storm sewer systems, etc.
b) profile sheets showing existing and proposed conditions
c) detail sheets for foundations showing size and depth requirements
d) cross sections showing existing ground and proposed improvement including excavations,

embankments, drainage channels, etc

IV. Coordinate the relocation, protection, upgrading, or abandonment of utilities
a) Identify with TNR Project Managers apparent conflicts between existing or proposed utilities

and the project improvements shown in the design documents.
b) Provide copies of design documents to all utility service providers along with a list of conflicts

identified.
i) maintain database of utility companies provided with design information, contact

persons and numbers, information transmittals, written and verbal communications,
and any other pertinent information showing who was involved in the coordination, the
decisions made, and the time taken to complete the process

ii) meet with utility company representatives to determine their proposed method for
reconciling conflicts and communicate the information to TNR

iii) meet with TNR and County Attorney’s Office and/or the utility company
representatives and other public entities as needed to assist with reconciling conflicts
between utilities and the proposed improvements, and record and distribute minutes of
such meetings

iv) prepare draft of elements to be included in any utility agreements or memoranda of
understanding to be developed between TNR and utility service providers including

46

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEOI34JW

responsibilities for relocation, upgrading, or protection; specifics related to costs,
scheduling, sizes and types, vertical and horizontal locations; and any special
construction and/or protection requirements.

v) provide documentation of correspondence and coordination efforts to TNR upon
completion of assignment

V. Additional Services
a) field check locations of above-ground utilities and visible components of below-ground utilities

and mark locations relative to existing topographic features on mapping to be provided by
TNR.

c) provide, or contract with companies that can provide, underground utility locating services.
d) hand excavate to verify location of utilities
e) represent TNR at Austin Area Utility Coordinating Committee meetings
f) attend pre-construction and construction meetings
g) provide documentation and testimony as needed to help resolve claims related to utility work

or property condemnation cases.

47

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

ATTACHMENT 3 TO EXHIBIT 3

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

(a) Coordination and Pre-Construction Meeting Services

(i) Technical Submittals and Samples

Prepare a list of all technical submittals required by the Contractor. This list shall be
distributed at the pre-construction meeting.

(ii) Permits

Prepare a list of all permits to be obtained by the Contractor. This list must be
distributed at the pre-construction meeting.

(iii) Material Testing and Inspections

Prepare recommendations for the project construction and material testing protocols.

(iv) Pre-construction Submittals

Provide review comments on Contractors’ pre-construction submittals. Pre-construction
submittals include the Contractor’s construction schedule, division of contract,
subcontractor list, material supplier list, or any special submittals requested of the
Contractor prior to the pre-construction meeting.

(b) Administrative Tasks

(i) Prepare draft agenda for pre-construction meeting.

(ii) Determine the project communication, reporting, submittal approval/rejection
protocol, and documentation requirements.

(iii) Conduct weekly job site meetings. Determine the format for scheduling and
conducting, and recording construction meeting minutes.

(iv) Review and become knowledgeable of any required County construction
administration processes.

(v) Record meeting minutes.

(vi) Maintain Project construction records consisting of all correspondence related to the
construction of the Project, including but not limited to:

(A) all approved technical submittals and a technical submittal checklist;

(B) all approved field orders and change orders;

48

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

(C) contract specifications and drawings;

(D) daily log;

(E) job meeting minutes;

(F) clarifications drawings;

(C) daily progress reports; and

(H) processed pay requests.

(vii) The daily log, as a minimum, must contain information regarding weather
conditions, ambient temperatures, Contractor manpower levels, sub-contractors
manpower levels, daily hours of inspection, travel time, conversations, work items being
performed, material delivery information, and other observations.

(viii) Daily logs must be completed and include a statement as to whether or not the
Contractor is behind schedule or delaying the progress of the work and, if so, the steps
the Contractor should take to get back on schedule. Copies of daily logs must be made
available to the County upon request.

(ix) Maintain complete files of all Project-related documents at the Project site.

(x) Upon the completion of each calendar month, furnish the County with a typed
statement summarizing the status of the work. In the event the work is behind
schedule, the statement must also delineate what efforts the Contractor must take to get
back on schedule. A copy of this statement must also be delivered to the Contractor.

(xi) After the Project has been completed, submit the Project files, along with the
original daily logs to the County.

(c) Construction Phase Services

(i) Submittals

Process submittals, including receipt, review of, and appropriate action on shop
drawings, samples and other submittals. Provide recommendations for County
approvals of “or equal” substitutions along with any recommended cost adjustments.

(ii) Contract Modifications

For modifications required by the County to resolve design errors or omissions, the
Project Manager will coordinate with the CONSULTANT to provide the following
services:

(A) Provide recommendations to the County concerning potential changes and
modifications to the Project, which are encountered during construction.

(B) Identify and investigate feasible alternatives, to the extent practical, and
49

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

prepare necessary plans, details, etc. required to obtain firm cost and schedule
impact statements from the Contractor.

(C) Evaluate the Contractor’s impact statements and, in conjunction with the
County, negotiate costs for any contemplated changes with the Contractor.

(iii) Contractor Pay Requests

Upon receipt of a pay request from a Contractor, jointly review each line item with the
Contractor and advise the Contractor’s representative of any discrepancies or conflicts
in the pay requests. Verify the accuracy of quantities of installed, delivered, and stored
materials. Advise the County of any issues that may warrant withholding, reducing, or
delaying payment to the Contractor and provide supporting documentation.

(iv) Interpretation of the Contract Documents

Upon request, provide interpretation or clarification of the construction documents to the
County or the Contractor. Determine an acceptable method for communicating
interpretations and clarifications directly to the Contractor beforehand.

(v) Observation

Site visits are to be performed to the extent necessary to:

(A) Observe, document, and report to the County and the Contractor whether the
Project is being constructed in accordance with the contract documents.

(B) Observe, document, and report to the County and the Contractor whether the
proper measure of unit price bid quantities is being implemented and confirm
percentage completion of lump sum items.

(C) Observe, document, and report to the County the progress of the Contractor
and resources committed to the Project by the Contractor.

(vi) Materials Testing and Inspections

(i) Establish and administer a materials sampling and testing program to provide
quality control and compliance with the construction plans and specifications.
Utilizing the list of required testing developed from the construction documents
develop a testing program for the Project. The testing program must designate
what services are to be provided by the CONSULTANT and the Contractor.
Services must include, but not be limited to, soils compaction testing, concrete
cylinder compression strength tests, gradation analysis, miscellaneous shop
inspection, and other testing required by the construction contract documents, or
as specifically requested by the County. A copy of the proposed testing program
must be prepared for review by the County prior to beginning work.

(ii) Review all laboratory and field-testing results to determine whether results are

50

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

in compliance with the construction contract documents and provide
recommendations for correction of substandard materials and workmanship
revealed during testing.

(vii) Claims

Assist the County with claim reviews and negotiations upon request and with the
preparation of related correspondence and documentation.

(viii) Contract Enforcement

Examine Contractor workmanship, materials, progress, and overall compliance with
requirements of the contract documents and immediately report any observed
deficiencies to the Contractor and the County. Communicate to the Contractor and the
County what may be necessary to effect corrective action. Document deficiencies and
actions taken by Contractor to correct them. Assist the County with evaluating impacts
of potential contract termination upon project costs and schedule.

(ix) Contract Termination

Assist the County with completion of an assessment of the status of the Contractor’s
contract, the development of an agreement with the Contractor’s Surety to complete the
work, and preparing and holding a pre-construction meeting with the replacement
Contractor.

(x) Project Acceptance and Close-out

(A) Perform with the County and the Contractor substantial completion and final
inspections and compile and distribute related punch requiring correction.

(B) Compile and review for completeness all Operation and Maintenance
Manuals to be submitted by the Contractor and inform Contractor of any
deficiencies.

(C) Review and comment on final pay request and supporting close-out
documents, and provide recommendation for approval or rejection to the County.

(D) Upon Project completion, obtain the original drawings, incorporate all as-built
conditions on the original drawings and provide copies to the County at Project
close-out.

(D) Post Construction Services

(i) Meet with the County upon request during the warranty period to investigate
problems with material, equipment, and/or workmanship that may arise. Determine
whether or not such problems are warranty issues or design issues and recommend
solutions.

(ii) Coordinate and attend with the County a final warranty inspection no less than
51

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

sixty days prior to expiration of Contractor warranty period. Develop list of deficiencies,
if any, and determine if deficiencies are caused by inferior workmanship, equipment,
and/or materials or caused by other reasons. Provide recommendations for resolving
each deficiency. Complete a follow-up inspection with the County to determine whether
deficiencies have been corrected by the Contractor prior to expiration of the warranty
period.

52

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 4
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

A. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated
during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available
to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

B. The CONSULTANT shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the CONSULTANT, state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

C. The CONSULTANT shall send to the labor union representative or workers with which he has
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided
by the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or worker’s representatives of
the CONSULTANT’S obligations under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

D. The CONSULTANT shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of
Transportation (49 CFR 21 and 23 CFR §710.405) and all provisions of Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor, including 41 CFR Part 60.

E. The CONSULTANT shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto; and shall permit access to his books, records, and
accounts by the Department and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.

F. In the event of the CONSULTANT’S non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of
this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled,
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the CONSULTANT may be declared
ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375 (41
CFR 60) or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by
law.

G. The CONSULTANT shall include the provisions of paragraphs (A.) through (F.) in every
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 or Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, as amended, so that such provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or
vendor. The CONSULTANT shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor purchase
order as the Department may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including

53

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

sanctions for non-compliance; provided, however, that in the event the CONSULTANT
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result
of such direction by the COUNTY or Federal Agency, the CONSULTANT may request the
COUNTY and United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United
States.

54

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 5

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating of
B+ VIII or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as evidenced
by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted to
the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the
Travis County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of policies
and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during y term of the Contract and
req uire that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during term of this Contract.
Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles
and self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit the
55

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’ Compensation
Act.
2. Employers’ Liability limits are

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following endorsements
in favor of Travis County:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:

$1 ,000,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a $1,000,000 policy aggregate
2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:

a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County
4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)

b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided,
the required limits shall be:

$ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a $ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $3 00,000* per occurrence

2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County
a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B)

56

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

t Alternative Insurance Requirement

If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel
to and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of

$ l00,000/$300,000/$50,000
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability and/or E & 0 Insurance

1. Minimum Limit: $ 1,000,000 per Occurrence

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes
first. Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this
Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims
made and shall contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting
period date.

3. Additional insured status for Travis County is not required

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated
in the Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes
first. Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this
Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims
made and shall contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting
period date.

3. Additional Insured status for Travis County is not required.

r
4 I.’.i’YM

57

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 6
STATE OFTEXAS }
COUTNY OF TRAVIS }

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date:

__________________________

Name of Affiant: O-(-&m r-YC.y -

Title of Affiant: \i c
Business Name of CONSULTANT: \ tr veL1 -C
County of CONSULTANT: vfS

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by CONSULTANT to make this affidavit for CONSULTANT.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. CONSULTANT has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Agreement,
which is attached to this affidavit as Attachment 1.

5. Affiant has personally read Attachment I to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Attachment I with whom
CONSULTANT is doing business or during the 365 day period immediately
before the date of thi

Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by

_________

on 20LL

_

Notary Public, State ofTX

Typed or printed name of no
My commission expires: k L11 (

LAURA K. BALLIS
fj MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

Sepember29,2O12

cYt ) , suck o 7

58

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

CURRENT

Position Held

EXHIBIT 6, ATTACHMENT I
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

February 3, 2012

Name of Individual
Holding Office/Position

Name of Business
Individual is Associated

County Judge
County Judge (Spouse)
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Commissioner, Precinct I
Commissioner, Precinct I (Spouse)
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Commissioner, Precinct 2
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse)
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Commissioner, Precinct 3
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse)
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
Commissioner, Precinct 4
Executive Assistant
Executive Assistant
County Treasurer
County Auditor
County Executive, Administrative
County Executive, Planning & Budget.
County Executive, Emergency Services.
County Executive, Health/Human Services
County Executive, TNR
County Executive, Justice and Public Safety
Chief Information Officer
Director, Facilities Management
Director, Records Mgmnt & Communications

Travis County Attorney
First Assistant County Attorney
Executive Assistant, County Attorney
Director, Land Use Division
Attorney, Land Use Division
Attorney, Land Use Division
Director, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Attorney, Transactions Division
Director, Health Services Division
Health Services Division

Samuel T. Biscoe
Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe....
Cheryl Brown
Melissa Velasquez
Josie Z. Zavala
Cheryl Aker
Ron Davis
Annie Davis
Deone Wilhite
Felicitas Chavez
Sarah Eckhardt
Kurt Sauer
Loretta Farb
Joe Hon
Peter Einhorn
Karen Huber
Leonard Huber
Carry Brown
Lori Duarte
Jacob Cottingham*
Margaret Gomez
Edith Moreida
Norma Guerra
Dolores Ortega-Carter
Susan Spataro, CPA
Vacant
Leslie Browder*
Danny Hobby
Sherri E. Fleming
Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
Roger Jefferies
Joe Harlow
Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Steven Broberg

David Escamilla
Steve Capelle
James Collins
Tom Nuckols*
Christopher Gilmore
Julie Joe
John Hille
Tamara Armstrong
Daniel Bradford
Mary Etta Gerhardt
Barbara Wilson
Jim Connolly
Tenley Aidredge
Vacant
Prema Gregerson

Seton Hospital

Daffer McDaniel, LLP

Retired

59

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

CURRENT — continued

Position Held
Purchasing Agent
Assistant Purchasing Agent
Assistant Purchasing Agent
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Purchasing Agent Assistant Ill
Purchasing Agent Assistant III
Purchasing Agent Assistant III
Purchasing Agent Assistant III
Purchasing Agent Assistant III
Purchasing Agent Assistant Ill
Purchasing Agent Assistant III
Purchasing Agent Assistant II
HUB Coordinator
HUB Specialist
HUB Specialist
Purchasing Business Analyst
Purchasing Business Analyst
Transportation and Natural Resources
HHS-CDBG

Name of Individual
Holding Office/Position
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Marvin Brice, CPPB
Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Vacant
Lee Perry
Jason Walker
Richard Villareal
Patrick Strittmatter*
Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Scott Wilson, CPPB
Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
George R. Monnat, C.P.M., APP.
John E. Pena, CTPM
Rosalinda Garcia
Shannon Pleasant, CTPM*
Michael Long, CPPB
Loren Breland, CPPB
David Waich
Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
C.W. Bruner, CTP
Jayne Rybak, CTP*
Sylvia Lopez
Betty Chapa
Jerome Guerrero
Scott Worthington
Jennifer Francis
Lee Turner
Christy Moffett

Name of Business
Individual is Associated

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Position Held
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
County Executive, Planning & Budget
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Director, Health Services Division
Purchasing Agent Assistant III

Name of Individual
Holding Office/Position
Oralia Jones, CPPB
Rodney Rhoades
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV
Beth Devery
Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M

Date of Exiiration
07/31/12
08/19/12
12/16/12
03/09/13
03/14/13

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

60

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 7

This Exhibit 7 contains the following documents:

1. Attachment 7-1: Notice of Intent to Subcontract with HUB
2. Attachment 7-2: Travis County HUB Subcontractor Payment Report
3. Attachment 7-3: HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form

61

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Attachment 7-1

NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI)
To SUBCONTRACT WITH

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB)

Please submit this form for each HUB Subcontractor utilized, with proper signatures, per the terms and
conditions of your contract.

Prime Contractors/Consultants are requested to complete this form and provide it to the Purchasing Agent Representative, within five
(5) working days after contract award.

Contractor Name:

______________________________HUB:

D Yes D No

Address:
Street City State Zip

Phone No.: (____________________________________ Fax No.: ( )

Proj ect Title & No.:

Prime Contract Amount:
$___________________

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: D Tx. Bldg. & Procurement Comm. D City of Austin L] Tx. Unified Certification Pgm.

Address:
Street City State Zip

Phone No
(__________________________________

Fax No ( )

Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

_____________________________

Printed Name of Contractor Representative Signature of Representative Date

Printed Name of HUB Representative Signature of Representative Date

Note: Nothing on this Notice of Intent Form is intended to confer any rights, expressed or implied, to any third parties.

PRE-APPROVAL FOR SUBCONTRACTOR SUBSTITUTIONS MUST BE OBTAINED FROM THE TRAVIS COUNTY

PURCHASING AGENT REPRESENTATIVE. THE “HUB SUBCONTRACTOR/SUBCONSUL TANT CHANGE FORM”

MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED TO THE HUB OFFICE, VIA FAX 512.854.9185.

Rev. 3/04

62

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



A
tt

ac
hm

en
t

7-
2:

T
R

A
V

IS
C

O
U

N
T

Y

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

L
Y

U
N

D
E

R
U

T
IL

IZ
E

D
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

(H
U

B
)

-
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
R

E
P

O
R

T

12
A

E
O

13
4J

W

P
R

IM
E

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

JC
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

N
A

M
E

:
A

M
O

U
N

T
O

F
PR

IM
E

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

T
IT

L
E

/N
O

.:
A

M
O

U
N

T
O

F
A

L
L

SU
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S:

T
O

T
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
PE

R
IO

D
:

F
ro

m
:_

__
__

__
__

__
__

T
o:

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

S
R

E
PO

R
T

E
D

FO
R

T
H

E
M

O
N

T
H

O
F:

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
2
0
_

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
N

A
M

E
O

F
H

U
B

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
*

D
E

sc
R

Ip
T

IO
N

O
F

W
O

R
K

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

D
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

T
H

IS
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

S
u
B

-
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
D

E
C

R
E

A
S

E
S

U
B

-C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

P
E

R
IO

D
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S

A
M

O
U

N
T

(M
O

D
W

IC
A

T
IO

N
)

A
M

O
U

N
T

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

fo
r

co
m

pl
et

in
g

th
is

fo
rm

:
S

E
C

T
IO

N
A

:
N

am
e

al
l

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

pe
rf

or
m

in
g

on
th

is
pr

oj
ec

t.
S

E
C

T
IO

N
B

:
St

at
e

th
e

w
or

k
be

in
g

pe
rf

or
m

ed
by

th
e

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

.
S

E
C

T
IO

N
C

:
St

at
e

th
e

or
ig

in
al

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

am
ou

nt
.

S
E

C
T

IO
N

D
:

St
at

e
an

y
in

cr
ea

se
s

or
de

cr
ea

se
,a

s
a

re
su

lt
of

co
nt

ra
ct

m
od

if
ic

at
io

ns
or

ch
an

ge
or

de
rs

, t
o

th
e

or
ig

in
al

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

t(
Se

ct
io

n
C

)
am

ou
nt

.
S

E
C

T
IO

N
E

:
St

at
e

th
e

am
en

de
d

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

ta
m

ou
nt

,
to

th
e

In
iti

al
H

U
B

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
ta

m
ou

nt
,

as
a

re
su

lt
of

an
y

in
cr

ea
se

an
d/

or
de

cr
ea

se
(S

ec
tio

n
D

).
S

E
C

T
IO

N
F:

St
at

e
th

e
am

ou
nt

pa
id

to
ea

ch
H

U
B

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r
du

ri
ng

th
is

re
po

rt
in

g
pe

ri
od

.
S

E
C

T
IO

N
G

:
St

at
e

th
e

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

of
pa

ym
en

ts
m

ad
e

to
-d

at
e

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
am

ou
nt

fr
om

Se
ct

io
n

F)
to

th
e

H
U

B
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r.

I
ce

rt
if

y
th

at
th

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
li

st
ed

on
th

is
re

p
o
rt

is
tr

u
e

an
d

ac
cu

ra
te

to
th

e
be

st
of

m
y

kn
ow

le
dg

e.
I

fu
ll

y
u
n
d
er

st
an

d
th

at
in

te
nt

io
na

ll
y

fa
ls

if
yi

ng
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
on

th
is

do
cu

m
en

t
m

ay
re

su
lt

in
T

E
R

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

O
F

M
Y

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

.

Pr
in

te
d

N
am

e
of

C
on

tr
ac

to
r

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e

Si
gn

at
ur

e
of

C
on

tr
ac

to
r

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e

D
at

e
R

ep
or

tN
um

be
r

P
L

E
A

S
E

S
U

B
M

IT
T

H
IS

F
O

R
M

W
IT

H
Y

O
U

R
M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

IN
V

O
IC

E
S

,
P

E
R

T
H

E
T

E
R

M
S

O
F

Y
O

U
R

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

.

63

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
Attachment 7-3:

HUB SUBCONTRACTORJSUBCONSULTANT CHANGE FORM
(ADDITION. SUBSTITUTION. DELETION. REDUCTION. INCREASE)

CONTRACT #

__________________

CONTRACT
DESCRIPTION:______________________________________

PRIME CONTRACTOR:____________________________________

REQUESTED BY: CONTACT #:__________________

DATE: E-mail:________________________

• OBTAIN PRE-APPRO VAL FROM THE TRA VIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT AND/OR THE HUB COORDINATOR OF
ALL CHANGES INVOL VING CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS.

• IF BIDDER HAS DIFFICULTY IN LOCATING CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS CONTACT THE TRAVIS
COUNTY HUB COORDINATOR AT (512) 845-4561 OR HUB SPECIALIST AT (512) 854-9914, FOR ASSISTANCE.

Check reason: Addition Substitution

_______Deletion

_Reduction _Increase

REASON FOR ACTION:

Unavailable after receipt of reasonable notice to proceed.
Failure of performance.
Financial capacity.
Refusal by the subcontractor to honor the bid of proposal price.

Mistake of fact or law about the elements of the scope of work of a solicitation where a reasonable price cannot be agreed
upon.

Failure of the subcontractor to meet insurance, licensing, or bonding requirements.
The subcontractor’s withdrawal of his bid or proposal.

_____Please

provide me with a HUB Subcontractor listing.

______I

have already selected a potential HUB Subcontractor for this project. (List below)

SUB TO BE REPLACED:

___________________________________

REPLACEMENT:

_____________________________________

REPLACEMENT’S STATUS:

Certified: HUB MJWBE_ DBE Non-HUB Unknown

INCREASED/DECREASED AMOUNT: Original Amt. $________ New Amt. $________

OTHER COMMENTS:

FAX TO: 512.854.9185 ATTN: HUB OFFICE

REVIEWED BY HUB PROGRAM OFFICE: Initials: Date:

64

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 8
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED

CONTRACTS
Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal
government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? _YES ___NO

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph 4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal

department or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

L1 The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certifj to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor l.D. or Social Security No.

Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

65

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134LJW

EXHIBIT 9

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTWITIES

Complete this fccmlo disclose lobEa acth’ities pzrsuamtto 31 U.S.C 1352 (See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Attica I Status of Federal Attica 3. Repott 2pe:
a. contract a. bidoffer/application a. initial filing
b. grant b. initial award b. pent
c. cooperatw agreement c. post-award Far Material Change Only
iloen year____ quarter_
e. loam guerantee date of last report_______
f. loam insuratce

4. Name and Address ofRepesiiagEndty: 5. IfReportingtnfityinNo.41s Subawardee,
Enter Name and Address of Prime:

U Prime C] Subawardee

. - .

. nor Congressional District ifknown:
Cengressaonat Dis*nct ifknon

6. Federal DeparUnentAgesicy: 7. Federal Program NaineIDesciipdor

CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Artsoe Number, ifknown: 9. Award Antoat ifhiwq

S

10. a. Name amdAddress of Lubbying Entiw b. Individuals Perfoazing Sen’izes (sncludimg address if different
(icdivids2l.last name, distnamaMl): fiomNo. IQa) (last name, first name, hC):

(attach Con.thnsation Sheet(s) SF-Ill-A. ifnecessary)

11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply): 13. 1’pe of Paymmt (check all that apply):
a. retainer

S_______________ actual olanned b.ors-timefoe
c.. commission

12. Foam ofPaymecs (check all that apply) & contingent foe
a. cash

. defend
b. in-kicd: sperify: natnn____________ I other; svecifr.__________________

vthe - -_______

14. BriefDescription of Services Performed or to be Performed and Dare(s) of Senice, including
ocer(s). enroloyee(s), or Menibes) contacted, for Payment Indicated ± Item 11:

(airacli Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LU-A. ifnecessary)

15. Coetlianadion Sheet(s) SF-Ill-A shacked: [] Yes C] No

16. Infnerion requested trough this form is aurhoiizedby title Sipature:
31 U.S.C. secdon 1351 This disclosure of lobbying aclivites s a
material representation of £scr won which reliance wasplaced by PrintName:_________________________
the tier above when thi transaction was made at entered into. This
disciocure is reqtsiredpursuanr to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information Title:
will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be aveilalile
for public inspection. Any person who falls to file the required dis- Thlephone No:______________ Date:
closure shall be subect to a civilpenaity of not less thaziS 10.003
and not more tan S1X,OCC for each such failure.

FEDERAL USE ONLY Authorized for Local Reproduction
Scanuaid Fosm-LLL

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLE1’ION OF SF-ILL DISCLOSURE OF IORBYING ACTIVITIES

12AEO134JW

This disclosure form shall be oompeted by the reporting entity whether subawartlee or prirre Federai
recipient, at the rntiiaticn or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to
hUe 31 U.S.C section 1351 The hug of a form required for each payment or agre’ernent to make payment to any
lobbying entity for influencig or attemptthg to infuerzce an officer or employee of any agency a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress. or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal
action. Use the SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet for additional iifon’nation lithe space on the form is inadequate. Com
plete a items that apply for both the initial filing arid material change report Refer to the implementixg guldance pub
hed by the Office of Management and Budget for addeional information.

1. identIty the type of ccvered Federal action Icr erIch lobbying activIty Is arrdrcr has been secure to influence
tire outcome of a covered Federal action.

2. Identity tire status 01 the covered Federal actIon.
3. IdentIty the appropriate aassmcaticn ci tht report. If this Is a fc4Tow-up report caused by a material change to

tire teformation previously reported, enter tIre year and quarter ii which the change occurred. Enter the date or
tire last previously aitrnltied report by this reporling entity or this covered Federal action.

4. Enter tire Tue name, adrteea, city, slate and z code or lire reportfrrg entry. inctude Congresslcna District, It
vnoan crest the rpropr1ate ctasslllcalon of sie reporting eraty that desliates ir it t, or expects to be, a
prrmne or subaward recipient Identify tire her of the subawardee, e.g., the 1W subawaidee or the prime is the
1st tier. Subawarde Incude but are not smrted to subcontracts, sutgrarats ani contract awards under grants.

5 If the organization filing Ihe report in hem 4 checks ‘Sutasvardee, then enter the tell name, address, dtç state
and zip code ci the prime Federal recipient Include Congessbral D7tct U known.

6. Enter We name of the Federal agency making the award or roan ccmrrttntent inctude at least one
organ izational level beicw agency name, U known. For example, Deparinrent of 7raneportatbr united Slates
Coast Guard.

7. Enter tire Federal prown name or descrptlcn fcc the covered Federal action (Item 1). if mown, enter the flu
Catalog cc Federal DomestIc Assistance (CFDA) runiber far grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan
cornn’.itmsnts.

3. Enter ire meet appropriate Federal Identifying runter available for the Federal aclicn Identified In item I (e.g,
Request tr Proposal (RFP) numter irirltahon fbi’ Ski (IFS number grant announcement number, the
contract, grant, or loan award number; the applcahcreyrcposal ccrrtrci number assIgned by tire Federal
agency). Include prefIxes, e.g., RFP-DE-S0-0O 1.’

9. For a covered Federal action wnere there has been an award or loan conrinhmerht by The Federal agencc enter
ihe Federal amount of the award4oan comrntnent for the prime entIty Identified In tern 4 cr5.

10. (a) Enter the Tue name, aflees. cIty, state and zp code or The lcbbytrg entity engaged by the reporing entry
idenirled In Item 4 lo influence the covered Federal action.
ib) Enter tire rut names ci the lntht&Jal(s) pertrmnsng serifices, and Include lull address ir dirlurent morn 10(a).

Enter Last Name, FWSt Name, and kiddie lrAiIS (Mi).
11. Enter the amount of ccnrpersatlcn paid or reasonably expected lobe paid by the reportrg entry trtem 4) to the

lotbyng entry (Item 10). IndIcate whether the payment has been made (aciiar) or wilt be made (pia’ine.
Check at boxes that apply. If this Is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made
or planned loteinade.

12. Check the appropriate box(es). Check at boxes that apply. it payment Is made through an ti-lund oDrfl’Jhcn,
specify the nature and vatie of the In-kInd payment

13. Check the appropriate bcx(es). Check as boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
it Provide a specific and detailed description ci tire seritces that the lobbyist has perlomted, or wit be expected

to perform, and Ow date(s) of any eer.ices rendered. Include at preparatcry ar.d related actm,llt)c notjust time
spent in actual contact with Federal officials. IdentIfy the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the
officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Conesa that were contacted.

15. Check whether or not a SF-Ui-A contlnu-ahcn Sheet(s) rs attached.
16. The cevtIItnig olnotal shat sign and date the form, prInt irlsI’er name, tine, and telephone neiniber

Pubic repcilflg burden tins cciedlnn ci Ineomatar t enlimno Ic awerage 30 nerules per raponne, rC4jiln nine icr
reviewing telnacnonn searching extlfl data seaten, gteilng aird inalntalrM the data reeded. and ccnrpleera arc
reviewing lire cosecdon ci inicrmsacn. Send comments reguardlrrg me burden athiath Dr any oilier aect or ha cniecton ci

lnlcrmnfln, rtaidirç auggeslicra icr inducing mis burdcn, t Ih. 05cc ci ManenienL and Budget, Papemtm Reduclion
Plolect tOa4a-cO4eh Wawinglon, D.C. 25503.

67

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10 to CDBG-PSA
Travis County

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Section 3 Overview

Section 3 Overview

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, requires that
recipients of financial assistance provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), including developers, owners, and contractors and their subcontractors,
provide, “to the greatest extent feasible”, training and employment opportunities for low
income area residents and contract opportunities for the performance of work by local
businesses owned by and/or employing low income residents.

Applicability
Section 3 preference requirements apply to recipients of CDBG for a covered project for which
the amount of assistance exceeds $200,000. Contractors and subcontractors are subject to
Section 3 requirements when the amount of assistance exceeds $200,000 and the amount of the
contract or subcontract exceeds $100,000. If the amount of assistance exceeds $200,000, but no
contract exceeds $100,000, the Section 3 preference requirements apply only to the recipients.
Section 3 applies to subrecipients, professional services or construction work for housing
rehabilitation, housing construction or other public construction projects.

Section 3 Residents and Business Concerns
A “section 3 resident” is: 1) a public housing resident; or 2) a low- or very low-income person
residing in the metropolitan area or Non-metropolitan County in which the Section 3 covered
assistance is expended. Refer to Attachment 10-1 for a definition of low and very low income
resident.

“Section 3 business concerns” are businesses that can provide evidence that they meet one of
the following: 1) 51 percent or more owned by Section 3 residents; or 2) At least 30 percent of
its fully time employees include persons that are currently Section 3 residents, or within three
years of the date of first employment with the business concern were Section 3 residents; or 3)
Provides evidence, as required, of a commitment to
subcontract in excess of 25 percent of the dollar award of all subcontracts to be awarded to
business concerns that meet the qualifications in the above two paragraphs.

68

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Section 3 Compliance
To comply with Section 3 requirements, the Travis County CDBG program will examine and
consider amongst other factors the contractor’s or vendor’s potential for success by providing
employment and business opportunities to low- and very low-income residents prior to acting
on any proposed contract award. Towards this end, the County will include a local
opportunity plan for CDBG-sponsored projects. As part of the response to bid solicitations,
request for proposals, services or qualifications, businesses will be required to certify that a
Section 3 Local Opportunity Plan will be submitted to the County if they are awarded a CDBG
funded contract.

Section 3 Local Opportunity Plan
A sample local opportunity plan is attached as Attachment 10-2 along with Section 3
definitions on Attachment 10-3. Recipients will be expected to maintain documentation of

activities and outreach attempts. Recipients can use the form in Attachment 10-4 to document

the eligibility of their workers as Section 3 eligible residents. Additional information about
Section 3 can be found on HUD’s website at the following URL:

http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/section3/section3.cfm.

Reporting
Contractors, consultants, subrecipients and subcontractors will be expected to complete the
“Section 3 Report” found in Attachment 10-5 to document efforts made to direct the
employment toward low-and very low income persons and to document whether Section 3
residents were hired to fill any available positions. Reports must be submitted to the County
on a quarterly basis throughout the contract period and a final report will be due 5 days after
the project/contract close-out date. The quarterly reports will be due according to the following
schedule:

• January 5th for activities undertaken from October through December;
• April 5h1 for activities undertaken from January through March;
• July 5th for activities undertaken from April through June; and

• October 5th for activities undertaken from July through September.

If the 5th falls on a weekend or a holiday, the quarterly reports are due to Travis County on the
next business day.

69

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-1: Section 3 Income Limits

All residents of public housing developments of the Travis County Housing
Authority qualify as Section 3 residents. Additionally, individuals residing in
Travis County who meet the low income limits set forth below can also qualify
for Section 3 status.

Eligibility Guideline (Effective February 2012)

Number in Household Low Income

1 individual
$42,500

2 individuals
$48,600

3 individuals
$54,650

4 individuals
$60,700

5 individuals
$65,600

6 individuals
$70,450

7 individuals
$75,300

8 individuals
$80,150

70

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-2: Section 3 Local Opportunity Plan

(Name of Contractor), hereby agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps to

increase the utilization of business concerns located within the Travis County boundaries.

1. Implement procedures to notify Section 3 residents and business concerns about
training and employment opportunities generated by Section 3 covered assistance.

2. Implement procedures to notify Section 3 business concerns about the availability of
contracting and subcontracting opportunities generated by Section 3 covered
assistance.

3. Use notification methods to reach a broad segment of Section 3 residents that may
include advertising in local advertising media, placing signs at the project site,
contacting the Travis County Housing Authority, and contacting community
organizations, employment agencies, and other public or private institutions operating
and servicing the project area.

4. Notify potential contractors and subcontractors contemplating work on Section 3
covered projects of their responsibilities.

5. Incorporate the Section 3 Clause (verbatim) into all covered solicitations and contracts
as per Section 24 CFR Part 135.38.

6. Refrain from entering into contracts with contractors or subcontractors that are in
violation of the Section 3 regulations.

7. Appoint or recruit a staff member to act as Equal Opportunity Officer to coordinate the
implementation of this plan.

8. Submit quarterly reports as required by the Travis County CDBG program reporting
Section 3 employment activities.

9. Maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which
document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken.

We, the officers I representatives of

____________________________,

have read and fully agree to
this plan, and agree to become a party to the full implementation of this program.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized, has caused this document to be
executed in its name on the

______

day of

____________________, ____

Signature of Authorized Representative Title

71

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-3: Section 3 Definitions

Employment Opportunities Generated by Section 3 Covered Assistance — all employment
opportunities generated by the expenditure of Section 3 covered projects including management
and administrative jobs. Management and administrative jobs include architectural,
engineering, or related professional services required to prepare pians, drawings, specifications,
or work write-ups; and jobs directly related to administrative support of these activities, e.g.
construction manager, relocation specialist, payroll clerk, etc.

Low Income Person — families (including single persons) whose incomes do not exceed 80% of
the area median family income, with adjustments for smaller and larger families.

New Hires — full-time employees for permanent, temporary, or seasonal employment
opportunities.

Section 3 — Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 USC
1701u)

Section 3 Business Concern — a business concern,
a. That is 51% or more owned by Section 3 residents; or

b. Whose permanent, full-time employees include persons, at least 30-percent of whom are
currently Section 3 residents, or within three years of the date of first employment with
the business concern were Section 3 residents; or

c. That provides evidence of a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25% of the dollar
award of all subcontractors to be awarded to business concerns that meet the
qualifications set forth in paragraph “a” or “b” above.

72

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Section 3 Definitions (continued)

Section 3 Covered Assistance —

a. Assistance provided under any HUD housing or community development program that
is expended for work arising in connection with the construction, reconstruction,
conversion, or rehabilitation of housing (including reduction and abatement of lead-
based paint hazards), other public construction which includes buildings or
improvements (regardless of ownership) assisted with housing or community
development funds.

b. Public housing development assistance provided pursuant to Section 4 of the 1937 Act;

c. Public housing operating assistance provided pursuant to Section 9 of the 1937 Act;

d. Public housing modernization assistance provided pursuant to Section 14 of the 1937 Act;

Section 3 Covered Contracts — a contract or subcontract (including a professional service
contract) awarded by a recipient or contractor for work generated by the expenditure of Section
3 covered assistance, or for work generated by the expenditures of Section 3 covered assistance,
or for work arising in connection with a Section 3 covered project. Section 3 covered contracts do
not include contracts for the purchase of supplies and materials. However, whenever a contract
for materials includes the installation of the materials, the contract constitutes a Section 3
covered contract.

Section 3 Resident — a public housing resident or an individual who resides in the metropolitan
area or non-metropolitan county in which the Section 3 covered assistance is expended and who
is considered to be a low to very-low income person.

Subcontractor — any entity (other than a person who is an employee of the contractor) which has
a contract with a contractor to undertake a portion of the contractor’s obligation for the
performance of work generated by the expenditure of Section 3 covered assistance, or arising in
connection with a Section 3 covered project.

Very low-income person — families (including eligible single persons) whose income does not
exceed 50% of the area median family income, with adjustments for smaller and larger families.

73

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-4: Resident Employment Opportunity Data

Eligibility for Preference

A section 3 resident seeking the preference in training and employment provided by this
part shall certify, or submit evidence to the recipient contractor or subcontractor, if
requested, that the person is a Section 3 resident, as defined in Section 135.5. (An example
of evidence of eligibility for the preference is evidence of receipt of public assistance, or
evidence of participation in a public assistance program).

Certification for Resident Seeking Section 3 Preference in Training and Employment

I,

_________________________________________,

am a legal resident of the

_________________________________________________

and meet the income eligibility
guidelines for a low- or very-low-income person as published on the reverse.
My permanent address is:

I have attached the following documentation as evidence of my status:
o Copy of lease o Copy of receipt of public assistance
o Copy of Evidence of participation o Other evidence

in a public assistance program.

Signature

______________________________

Print Name Date

_________________________

74

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-5: Section 3 Report

Agency and Contractor Information

Subrecipient /Contractor/Subcontractor Project Name:
Name:

Contract Amount:

Report Date: Contact Person Name:

Phone Number:

Indicate the efforts you made to direct the employment and other economic opportunities generated by the
CDBG financial assistance to the greatest extent feasible, toward low-and very low income persons,
particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for housing. (Check all that apply.)

Attempted to recruit low income residents through: local advertising media, signs prominently
displayed at the project site, contacts with community organizations and public or private
agencies operating within the metropolitan area (or non-metropolitan county) in which the
Section 3 covered project is located or similar methods
Participated in a HUD program or other program which promotes the training or employment of
Section 3 residents
Participated in a HUD program or other program that promotes the award of contracts to
businesses that meet the definition of a Section 3 business.

_________

Coordinated with Youthbuild Programs administered in the metropolitan area in which the
Section 3 covered projects is located.

__________

Other; describe below.

75

Part 1

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Part II Information Reardin Aency/ Contractor Employment
Subrecipient I I Project Name:

Contractor/Subcontractor Name: Contact Person Name:

Report Date: Phone Number:

For Subrecipients: Did your agency receive $200,000 or
Yes No

more of CDBG funds for this project?

For ContractorslConsultants: Is your contract in excess of

$100,000? If yes continue, if no then stop. (note for

subcontractors: Section 3 applies if the primary contract

exceeds $100,000)

Were there any new hires by your organization that were
Yes No

generated in connection with the CDBG award/project? “New

hire” is defined as full time positions that are either

permanent, temporary or seasonal. A new hire can be for a

new position or replacement of an existing position that

became vacant. If yes, please complete the following table in

its entirety. If no, then stop.

Number of
% of Aggregate

%of Total Staff
Number Number of Staff Number of Section 3

New Hires
Job Category of New

that are Sec
Hours of New Hires

Hours for Section 3
Employees and

that are Section 3
Employees and

TraineesHires
3 Residents Trainees

Residents

Professionals

Technicians

Office/Clerical

Construction by Trade

(List)

Trade

Trade

Trade

Other (List)

Total

Section 3 resident/employee definition: A resident ofpublic housing (regardless of income), or an

individual residing in the metropolitan area or non metropolitan county in which the CDBG assistance
is expended and whose income is below 80% ofthe metropolitan or county median income as published
by HUD.

76

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Exhibit 10
Attachment 10-6: Section 3 Certification

(to be added to the contract)

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that
employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by
Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons
who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which implement Section 3. As
evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other
impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative or workers with which the contractor has a
collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers’
representative of the contractor’s commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can
see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject
to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the
person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.

D. The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24
CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this
Section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The
contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135.

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the
contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations
of 24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor’s
obligations under 24 CFR part 135.

F. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for
default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.

G. With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, section 7(b) of the
Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act.

H. (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest
extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference
in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic
Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but
not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

The contractor also agrees to adopt a Local Opportunity Plan, maintain documentation to support its implementation and
report not less than a quarterly basis the results of their Section 3 efforts.

77

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Certification

“I certify that I understand and will follow the Section 3 requirements presented above and have the capacity to comply,
document, and report as necessary.”

WARNING: Falsifying information on this certification is a felony. HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction
may result in civil and/or criminal penalties. (18 U.S.C. § 1001, 1010, 1012, 3559, 3571; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802).

Name of Contractor:

_______________________________

By:

Title:

______________________________________________

Date:

________________________________

78

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 11
Travis County

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Information to Assist with CCR and

D-U-N-S Number Registration

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (the “Transparency Act” or “FFATA”)
requires that all primary grant awardees and their first tier grant awardees create and/or validate
existing Central Contractor Registration (CCR) and Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)
registration data to be eligible for federal funds. All primary grant awardees must be registered, and
ensure that their first tier awardees register immediately, following the guidance outlined below.

What is CCR? The Central Contractor Registration (CCR) is the primary contractor database for
the US Federal Government. CCR collects, validates, stores and disseminates data in support of
agency acquisition missions. (Since October 1, 2003, it is Federally mandated that any organization
wishing to do business with the Federal government under a Federal Acquisition Regulation
(FAR)-based contract must be registered in CCR before being awarded a contract.) Because CCR is
a Federally mandated and funded program, there is no cost to registrants for registering in CCR.
Further detailed information on CCR is available at this URL: http://www.ccr.gov/FAO.aspx

• What is a D-U-N-S number and who provides it? Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) maintains a business
database containing information on more than 100 million businesses worldwide. D&B provides a
D-U-N-S number, a unique 9-digit identification number, for each physical location of a business
organization. D-U-N-S Number assignment is free for all businesses required to register with the
U.S. Federal government for contracts or grants. The D-U-N-S number is used by the
www.FederalReporting.gov solution to identify business organizations. Further detailed
information on D&B is available at this URL: http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform.

Registering for a DUNS Number

1. To verify or register for a DUNS number, go to the Dun & Bradstreet Web site at:
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do

2. The following information will be needed to obtain a DUNS number:
a. Name of organization

b. Organization address

c. Name of CEO/organization owner

d. Legal structure of the organization (corporation, partnership, proprietorship)
e. Year the organization started

79

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
f. Primary type of business

g. Total number of employees (full and part time)

Registering in CCR

1. To register with CCR, you can apply by phone (1-888-227-2423) or register online at
http://www.ccr.gov.

2. If your organization is already registered, take note of who is listed as your E-Business Point of
Contact (E-Biz POC). For applications being submitted through Grants.gov, this person will be
responsible for authorizing who within your organization has the responsibility to submit
applications.

3. The following information will be needed to register in CCR:

a. DUNS number

b. Tax Identification Number (TIN) and Taxpayer name used in federal tax matters

c. Statistical information about your organization

d. Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) information for payment of invoices

Frequently Asked Questions

• How long will it take to receive a DUNS number? You usually receive a DUNS number within
the same day.

• How long will it take for my information to activate in CCR? CCR takes one to three days to
gather the internal organization information and prepare the application. If your organization
already has an Employer Identification Number (EIN) or Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN),
then you should allow a minimum of 48 hours to complete the entire CCR registration.

If your organization does not have an EIN or TIN, then you should allow two weeks for obtaining
the information from IRS when requesting the EIN or TIN via phone or Internet. The reason for
the one-to three-day delay is due to security information that needs to be mailed to the
organization.

For More Information on the DUNS and CCR registration process, visit www.Grants.gov

80

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

EXHIBIT 11
DUNS!CCR Certification

(Federally-Funded Projects)

The undersigned is an authorized representative of a contractor or subcontractor performing work on a Travis
County project that is partially or wholly funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“FRJD”) and makes the following certifications:

1. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (“the Transparency Act” or
“FFATA”) requires that all contractors and subcontractors who provide services for federally-
funded projects must report at USAspending.gov (www.USAspending.gov).

2. The undersigned understands that the contractor/subcontractor is prohibited from contractually
obligating project funds until potential subcontractors are reported to Travis County and the
County provides clearance of the subcontractor.

3. The undersigned understands that the contractor/subcontractor has not entered into any contracts
with any subcontractors which have not been cleared by the County.

4. The contractor/subcontractor has obtained a DUNS number and is currently registered in the
Central Contractor Registration database (www.ccr.gov)

5. The undersigned understands that the County may withhold payment for the
contractor/subcontractor’s failure to comply with FFATA reporting requirements.

6. The contractor and its subcontractors have the ability to obtain a DIJNS number, maintain
current registration in the CCR database, and comply with all FFATA reporting requirements.

7. The contractor/subcontractor will furnish all information and reports required by federal and
state law.

WARNING: Falsifying information on this certification is a felony. HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction
may result in civil and/or criminal penalties. (18 U.S.C. § 1001, 1010, 1012, 3559, 3571; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802).

For:

________________________________________________________________

(Name of Contractor)

By:

______________________________________________

(Typed Name of Authorized Representative — Responsible Corporate Officer, General Partner, or Sole Proprietor)

Signature:

__________________________________________

Date:

_____________________________________________

81

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
EXHIBIT 12

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM
CONTRACTOR ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION FORM

Complete one form for each Contractor AND Subcontractor PRIOR to entering into a contractual agreement.

Project Name:

_________________________

Contract Amount $________

The following company is being considered as a possible (check one):

Prime Contractor Subcontractor

The firm is a: (check all that apply):

Sole Proprietorship .__Partnership Corporation

Owner/Operator __Woman Owned Business __Section 3 Business Concern*
(include documentation)

HUB (Historically Underutilized Business)

Company’s full legal name:

_______________________________________________

Company’s Tax ID #___________________ DUNS #

________________

CCR Registration

Business Address:

Company’s Contact for Wage Compliance questions:

Name:______________________________________ Title:

___________________________________

Phone# ‘r FaxNo

_________________________

E-mail address:

____________________________________________________

Company Principals:
Name Title Phone Number

Submit completed form to Travis County, Health and Human Services Department (HHSIVS), CDBG Program, P.O. Box
1748, Austin, Texas, 78767, or fax to 512-854-4115 to the attention of the CDBG Program. For questions or to obtain
more information regarding the use of this form, contact Christy Moffett at 512-854-3460.

The prime or any subcontractors are prohibited from entering into any formal agreements or have a

subcontractor begin work on a project until the Travis County Purchasing Office provides notice that the
subcontractor has been cleared.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:
Verifications completed:
Not on the GSA “List of Excluded Parties” Date:___________ BY:

____________________

Accurate DUNS Number Date:___________ BY:

____________________

Registered with CCR Date:___________ BY:

____________________

Section 3 Business Date:____________ BY:

_____________________

Clearance sent to Purchasing: Date:____________ BY:

_____________________

82

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
APPENDIX A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER
FOR

LAKE OAK ESTATES SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT: Lake Oaks Substandard Road Improvements
LIMITS: Various Streets (N. Meadowlark St., Holly Lane, Bowling Lane, Cavalier

Canyon Dr., Covenant Canyon Trail, Unnamed Road 222 and Unnamed
Road 224)

COUNTY: Travis County
PROJECT LENGTH: Varies

The Engineer will provide the following engineering services required for the preparation of plans,
specifications, and estimates (PS&E), and any related documents necessary for PS&E preparation
for the construction of the Lake Oaks Subdivision Substandard Roads (North Meadowlark St., Holly
Lane, Bowling Lane, Cavalier Canyon Dr., Covenant Canyon Trail, Unnamed Road 222 and
Unnamed Road 224) in Travis County. The project is located within the City of Lakeway ETJ and
Travis County, Precinct 3. The project includes the preparation of design schematic, meeting with
affected property owners, public meeting, roadway design, hydrology and hydraulics, signing and
pavement markings and preparation of environmental document in compliance with NEPA criteria.

The construction plan set for this project will contain the required drawings and details pertaining to
roadway design, storm water drainage system analysis and design (may include water quality and
detention), and; preparing construction documents; completing land surveys, geotechnical
investigations and reports with analysis needed for pavement design, and alignment and intersection
plans and analysis; developing roadway signage and pavement marking plans, traffic control plans,
and plans for landscaping; designing and/or coordinating utility relocations; completing environmental
assessments and mitigation plans; monitoring project cost and applying cost recovery methodologies
such as value engineering; preparing and executing project management, risk reduction and QAIQC
plans; attending and leading public meetings; determining requirements for right-of-way and
easements, preparing schematic and final easement parcel exhibits, and acquiring all appropriate
regulatory permits and clearances. The above-described plan set will be prepared in English units,
and will be suitable for the bidding and award of a contract through Travis County. This project will be
completed in two phases. There will be two plan sets for the project with approximately half of the
roads to be completed on each plan set.

Services related to the design and plan production for this project will be performed in accordance
with the latest available TxDOT design manuals. City of Austin details and specifications will be used
for the erosion control. The roadway will be designed based on Local Road (2 lanes), and the design
speed will be 30 MPH or less if 30 MPH is not feasible.

The Engineer will establish a roadway geometry model and perform earthwork and paving quantity
calculations using GEOPAK. The CADD and GEOPAK criteria files, which comprise the geometry
model, will be provided to Travis County at the completion of the project. This project will be

83

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
developed using Microstation V8 and GEOPAK 2004.

Hydraulic designs and calculations for storm drains and hydraulics will be performed with PC-based
hydraulic models such as WinStorm, GEOPAK Drainage, HECRAS, HEC-HMS, or other hydraulic
models approved in advance by Travis County. Manual calculation checks of culvert hydraulics will
be performed on specific structures at the request of the county.

The services for the PS&E production will be performed according to the schedule in Exhibit C and
will include the tasks and products more fully described in the following Task Outline.

The required work products include Work Product 1, 30% complete design documents; Work Product
2, 60% complete design documents; Work Product 3, 90% complete design documents; and Work
Product 4, the 100% bid-ready set of construction documents. Each Work Product will be submitted
for review and written notice-to-proceed must be issued by the County Purchasing Agent before
proceeding to the next Work Product. The review process will consist of submitting six (6) sets of the
plans (ll”X17”) as agreed by the County project manager and the Engineer in the early stages of the
project, specifications, and estimates of probable construction costs to TNR when the design is 30%,
60%, 90% and 100% completed. Each submittal shall include a cover letter from the consultant
stating who from their design team performed a Quality Assurance/Quality Control Check. Allow two
weeks for TNR to review and provide written comments and/or approval for each submittal. Submit
two final check sets and allow three weeks for TNR to review and provide written comments and/or
approval. Environmental review will take three weeks.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

1. Attend Project Kick-off Meeting
2. Provide Contract Administration
3. Provide Project Management
4. Coordinate with Travis County
5. Coordinate with property owners
6. Prepare project correspondence
7. Update project schedule
8. Prepare project progress report
9. Prepare project invoices

QUALITY ASSURANCE & QUALITY CONTROL

1. Perform QA/QC for 30%
2. Perform QA/QC for 60%
3. Perform QA/QC for 90%
4. Perform QA/QC for 100%

PRELIMINARY DESIGN

1. Conduct site visit and prepare inventory of existing features within project area
2. Prepare Photo Log
3. Establish Design Criteria
4. Obtain existing available information pertaining to the project
5. Prepare the Design Summary Report (DSR)

84

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
6. Attend and participate in the Design Concept Conference
7. Prepare minutes of the DCC
8. Prepare preliminary cost estimate
9. Perform Value Engineering
10. Perform soil core holes for pavement design

The soil borings will be properly backfilled with bentonite chips and a single lift of cold patch asphalt
where applicable. The soil samples will be obtained using shelby tubes and/or split-spoon samplers.
Field-testing of soil samples will include pocket penetrometer in the cohesive soils and Standard
Penetration Test (SPT) in the cohesionless soils.

All the field sampling and laboratory tests will be performed according to typical geotechnical
standards, where applicable, or with other well established procedures. The Engineer will perform
appropriate laboratory tests on soil samples recovered from the borings. Laboratory testing will
include moisture content, liquid limit, plastic limit, unconfined compression, and particle size analysis
tests. In addition, the Engineer will test for sulfate content of the subgrade samples. The Engineer
will also provide a cement series test to recommend the percentage of cement necessary for the
base/H MAC recycling.

The Engineer will provide geotechnical analysis needed for pavement design. Additional detail
regarding pavement design scope follows.

Pavement Design
The Engineer will prepare a pavement section to achieve a 20-Year Design Life. Existing paved roads
will be overlayed with 1.5 inch HMAC. The county will approve the paving materials to be considered.
The pavement design will include consideration of traffic loads to be provided to the Engineer, lab test
results, borings and NDT analyses. The TxDOT pavement design procedure will be followed, using
FPS2I analysis program. The traffic data required includes current and projected traffic counts and
truck percentages.

Because the roads are existing and critical information needs to be obtained regarding any variations
in subgrade support and in-place pavement strength, the Engineer proposes to utilize nondestructive
deflection testing (NDT) with the Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD). The use of NDT is crucial for
consideration of overlays to accurately account for the in-place strength of the existing pavement. The
data will be used to finalize boring locations to ensure geotechnical data is collected for any changes
in subgrade conditions or pavement layer changes as identified in profiles of the NDT data.

With only five (5) borings, generally one per street, use of NDT to locate the borings is important to
assess weak areas to confirm adequate thickness for recycling consideration and to determine if
overlay is appropriate for the weakest/thinnest pavement sections. The data will be used to calculate
subgrade design parameters, as per TxDOT requirements as well as the existing pavement strength
for consideration of overlay design.

Engineering Report
The Engineer anticipates providing geotechnical and pavement design report for use on the project.
The following items will be included in the Engineer’s geotechnical report:

a) Site Vicinity map,
b) Geology map,
c) Plan of borings,

85

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
d) Boring logs,
e) Laboratory test results summary,
f) Groundwater conditions,
g) Generalized subsurface conditions,
h) Pavement thickness designs (one overlay and one reconstruction/recycle option), and
i)General earthwork recommendations.

ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES AND PUBLIC INVOLVMENT

The Engineer will prepare an environmental assessment document to qualify the project as a
Categorical Exclusion. The Environmental Assessment will be included with the Categorical Exclusion
Worksheet to be signed by the Travis County Judge.

1. Project Management, Communications, Quality Assurance and Quality Control

Hours have been included for project management, coordination, and communications to ensure
overall project efficiency. Quality Assurance and Quality Control reviews will take place for all
subm itta Is.

2. Preparation of an Environmental Assessment to qualify the project as a Categorical
Exclusion

An Environment Assessment will be prepared to comply with 24 CFR Part 58.5, Environmental
Review Procedures for Entities Assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities. Major parts of the
document are identified as subtasks as noted below.

2.1. Prolect Description and Need
The document will include a project description and an explanation of the purpose of and need for the
project.

2.2 Descriptions of Alternatives
Descriptions of project alternatives will be prepared, including No Action and Proposed Action
alternatives. The descriptions will be based on engineering information.

2.3 Affected Environment and Impacts
Components of the affected environment to include land use, historic preservation, floodplains, water
quality, wetlands and waters of the U.S., Coastal Zone Management, sole source aquifers,
vegetation, threatened and endangered species, Wild And Scenic Rivers, air quality, farmland
protection, environmental justice, hazardous materials, noise, and airport clear zones/ accident
potential zones will be described, per HUD requirements. Effects of the project alternatives on the
existing natural and cultural resources will be evaluated. This will include effects of the alternatives
on components of the environment and a comparison of impacts between the alternatives.

Land Use
The total land area that will be disturbed by construction and/or directly or indirectly impacted by the
project will be quantified by land use/soil type. If necessary, Form AD-1006 will be completed with the
required input from the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). Determine whether the
proposed project is located within 2,500 feet of a civilian airport runway or within 8,000 feet of a
military airport runway.

86

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

Historic Preservation
As the proposed project will take place on land to be owned and controlled by Travis County, a
political subdivision of the State of Texas, the project is required to comply with the Antiquities Code
of Texas (ACT). Additionally, the project will receive funding through HUD, necessitating coordination
under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) of 1966, as amended. Identify
previously designated historic resources (including archeological sites and sites listed on the National
Register of Historic Places) in the project area, and will coordinate with the Texas Historical
Commission to determine whether field survey is necessary. If surveys are required, this task would
be accomplished under a separate scope and budget.

Floodplains
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)
floodplain data will be accessed to determine whether the site is within the 100 year floodplain.

Water Quality
A discussion of the project area hydrologic data, including watershed/river basin information and
water quality, and a description of the project area surface water features, will be included. The
proposed project is not located over the Edwards Aquifer transition, contributing, or recharge zones.
The Engineer will describe the relevant TCEQ issues for compliance and provide coordination
assistance if necessary.

Wetlands and Waters of the US
The baseline data collection will determine whether the project area includes waters of the U.S.
including wetlands that are subject to U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) jurisdiction. This will
be accomplished through the use of National Wetland Inventory (NWI) maps and field
reconnaissance. While a review of the maps and aerial photography near the proposed project
indicates that jurisdictional waters of the U.S. will not likely be impacted, this will be confirmed in the
field. If jurisdictional wetlands are identified, documentation according to USACE protocol under
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act will be prepared. It is not anticipated that any additional
coordination with the USACE will be required at this site.

Vegetation
The Engineer will characterize project area vegetation, including the relative amount of each
vegetation type, based on existing literature and a site investigation. Impacts to vegetation will be
quantified by type.

Threatened and Endangered Species
The Engineer will review the lists of designated T&E species for Travis County prepared by the Texas
Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) as well as the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). The
Engineer will also submit a request to search the TPWD Texas Natural Diversity Database (TxNDD)
for known occurrences of species of concern in the specific vicinity project area. The Engineer will
evaluate the potential impacts of the proposed project and alternatives on any state or federally
designated T&E species and/or designated critical habitat. A field investigation will be conducted to
determine whether or not any habitat appropriate for listed species is located in the project area.

Air Quality

87

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
The Engineer will review the State Implementation Plan (SIP) to determine which of the proposed
project’s construction activities (if any) must comply with the SIP. Hicks & Company will determine the
status of project area regarding compliance with ambient air quality standards.

Environmental Justice
This portion of the analysis will include baseline socioeconomic information regarding population,
race, income, and English proficiency for Travis County and the Census blocks and block groups in
the vicinity of the project. These efforts will determine whether the project will be located in a minority
or low-income community and whether potential effects will need to be evaluated as an environmental
justice concern. If minority and low-income populations are identified in the project vicinity, The
Engineer will analyze the potential impact of the project that may pose disproportionate environmental
effects to these populations.
Hazardous Materials
An ASTM database search for hazardous materials will be conducted and analyzed for this project. A
summary of known hazardous materials sites in the project vicinity will be presented and the property
will generally be assessed to determine whether hazardous materials appear to present issues for the
project.

Noise
The impact of the noise levels related to the construction and operation of the project at nearby
residences and other locations of frequent human use will be evaluated.

Public Involvement Summary
Summarize public involvement activities to date for inclusion in the environmental document.

3 DOCUMENT PRODUCTION
This task includes word processing, document formatting, design and production of figures, and final
production of document copies.

RIGHT OF WAY AND UTILITIES

1. Perform Utility Coordination with identified utilities

WATER LINE MINOR ADJUSTMENT ANALYSIS & DESIGN

1. DATA COLLECTION — The Engineer will collect and review the existing water line data for the
Lake Oaks subdivision from Travis County WCID #17. The Engineer will conduct field
investigations to review existing valve and appurtenance locations.

2. WATER LINE CONFLICT IDENTIFICATION - The Engineer will review the proposed roadway
improvements and determine potential conflicts with water lines and appurtenances.

3. WATER LINE MINOR ADJUSTMENTS — The Engineer wilt prepare adjustment details for
minor modifications to valve elevations or hydrant locations, as necessary. One Plan Sheet
and One Detail Sheet are anticipated.

ROADWAY DESIGN CONTROLS

88

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW
1. Provide roadway design in accordance with the current edition of AASHTO. The Engineer will

develop roadway geometry and provide plan and profile sheets showing all applicable items
from the following list:

A. Calculated roadway centerlines for streets. Show horizontal control points.
B. Pavement edges for all improvements
C. Lane and pavement width dimensions
D. Locations, lengths, and widths of proposed structures
E. Traffic flow direction on all roadways. Show lane lines and/or arrows indicating the

number of lanes.
F. Existing right of way lines, and all easements
G. Begin and end superelevation transitions and cross-slope changes
H. Limits of rip-rap, block sod, and seeding
I. Locations of existing structures
J. Benchmark information
K. Calculated profile grade
L. Vertical and horizontal curve data
M. Existing and proposed profiles along the centerline
N. Water surface elevations for 10-, 25-, 50-, and 100- year storms
0. Locations of known subsurface utilities
P. Subgrade elevations at profile grade lines and ditch flow lines, labeled with offsets and

elevations
Q. Locations of proposed and existing drainage features

2. Title Sheet
3. Index of Sheets
4. Project Layout
5. Develop Typical Sections
6. Establish Horizontal Alignments
7. Establish Roadway Geometry
8. Establish Vertical Alignments
9. Establish roadway super-elevation
10. Develop design cross-sections for all roadways. Submit design cross-sections in electronic

format and on 11 “x 17” paper sheets. Provide the following details for each section, as
applicable:

A. Widths of all travel lanes, shoulders, outer separations, borders, curb offsets, and rights
of way.

B. Control lines including profile grade line
C. Existing natural ground line, finished grade line, and subgrade elevations at profile

grade lines and ditch flow lines. Label all control lines with offsets and elevations.
D. Limits of sodding/seeding, riprap, embankments, and excavations
E. Locations and identification of proposed structures such as retaining walls
F. Extents and geometry for all side slopes

11. Prepare Horizontal Alignment Data Sheet
12. Prepare Plan & Profile Sheets
13. Cross Sections (100 feet intervals)
14. Intersection Detail Sheets
15. Driveway Summary Table
16. Summary of Quantities

89

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO1 34JW

HYDROLOGY AND HYDRAULICS

1. DATA COLLECTION — The Engineer will collect and review the existing drainage data for the
Lake Oaks subdivision. The Engineer will conduct field investigations to observe existing
runoff and channel characteristics.

2. HYDROLOGY I EXTERIOR DRAINAGE AREA MAPS — The Engineer will compute existing
and proposed conditions hydrology using HEC-HMS to establish flow rates at all locations
where runoff leaves the subdivision.

3. HYDROLOGY I INTERIOR DRAINAGE AREA — The Engineer will compute peak flow rates at
interior locations of interest throughout the subdivision using HEC-HMS or the Rational
Method, where appropriate.

4. HYDRAULICS — The Engineer will compute existing and proposed conditions roadside
channel hydraulics using normal depth computations. The Engineer will compute culvert
hydraulics using FHWA HY-8. Culverts will be designed for the 25 year storm event, and
checked for the 100 year storm. If 25 year storm is not feasible, the engineer will seek
approval by the county to use a lesser frequency.

5. CULVERT LAYOUTS AND HYDRAULIC DATA SHEETS — The Engineer will prepare
preliminary culvert layouts and hydraulic data sheets for the cross drainage structures. Four
culvert crossings are anticipated.

6. ROADWAY PLAN & PROFILE, CROSS SECTION COORDINATION — The Engineer will
coordinate to optimize the roadway design to accommodate the drainage requirements of the
subdivision, including such elements as valley gutters, driveway culverts and gutters, and
roadway cross slope.

7. DRAINAGE REPORT — The Engineer will prepare a comprehensive drainage study and a
signed, sealed and dated report of the project. Create 1”=lOOO’ drainage area map for report.
Produce Hydraulic Data Sheets.

SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS

1. Prepare Signing and pavement markings Layout
2. Prepare Small Signs Details
3. Determine Pavement Markings Quantities
4. Prepare Pavement Markings Summary
5. Prepare Signing Summary
6. Prepare Signing & Pavement Markings Miscellaneous Details

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Prepare Title Sheet
2. Prepare Index Sheet
3. Prepare Project Layout Sheet
4. Prepare Traffic Control Plan and Sequence of Construction

90

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
5. Prepare Temporary and Permanent Erosion Control Plan
6. Prepare Construction Cost Estimates
7. Determine TCP Quantities
8. Prepare TCP Summary Sheets
9. Develop Construction Sequence Narrative
10. Advance Warning Signs Layout
11. Develop Construction Time Estimate
12. Prepare General Notes
13. Prepare Special Specifications
14. Identify and Select Standard Details

PS&E ASSEMBLY

1. Prepare Contract Documents

DELIVERABLES ITEMS REQUIRED FROM THE ENGINEER

1. Provide to the County an electronic deliverable (CD ROM) of all design documents (including
standard drawings) for this project at the project’s completion.

2. Provide to the County two (2) copies of the preliminary and final retaining wall layouts, typical
sections, and construction phasing details.

3. The Engineer will make 30%, 60%, 90% and 100% PS&E submittals. The 60% and 90%
submittals are intended as a means of obtaining County review comments which will be
addressed in the final 100% submittal.

4. Assemble plans for project milestones. Submit the following:
A. Five reproducible paper (11” xl 7”) copies of the plans to the County Project Manager at

the 30%, 60%, 90%, and 100% design completion stages.
B. One electronic copy of the plans in .PDF format to the County Project Manager.

5. Included in milestone submittals:

A. 30% Review Submittal
Tile Sheet
Index of Sheets
Typical Sections
Traffic Control Typical Sections
Traffic Control Concept
Preliminary Roadway Plan & Profile Sheets
Preliminary Hydraulic Report
Draft Environmental Document
Draft Pavement Report
Cross Sections
Engineer’s Estimate

B. 60% Review Submittal
Final Environmental Assessment
Title Sheet
Index of Sheets
Typical Sections
Traffic Control Typical Sections

91

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
Traffic Control Plans
Roadway Plan & Profile Sheets
Roadway and Intersection Detai Is
Drainage Area Maps
SWPPP Sheets
Temporary Erosion Control Sheets
Permanent Erosion Control Sheets
Signing and Marking Sheets
Standards
Cross Sections
Engineer’s Estimate

C. 90% Review Submittal and 100% Submittal
Tile Sheet
Index of Sheets
Summaries
General Notes, Specifications, and Construction Schedule
Typical Sections
Traffic Control Typical Sections
Traffic Control Plans
Roadway Plan & Profile Sheets
Roadway and Intersection Details
Drainage Area Maps
SWPPP Sheets
Temporary Erosion Control Sheets
Permanent Erosion Control Sheets
Signing and Marking Sheets
Standards
Specifications
Cross Sections
Engineer’s Estimate

Deliverable List

Work Product 1 (30% Design) 90 Calendar Days

Project Kick-off Meeting
Data Collection for Pavement Design
Data Collection for Environmental Document
Data Collection for Utilities
Data Collection for Drainage
Preliminary Cover Sheet
Preliminary Typical Section
Preliminary Roadway Layout for entire project
Preliminary Traffic Control Concept for entire project
Preliminary Cross Sections
Identify Limits of Construction
Preliminary Easement Locations
Preliminary Cost Estimate

92

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
Draft Pavement Report
Draft Environmental Document
Preliminary list of permits
Public Meeting
Update Design Schedule
QA/QC Mark ups

Work Product 2 (60% Design) 60 Calendar Days

Complete Environmental Document
Completed Pavement Report
Completed Drainage Report
Cover Sheet
Typical Sections
Preliminary General Notes
Traffic Control Sheets
Narrative Sequence of Construction
Plan & Profile Sheets
Cross Sections
Drainage Area Maps
Drainage Calculation Sheets
Drainage Layout Sheets
Cost Estimate
Final list of permits
Preliminary ROW Strip Maps
Construction Time Estimate
Update Design Schedule
QAIQC Mark ups

Work Product 3 (90% Design) 30 Calendar Days

Complete Plan Set
Standard Details
Cross Sections
Specifications
Utility relocation plan
Construction Time Estimate
Final ROW or Easement Documents
QAIQC Mark ups

Work Product 4 (100% Design) 30 Calendar Days

Complete Plan set (Sealed and Signed by PE) two copies
Complete Plan Set (Sealed and Signed by PE) in PDF format
Redlined marked up set
Final Specifications and Special Conditions
Final Cost Estimate

Work Product 5 (Construction Phase Services) To be determined at later date

93

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY

FOR
LAKE OAKS ESTATES SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT: Lake Oaks Estates Substandard Road Improvements
LIMITS: Various Streets (N. Meadowlark St., Holly Lane, Bowling Lane, Cavalier

Canyon Dr., Covenant Canyon Trail, Unnamed Road 222 and Unnamed
Road 224)

COUNTY: Travis County
PROJECT LENGTH: Varies

The County will provide the following services required for the preparation of plans, specifications,
and estimates (PS&E), and any related documents necessary for PS&E preparation for the
construction of the Lake Oaks Subdivision Substandard Roads (North Meadowlark St., Holly Lane,
Bowling Lane, Cavalier Canyon Dr., Covenant Canyon Trail, Unnamed Road 222 and Unnamed
Road 224) in Travis County. The project is located within the City of Lakeway ETJ and Travis
County, Precinct 3. The project includes the preparation of design schematic, meeting with affected
property owners, public meeting, roadway design, hydrology and hydraulics, signing and pavement
markings and preparation of environmental document in compliance with NEPA criteria.

The County will provide to or perform for the Engineer the following items, as appropriate:

1. Horizontal and vertical control sheet provided by Travis County Surveyor.

2. Travis County Substandard Roads Design requirements

3. Topographic information gathered and base map in electronic format.

4. Sample of control sketch and overall sketch for control monuments will be part of the
horizontal and vertical control sheets.

5. Travis County will supply a copy of the existing plat.

6. Applicable special specifications, special provisions, Travis County standard general notes,
and latest bid tabulations.

7. Travis County design standard drawings, and standard summary and border sheets.

8. Timely reviews, and decisions necessary for the Engineer to maintain the agreed upon work
schedule.

9. Coordinate and notify local Emergency Medical Services, local school districts, the U.S.
Postal Service, and other local entities in writing of any detour routes/roadway closures.
The Engineer shall prepare the necessary exhibits.

10. The only approval necessary for the project is for the CDBG survey. Travis County will
assist in obtaining approval of the environmental documentation from HUD.

11. Conduct a Design Kick-Off meeting and provide the Design Elements (DE) form, in
electronic format.

12. Attend 30% Review Meeting, 60% Review Meeting, and 60% Traffic Control Review
Meeting. Minutes to be taken by the engineer.

94

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW
13. Coordination with the Engineer corresponding to drainage and Flood Plains.

14. Conduct field surveying to establish project geometry and control points, including
project baseline, horizontal and vertical control points, and project centerline. Provide
the Engineer with items from the following list, as applicable:

A. Copy of the Field Notes
B. Location of project baseline and centerline, established within accuracy standards
C. All visible utilities included in survey.
D. Survey Control Sheet and Horizontal and Vertical Control Sheet signed, sealed, and

dated by a registered public land surveyor
E. Stake preliminary location of bore holes prior to drilling by the Engineer.
F. Locate and record final bore holes based on station and offset. Also provide elevation

at top of holes.
G. Update topo file to include bore hole information.

95

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



12AEO134JW

APPENDIX B

CONSULTANT’S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

(SEE CONTRACT FILE)

96

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ID# 6607 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Approve Modification No. 7 to Contract No. 
4400000736 (HTE Contract No. PS090110RE),Capital Investing in 
Development and Employment of Adults (IDEA) for Workforce 
Development.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

Through this agreement, Capital Investing in Development and 
Employment of Adults, Inc. (Capital IDEA) provides workforce 
development services in Travis County. 

During the 2011 contract year Capital IDEA left $113,869 of their Travis 
County funding unspent.  This is a result of a drawdown of their state 
funding before the expiration of their Jobs and Education for Texans 
(JET) program. 

Modification No. 7 will award Capital IDEA the unspent 2011 contract 
funding for their Long Term Training Program. The not to exceed 
contract amount will be $913,869; an increase of $113,869 from the 
original contract amount of $800,000. 

Modification No. 6 renewed the contact for an additional one year period 
from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012. Contact funds for 
this renewal period are not to exceed $800,000. 

Modification No. 5 provided for a budget adjustment for 2010 funds.  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 13



ID# 6607 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 4 moved funds between categories; no change to total 
funding amount.  

Modification No. 3 renewed the contract for an additional year, from 
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. Contract funds for the renewal 
period are not to exceed $700,213. 

Modification No. 2 allocated $30,000 to services provided between 
January 1, 2010 and September 30, 2010, and corrected the description 
of fiscal year limitations on the remaining funds.  

Modification No. 1 renewed the contract for an additional year, from 
January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010. Contract funds for the renewal 
period were not to exceed $700,213. 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $ 262,664 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information:   
Award Amount: $700,213  
Contract Type: Professional Services  
Contract Period: January 1, 2009 - December 31, 2009    

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $113,869   
Modification Type:   Bilateral  
Modification Period: January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012  

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 
Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations: N/A  

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ID# 6607 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 1000002279 
  Funding Account(s): 001-5891-611-6294 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NO. PSO9O11ORE — Workforce Development Page 1 of 13
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Shannon Pleasant DATE PREPARED:

TELEPHONE: 512-854-1181
Travis County Purchasing Office FAX: 512-854-9185 June 18, 2012
700 Lavaca, Suite 800,
Austin, Texas 78701

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

Capital Investing in Development and CONTRACT:

Employment of Adults (IDEA), Inc. 7
504 Lavaca, Suite 1008 January 1, 2009
Austin, Texas 78701
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: January 1, 2009- December 31. 2009 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: January 1. 2012- December 31, 2012

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $700.213 Current Modified Amount $ 913,869

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as
heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

The above referenced contract is hereby modified to reflect the following changes, as well, as those more completely set forth in
the attachment:

1. Capital IDEA is requesting the remainder of their unspent FY20 11 Travis County award of
$113,869 for their Long Term Training Program.

2. The not to exceed contract amount will be $913,869. An increase of $113,869 from the original
contract amount of $800,000.

The Contract is amended according to the terms of the attachment to this Modification, all of which is hereby made a part of the
Contract and constitutes promised performances by the Contractor in accordance with all terms of the Contract, as amended.

Note to Vendor:

[ X Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

( J DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

D DBA

D CORPORATION

0 OTHER

LEGAL

BY: Evô fr1Thris-Lieverno
PRINT NAME . DATE.

TITLE: 7)1rdrr’ oI’ C4eri4ims
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS FOUNTY. TEXAS DATE:

BY:44
CYDV. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

‘.,

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No.7
Page 2 of 13

AMENDMENT OF CONTRACT BETWEEN
TRAVIS COUNTY AND

CAPITAL IDEA FOR
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

PARTIES

This Amendment (“Amendment”) of Contract is entered into by the following Parties: Travis County, a political
subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”), and Capital iDEA, a nonprofit agency (“Contractor”).

RECiTALS

County and Contractor entered into an agreement to provide services for the care of indigents, for public health
education and information and/or for other authorized services (“Contract”) the Initial Term of which began January
1, 2009, and terminated December 31, 2009 (“Initial Contract Term”).

Under the Contract, Contractor agreed to provide personal and professional services for the care of indigents and
other qualified recipients and for public health education and information, in accordance with the terms of the
Contract, thus providing services which further a public purpose.

Pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Parties have renewed the Contract for an additional term beginningJanuary 1, 2012, and continuing through December 31, 2012 (“2012 Renewal Term”).

The Contract provides for changes to the agreement by written agreement signed by both Parties, and the Parties
desire to amend the Contract as to the 2012 Renewal Term.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits received by these changes, and other good and
adequate consideration as specified herein, the Parties agree to amend the Contract as follows:

1.0 GENERAL TERMS.

1.1 2012 Renewal Term. The Parties acknowledge the renewal of the Contract for an additional one-
year term beginning January 1, 2012, and terminating December 31, 2012 (“2012 Renewal Term”).

2.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

2.1 Attachments. The Parties agree to amend Section 5.2 of the Contract (“Attachments”), as to the
2012 Renewal Term, by adding the following:

2.2.1 Attachment A Amendment Program Cover Page — Form #2
2.2.2 Attachment B Amendment Program Work Statement - Form # 3
2.2.3 Attachment D Amendment Program Budget - Form #4
2.2.4 Attachment E Amendment Program Budget Nanative — Form # 5
2.2.4 Attachment G Amendment Total Program Funding Summary - Form # 7
2.2.5 Attachment I Amendment Performance Report Definition Tool — Form #9

All attachments included in the 2012 Renewal remain in full force and effect; the attachments listed in this Section
2.1 are services to be provided pursuant to this Amendment which are in addition to those services already required
under the 2012 Renewal.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9OI IOR.E
Modification No. 7
Page 3 of 13

3.0 FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

3.1 2012 Amended Contract Funds. Contract Funds Amount. The Parties agree to amend Section
3.1, ‘Contract Funds Amount,” by adding the following:

3,1-2012—Amendment. Subject to the requirements of the Contract, as amended, in
consideration of the full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities provided by Contractor
under the tenns of the Contract, as determined by County, County shall provide an additional amount
(“Amendment Amount”) not to exceed One Hundred Thirteen Thousand, Eight Hundred Sixty-Nine
Dollars ($113,869.00) for a total amount of Contract Funds not to exceed the following amount during the
2012 Renewal Term as amended herein:

$ 913,869.00

2.2 2012 Amended Maximum Funds. The Parties agree to amend Section 6.1, “Maximum Funds,”
by adding the following:

6.1-2012 - Amendment. Subject to the requirements of this Contract, as amended, County shall
provide Contract Funds not to exceed the following amount during the 2012 Renewal Term:

Original 2012 Renewal Term Amount: $800,000.00
Amendment Amount $113.869.00
Total 2012 Renewal Term Amount $913,869.00

2.3 2012 Amended Fiscal Year Limitations on Funding. The Parties agree to amend Section 6.2.2,
“Fiscal Year Division,” by deleting the original language and substituting the following:

6.2.2(a) and (b) -2012 During the 2012 Renewal Term, the fiscal year limitations under
6.2.2(a) shall be:

(a)-2012 January 1, 2012 - September 30, 2012 (75% of Original Total of $800,000.00)

$ 600,000.00

(b)-2012 October 1,2012 - December 31, 2012

(1) $ 200,000.00 (25% of Original Total of $200,000.00)
(ii) $ 113,869.00 (100% of Amendment Amount)

All other provisions of Section 6.2.2 not specifically changed herein shall remain in full force and effect.

3.0 INCORPORATION

3.1 County and Contractor hereby incorporate the Contract into this Amendment. Except for the changes
made in this Amendment, County and Contractor hereby ratifr all the terms and conditions of the Contract as
amended. The Contract with the changes made in this Amendment constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties and supersedes any prior undertaking or written or oral agreements or representations between the Parties.
All provisions in the Contract not specifically amended herein remain the same and in full force and effect.

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

4.1 This Amendment is effective the date it is signed by the last Party. This Contract, as amended,
shall remain in effect until further modified or terminated in writing by the Parties, or until the termination date.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9OI lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 4 of 13

Funu # 2: PROGRAM COVER PAGE Date prepared: 5/15/2012
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

1. Agency Name as provided in Articles of Incorporation: 2. Tax ID Number:
74-2893041

Capital Investing in Development and Employment of Adults, Inc.

3. Program Name: Prerequisite Enrollment

4. a) Physical Street Address (Street, City, State, Zip): 5. Board President/Chair:
504 Lavaca, Suite 1008, Austin, TX 78701 Name: Mark Mefliar-Smith

4. b) Mailing Address (if different from above): Address: 1807-C West Braker Lane, Austin, TX 78758
P.O. Box 1784, Austin, TX 78767

Email: markmo1ecularimprints.com
4. c) Payee Address (if different from above):
P.O. Box 1784, Austin, TX 78767 Phone: (512) 339-7760 ext. 228

6. Agency Executive Director (name): Steve Jackobs 7. Name ofperson authorized to sign contracts for Agency:
Steve Jackobs

Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 110 Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 110
Fax: (512) 828-6114 Fax: (512) 828-6114
Email: sjackobs@capitalidea.org Email: sjackobs@capitalidea.org

8. Program Director (name): Eva Rios-Lleverino 9. Agency Financial Officer (name): Joan Calman

Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 106 Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 112
Fax: (512) 828-6110 Fax: (512) 282-6118
Email: erios@capitalidea.org Email: jcalman@capitalidea.org

10. Contact person for PROGRAM issues (name): 11. Contact person for FINANCIAL issues (name):
Eva Rios-Lleverino Joan Calman
Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 106 Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 112
Fax: (512)828-6110 Fax: (512)282-6118
Email: erios@capitalidea.org Email: jcalman@capitalidea.org

12. Primary contact for Quarterly Program Performance 13. Person responsible for submitting Quarterly Program
Report issues (name): Travis Johnston Performance Reports (name): Travis Johnston

Phone: (512)457-8610 ext. 127 Phone: (512)457-8610 ext. 127
Email: tjohnston@capitalidea.org Email: tjohnston@capitalidea.org

14. Program funding amounts by source: 15. Primary contact person for this contract packet (name):
Travis County Social Travis Johnston
Service Contract $113,869___________

Position Title: Institutional Relations Officer
AU OTHER Sources + $_2,749,639__________

Phone: (512) 457-8610 ext. 127
TOTAL Program Funding = $2,863,508__________ Fax: (512) 287-3061

Email: tjohnston@capitalidea.org

Travis County Form #2 updated Apnl 2011

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No.’7
Page 5 of 13

Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Date prepared: 5/15/2012

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community.

Agency: Capital IDEA Program: Prerequisite Enrollment

1. Program goals and objectives:
Briefly describe the goals and objectives ofthe services purchased by Travis County in this contract.

Capital IDEA’s goal is to provide long-term educational sponsorship to low-income adults so that they can
reach life-long self-sufficiency by entering high-skilled, high-paying careers.

This contract will specifically focus on participants at the prerequisite level of their training and will span a
three-month period from October 1, 2012— December 31, 2012.

Objectives:

• The number of clients (“active participants”) at the prerequisite level of their training enrolled in
classes during the fall 2012 semester is projected to be 220.

• 80% will successfully complete a prerequisite course during the fall 2012 semester.

2. Program clients served:
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for
example: Travis County residency, income level, age).

Capital IDEA focuses on traditionally disadvantaged populations through its outreach at schools, churches,
homeless resource centers, and low-income communities both in and outside Travis County. Capital IDEA’s
enrollment is extremely diverse:

• 100% low-income
• 82% minority (Asian, African-American, Hispanic or self-identified as Other or Biracial)
• 66% have family responsibilities

Eligibility requirements include:
• Living at or below 200% of Federal Poverty Income Guidelines
• Resident of Central Texas (10-County region)
• U.S. Citizen or permanent resident
• 18 years or older
• Have a high school diploma or GED
• Must not have completed a college degree
• Commitment to give back to the community upon graduating

3. Program services and delivery:
Describe the Travis Countyfunded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding ofyour services and how they are
delivered to clients.

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011 pg. 1 of 4

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9QI lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 6 of 13

In addition to Capital IDEA’s standard services funded by Travis County of outreach, assessment,
counseling, case management, ESOL, specialized education for entry into employer-sponsored training,
THEA preparation, high skill education for targeted occupations, wrap-around services, placement, and
retention, Capital IDEA will provide the following services focused on active participants at the
prerequisite level of their training during the fall 2012 semester:

• Fine-tuning our recruitment efforts and intake process to better educate applicants on the educational
requirements of their chosen career;

• Providing more hands-on case management services to help participants navigate the community
college system;

• Working with ACC to add additional prerequisite classes that are set aside just for Capital IDEA
students — a pilot Anatomy & Physiology course is currently underway;

• Partnering with instructors to identify academic barriers as early as possible, and provide timely and
appropriate intervention, to ensure course completion;

• Improving our database so we can better track participants at the prerequisite level and allow us to
identify further areas of improvement;

• Considering providing additional or increased wrap-around services (child care, transportation
assistance, etc.).

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies:
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe howthe agency collaborates with other agencies. Ifyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what isyourplanfor increasing collaboration?

Capital IDEA and Austin Community College are collaborating closely on improving the performance ofstudents at the prerequisite level, such as the following efforts:

• Working with ACC Department chairs, instructors and staff to get updates on curriculum
changes;

• Providing specialized classes for Capital IDEA students in two courses: Algebra and Anatomy &
Physiology in the fall 2012 semester;

• Providing supplemental instruction (teaching assistants) for students in the above courses.

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual
wording of your measures and their corresponding 3-month goal amounts):
Please enter the outputperformance measures to be reportedforyourprogram. You must report the number ofunduplicated clients served byfunding source and at least one other output. Actual glprogram performance
datafor these outputs will be reported in the quarterlyprogram performance reports.

Travis All Other TOTAL
OUTPUT #1 County Funding Sources (Travis County

Annual Annual Goal + All Other)
Goal Annual Goal

Nu:iher of ciknts enrolled n courses at the 66 .154 220
prerequisite level during the fall 2012
semester

(Ifapprovedfor additional Output measures, copy andpaste the blocks above and re-number accordingly)

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011 pg. 2 of 4

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9OI lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 7 of 13

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue test in the left column below with the actual
wording of your measures’ numerators, denominators, and outcome rates):
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reportedforyourprogram. For any outcome which will L
have a percentage rate, use only thefirst (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column’s shaded
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. LLq..t
Outcome will VOI be reyortal L’irrv qztartcJ, in the riç4n column imficase far i4’hicIt qiiurteriy iepoi’t(’) you
WILL be rej.iortin.ti that measure (fri example, you might report fri Q2 entl Q4 n.J).

Total Program Ifu reported
Total Program Performance — OUTCOME #1 Annual Goal YfY Quarter, in

which Quarter(s)?
Number of clients who completed one or more prerequisite courses during the 176
fall 2012 semester To report by
(numerator) March 15
Total number of clients enrolled in courses at the prerequisite level during the 220
fall 2012 semester
(denominator)

Percentage of clients WiO compkrted o;e or more prerequisbe courses 80%
oaring the fai 2012 semester

(outcome rate)

Total Proaram If reported
Total Program Performance — OUTCOME # 2 Annual Goal L’L Quarter, in

which Quarter(s)?
Number of clients who completed 8 or more hours of prerequisite courses 75
during the fall 2012 semester To report by
(numerator) March 15
Total number of clients enrolled in 8 or more hours of prerequisite courses 100
during the fail 2012 semester
(denominator)
Percentage of clients who completed 8 or more hours of prerequisbe 75%
courses during the fall 2012 semester
(outcome rate)

(Ifapprovedfor additional Outcome measures, copy andpaste the blocks above and re-number accordingly)

7. Community planning activities:
Describe your agency’s involvement in community planning activities that are spec(fic to the sen’ices provided
under this contract.

Capital IDEA engages in planning with the Community Action Network (CAN), Health Industry
Steering Committee (HISC), regional employers, Austin Interfaith, Austin Community College,
Education Austin, St. Edward’s University, and Huston-Tillotson University.

8. Program Evaluation Plan
• Performance evaluation:

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program ‘s performance in achievingprogram goals. Note: ffany
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief
description ofsurveyprocedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom).

Capital IDEA tracks its performance weekly, bi-monthly, quarterly, annually, and upon request. The
agency reports the information — including enrollment, employment, retention, and school performance —

to the Board and to funding agencies. This regular reporting allows constant performance analysis and
improvement. Capital IDEA uses a robust client database managed by Community Tech Knowledge
(CTK) to collect and report data. The database tracks over 250 data elements on each Capital IDEA
applicant and participants. Assessment, counseling, reporting, and administrative staff use the database

directly in everyday work. The validity of the information is tested against documentation by
Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011 pg. 3 of 4

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No. 7
PageS of 13

independent auditors during Capital IDEA’s annual audit. The Institutional Relations Officer is
responsible for reporting performance outputs and outcomes to Travis County.

Quality improvement:
Describe the process for identfying problems or other issues in service deliveiy, designing activities to overcomethese problems, andfollowing up to ensure corrective actions have been effective.

The current focus on improving the performance at the prerequisite levels originated in long-term studies ofCapital IDEA participants. An in-depth analysis by the Aspen Institute of students enrolled between 2003
and 2008 found that those in taking prerequisite healthcare courses dropped from the program at a
significantly higher rate (35%) compared with those in either the College Prep Academy (17%) or in thehealthcare programs (11%).

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011 pg. 4 of 4

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 9 of 13

Date prepared: 511512012
FORM #4: PROGRAM BUDGET

for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County
Agency: _Capital IDEA________________________ Program: _Prerequisite Enrollment_____________

Instructions: Provide whole dollar amounts for each applicable line item. MPORTANT:D0 NOT INCLUDE ANY PROGRAM INCOME.

ON THIS PAGE. Note that the line items with asterisks
**

will require prior approval - Refer to your Contract Language.
IMPOFTANT: A/I $ amounts must be whole ciollors only i’no cents)

Amount Funded * TOTALusedPERSONNEL
COUNFt’Amour’t

by ALL OTHER Budget (ALL
Sources funding sources)

Administrative Salaries - Regular Time 11,221 359,633 370,854

Direct Service Salaries - Regular Time 24,699 543,129 567828

Administrative Salaries Overtime 963 963

Direct Service Salaries - Overtime 922 922

Benefits 12,753 313,968 326,721

A. SUBTOTALS: PERSONNEL 50,558 1,216,730 1,267,288

OPERATING EXPENSES

General Operating Expenses 13,459 311,658 325,117

Insurance/Bonding 569 14,431 15,000

Audit Expenses (provide details for this line item in the
13 500 13 500Subcontracted Expenses form)

Consultants/Contractual (provide details for this line
0item in the Subcontracted Expenses form)

Staff Travel - within Travis County 205 11,545 11,750

Conferences/Seminars/Training - within Travis County 0
**

0Staff Travel - out of County

Conferences/Seminars - out of County 0

B SUBTOTALS OPERATING EXPENSES 14 233 351 134 365 367

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

Food/Beverage for Clients (NOTE; Alcoholic beverage
0exoenditures are not eligible or a/Iowable;

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, mortgage,
2,961 68,429 71,390utilitiesi

Other: Books, Tuition, classroom Fees, Uniforms, Supplies, childcare 46,117 1,113,346 1,159,463

0

C SUBTOTALS DIRECT ASSISTANCE .-. 49 078 1 181 77 1 230 853

EQUIPMENTICAPITAL OUTLAY

(specify equipment) 0 0 0

D SUBTOTALS EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0

GRAND TOTAL (A + B + C + D) 113,869 2,749,639 2,863,508

PERCENT SHARE of Total for Funding Sources: 4.0% 96.0% 100.0%

4-Cnit’iI IflPA 9fl19 Prrirm vk

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 10 of 13

FOR #5: Program Budget Narrative
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Date prepared: 5/15/2012

Agency:_ Capital IDEA_______________ Program: Prerequisite Enrollment________________________
Instructions: Add details below (not to exceed 20 words per line item) to justif’ proposed expenses from your Program Budgetform. DO NOT INCLUDE ANY DOLLAR AMOUNTS OR PERCENTAGES ON THIS PAGE. Delete the examples belowand replace them with_your narrative.
PERSONNEL NARRATIVE

Do not provhie staff detail here- use Total Program Staff PositioflsSalaries - Regular time and Time form #5 instead

Salaries — Overtime

Unemployment, Workers Comp, FICA & Medicare, Payroll AdminBenefits
Fee, Insurance, Retirement, Total Benefits

)PERATING EXPENSES

Office supplies, printing, occupancy, postage, telecommunications,General Operating Expenses accounting, legal, dues & subscriptions, supplies

General commercial, liability, employee crime policy, directors &Insurance/Bonding fficers

udit Expenses Annual audit

Consultants/Contractual )o not provide detail here- ue Subcontracted Expenses form #8

Staff Travel
To provide case management services to participants

onferences/SeminarslTrng

Staff Travel - out of County

l’s’ Conferences/Seminars/Trng. — out of County
DIRECT ASSISTANCE
Food/Beverage for Clients (NOTE: Alcoholic
beverage expenditures are not eligible or
allowable)

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, Utilities, rent, personal living expenses upon approval by counselor
mortgage, utillties) and supervisor

Other (specili) Books, tuition, classroom fees, uniforms, supplies, childcare
EQUIPMENTICAPITAL OUTLAY

** (Specify) Please refer to contract for capital outlay/equipment
guideIines.

** These line items require prior approval — Refer to your Contract Language.

Travis County Form #5 updated April 2011

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No. 7
Page lIof 13

FCfM #7: PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY

for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Date prepared: 5115/2012

Agency Name: Capital IDEA Program Name: Prerequisite Enrollment I
Fundina Sources

Travis County

Travis County

Travis County

City of Austin

City of Austin

City of Austin

Federal

Federal

GrantlContract Name

Social Service Contract (Travis County prgm. budget)

Social Service contract (Travis County prgrn. budget)

Social Service Contract (City of Austin prgm. budget)

Funding Period

1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

10101111 -9/30112

Funding Amount

$800,000

$113,869

$1,146,377

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

__TOTAL PROGRAM FUNDING: $2,863508

State

State

United Way

Contributions

Program Incomel
Es

10/01/11 -9/30/12

10/01/11 -9/30/12

$100,000

$703,262

Travis County Form #7 updated April 2011

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



F
o
r
m

#
9
:

T
r
a
v
i
s

C
o
u
n

t
y

H
e
a
l
t
h

a
n
d

H
u
m

a
n

S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

&
V

e
t
e
r
a
n
s

S
e
r
v

i
c
e

D
e
p
a
r
t
m

e
n
t

PS
O

9O
11

O
R

E
M

od
if

ic
at

io
n

N
o.

7
Pa

ge
12

of
13

2
0
1
2

P
e
r
f
o
r
m

a
n
c
e

R
e
p
o
r
t

D
e
f
i
n

i
t
i
o

n
T

o
o
l

C
ap

it
al

ID
EA

:
L

on
g-

T
er

m
T

ra
in

in
g

(R
ol

lo
ve

r
F

un
ds

)

D
at

e
R

ep
or

t
w

as
G

en
er

at
ed

:
5.

21
.2

01
2

T’
-

-
-
-
‘
-
i

n
co

m
pl

et
in

g
“s

fo
rm

,
th

e
re

d
tr

ia
ng

le
s

lo
ca

te
d

in
th

e
-
‘
r

ri
gh

t-
ha

nd
si

de
of

so
m

e
ce

ll
s

pm
vi

de
ad

di
ti

on
al

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

re
la

te
d

to
th

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
re

qu
es

te
d.

enrolled

in
co

u
rs

es
at

’
Th

is
da

ta
w

ill
be

de
ri

ve
d

fr
om

th
e

fa
ll

20
12
1A

u
st

in
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

IT
ra

vi
s

Jo
hn

st
on

,
O

ut
pu

t
#1

It
he

p
re

re
q
u

is
it

e
le

ve
l

du
ri

ng
th

e
fa

ll
Is

em
es

te
r

gr
ad

e
re

p
o
rt

pr
ov

id
ed

to
C

ap
ita

l
IIn

st
itu

tio
na

l
12

01
2

se
m

es
te

r
[I

D
E

A
by

A
us

tin
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

.
Jr

a
d
e

re
po

rt
IR

el
at

io
ns

O
ff

ic
er

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
.M

E
A

SU
R

E
S:

Ih
is

da
ta

w
ill

be
de

ri
ve

d
fr

om
th

e
fa

ll
20

12

N
um

be
r

of
cl

ie
n
ts

w
ho

co
m

p
le

te
d

o
n

e
se

m
es

te
r

gr
ad

e
re

po
rt

pr
ov

id
ed

to
C

ap
ita

l
T

ra
vi

s
Jo

hn
st

on
,

O
ut

co
m

e
#
la

ID
EA

by
A

us
tin

C
om

m
un

ity
C

ol
le

ge
.

T
he

A
us

tin
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

(n
um

er
at

or
)

or
m

or
e

p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

co
u
rs

es
d

u
ri

n
g

th
e

fa
ll

20
12

se
m

es
te

r
re

po
rt

w
ill

be
fi

lte
re

d
to

sh
ow

ho
w

m
an

y
gr

ad
e

re
po

rt
R

el
at

io
ns

O
ff

ic
er

st
ud

en
ts

co
m

pl
et

ed
a

pr
er

eq
ui

si
te

co
ur

se
(i

.e
.

di
d

no
t

dr
on

or
w

ith
dr

aw
’i

.
T

ot
al

n
u

m
b

er
of

cl
ie

n
ts

en
ro

ll
ed

in
T

hi
s

da
ta

w
ill

be
de

ri
ve

d
fr

om
th

e
fa

ll
20

12
T

ra
vi

s
Jo

hn
st

on
,

O
ut

co
m

e
#

lb
A

us
tin

C
om

m
un

ity
C

ol
le

ge
E

qu
al

s
O

P#
1

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

co
u

rs
es

at
th

e
p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

le
ve

l
d

u
ri

n
g

se
m

es
te

r
gr

ad
e

re
po

rt
pr

ov
id

ed
to

C
ap

ita
l

gr
ad

e
re

po
rt

(d
en

om
in

at
or

)
th

e
fa

ll
20

12
se

m
es

te
r

ID
EA

by
A

us
tin

C
om

m
un

ity
C

ol
le

ge
.

R
el

at
io

ns
O

ff
ic

er
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

of
cl

ie
n

ts
w

ho
co

m
p

le
te

d
T

ra
vi

s
Jo

hn
st

on
,

O
ut

co
m

e
R

at
e

o
n
e

or
m

o
re

p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

co
u

rs
es

D
iv

id
e

O
C

#1
a

by
O

C
#1

b
In

st
itu

tio
na

l
d

u
ri

n
g

th
e

fa
ll

20
12

se
m

es
te

r
R

el
at

io
ns

O
ff

ic
er

[h
is

da
ta

w
ill

be
de

nv
e0

fr
om

th
e

fa
ll

2
0
1
2

se
m

es
te

r
gr

ad
e

re
po

rt
pr

ov
id

ed
to

C
ap

ita
l

N
um

be
r

of
cl

ie
n
ts

w
ho

co
m

p
le

te
d

8
or

ID
EA

by
A

us
tin

C
om

m
un

ity
C

ol
le

ge
.

T
he

T
ra

vi
s

Jo
hn

st
on

,
O

ut
co

m
e

#2
a

A
us

tin
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

m
or

e
h

o
u

rs
of

p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

co
u
rs

es
re

po
rt

w
ill

be
fi

lte
re

d
to

sh
ow

ho
w

m
an

y
gr

ad
e

re
po

rt
R

el
at

io
ns

O
ff

ic
er

(n
um

er
at

or
)

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
fa

ll
20

12
se

m
es

te
r

st
ud

en
ts

co
m

pl
et

ed
8

or
m

or
e

ho
ur

s
pr

er
eq

ui
si

te
co

ur
se

s
(i

.e
.

di
d

no
t

dr
op

or
w

it
J,

dr
nw

IT
hi

s
da

ta
w

ill
be

de
ri

ve
d

fr
om

th
e

fa
ll

20
12

se
m

es
te

r
gr

ad
e

re
po

rt
pr

ov
id

ed
to

C
ap

ita
l

T
ra

vi
s

Jo
hn

st
on

,
T

ot
al

n
u
m

b
er

of
cl

ie
n
ts

en
ro

ll
ed

in
8

or
O

ut
co

m
e

#2
b

ID
EA

by
A

us
tin

C
om

m
un

ity
C

ol
le

ge
.

T
he

A
us

tin
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

m
or

e
h
o
u
rs

of
p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

co
u

rs
es

re
po

rt
w

ill
be

fi
lte

re
d

to
sh

ow
th

e
to

ta
l

gr
ad

e
re

po
rt

R
el

at
io

ns
O

ff
ic

er
(d

en
om

in
at

or
)

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
fa

ll
20

12
se

m
es

te
r

nu
m

be
r

of
st

ud
en

ts
w

ho
en

ro
lle

d
in

8
or

o
r
s
L

s
e
r
u

a
s
i
e
r
_

_
_

_
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

of
cl

ie
n
ts

w
ho

co
m

p
le

te
d

8
T

ra
vi

s
Jo

hn
st

on
,

O
ut

co
m

e
R

at
e

or
m

or
e

h
o

u
rs

of
p
re

re
q
u
is

it
e

co
u
rs

es
D

iv
id

e
O

C
#2

a
by

O
C

#2
b

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

#2
c

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
fa

ll
20

12
se

m
es

te
r

R
el

at
io

ns
O

ff
ic

er

D
E

M
O

G
R

A
PH

IC
A

N
D

ZI
P

C
O

D
E

R
E

PO
R

T

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PSO9O1 lORE
Modification No. 7
Page 13 of 13

The data analyzed is first derived from the
fall 2012 semester grade report provided to

CTK 0DM database
Travis Johnston,Capital IDEA by Austin Community College.

(www.ctkodm.com/capitalidea
Institutional

Gender, Race, Number of unduplicated clients by their
For the purposes of this report, demographic

) and Austin Community
Relations Officer

and Ethnicity gender, race, and ethnicity
data will then be extracted from the CTK

College grade report
0DM database only on those participants
enrolled in prerequisite classes.

The data analyzed is first derived from the
fall 2012 semester grade report provided to

CTK 0DM database
Number of unduplicated clients by their Capital IDEA by Austin Community College. Travis Johnston,

(www.ctkodm.com/capitalidea
Age age at start of program and grouped into For the purposes of this report, demographic Institutional

) and Austin Community
Relations Officerage categories data will then be extracted from the CTK

College grade report
0DM database only on those participants
enrolled in prerequisite classes.

The data analyzed is first derived from the
fall 2012 semester grade report provided to

CTK 0DM database
Number of unduplicated clients by their Capital IDEA by Austin Community College. Travis Johnston,

(www.ctkodm.com/capitalidea
InstitutionalIncome Status income status at start of program and For the purposes of this report, demographic

) and Austin Community
Relations Officergrouped into income categories data will then be extracted from the CTK

College grade report
0DM database only on those participants
enrolled in prerequisite classes.

The data analyzed is first derived from the
fall 2012 semester grade report provided to

CTK 0DM database Travis Johnston,Capital IDEA by Austin Community College.
(www.ctkodm.com/capitalidea InstitutionalNumber of unduplicated clients by their zip

For the purposes of this report, demographic
) and Austin Community Relations Officer

Zip Code code at start of program
data will then be extracted from the CTK

College grade report
0DM database only on those participants
enrolled in prerequisite classes.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



54—

‘I

TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
and VETERANS SERVICE

100 North LH. 35
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, Texas 78767

Shem E. Fleming
County Executive

(512) 854-4100
Fax (512) 854-4115

DATE: May22, 2012

TO: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Travis County Purchasing Agent

FROM: Xt44’
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executi
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Social Services Contract for 2012

Proposed Motion:
Consider and take appropriate action regarding Travis County Health and Human Services
and Veterans Service request to approve funding for Capital Investing in Development and
Employment of Adults, Inc. (Capital IDEA).

Summary and Staff Recommenaat,on:

During contract year 2011 Capital IDEA worked to drawdown their state funding before
their Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) contract expired in November, 2011. Although
they were successful in this effort, they left $113,869.02 of their Travis County contract
unspent. The JET funding will not be available to Capital IDEA during 2012.

As a result of the recent City of Austin HHS re-bidding process, Capital IDEA’s social
service contract has been reduced significantly during the fourth quarter of calendar year
2012.

Capital IDEA is requesting the remainder of their 2011 Travis County award to ‘Till the gap”
from October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 for their Long Term Training Program.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



2

They are projecting to serve 220 clients with 80% successfully completing a prerequisite
course during the fall 2012 semester.

The department is recommending the Court approve this contract with Capital IDEA,
providing needed services for a diverse population of Travis County residents in need of
assistance for the amount of $113,869.00.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
Account #001-5891-611-6294 $ 113,869.00

Background:
Travis County has contracted social services from Capital IDEA for many years. HHSNS
staff will continue to work extensively with these agencies to ensure funded services
address the needs of the community.

Cc: Deborah Britton, Division Director, Community Services, TCHHSNS
Susan A. Spataro, CPA, CMA, Travis County Auditor
Jose Palacios, Chief Assistant County Auditor
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney
Leroy Nellis Interim County Executive for Planning and Budget Office
Diana Ramirez, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office
Caula McMarion, Accountant, TCHHSNS
Mike Long, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Travis County Purchasing
Office
Shannon Pleasant, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Travis County Purchasing
Office
Kathleen Haas, Financial Manager, TCHHSNS
Jim Lehrman, Division Director, Family Support Services, TCHHSIVS
Blanca Leahy, Division Director, Research and Planning, TCHHSNS
Olie Pope, Veteran Services Officer, Veteran Services, TCHHSNS
Andrea Colunga-Bussey, Division Director, Office of Children’s Services,
TCHHSNS
LaDonna Brazell, Contract Compliance Specialist, TCHHSNS

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



 

Shopping cart
Number  :       1000002279
Name      :       NEWS 06/15/2012 15:14
Date      :       06/15/2012   

Goods recipient:
STEPHEN NEW
158Fin
158HHS Finance
700 Lavaca Street
AUSTIN TX  78701

Delivery point:
Travis County
Travis County
HUMAN SERVICES ADMIN SVCS
100 N IH 35, SUITE 3700
AUSTIN TX  78701

Item Product number Description Subm. deadline/ext.
bid

Supplier product no.

Delivery date/
Performance period

Order quantity Unit Price per unit Net value

         1 Long term training
program

06/23/2012 1.00 EA 113,869.00  USD1  EA 113,869.00  USD

Total value:          113,869.00  USD
Tax amount:                0.00   USD

Total value (gross):          113,869.00   USD

for item          1 

Account assignment

Percent Assigned to G/L account Business area

100.00 Cost Center  1580540001 511430 1000

Location
Company
Central Plant
700 Lavaca Suite 800
AUSTIN TX  78701
USA

Requester:
STEPHEN NEW
158Fin
158HHS Finance
700 Lavaca Street
AUSTIN TX  78701
USA

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ID# 6608 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No. 4400001003 Memorandum of 
Agreement with Lone Star Circle of Care To Provide Primary Health and 
Behavioral Care Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:   

 The Parenting in Recovery (PIR) project provides a flexible, 
comprehensive continuum of services for families in the child welfare 
system as a result of parental methamphetamine or other substance 
dependence.  

The memorandum of agreement (MOA) with the Lone Star Circle of 
Care (LSCC) will allow PIR participants and their dependents to receive 
primary health care services as well as behavioral care such as 
psychiatric evaluations, psychotherapy, and medication management. 
Payment for these services will come from the PIR grant funds 
contained in the System of Care Contract, No. 4400000374              
(HTE Contact No. IL070037RE) with Austin Travis County Integral Care.  
There is $120,230 in PIR grant funds for this effort. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information:  
Award Amount: $0.00   
Contract Type: Memorandum of Agreement  
Contract Period: October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 14



ID# 6608 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information:  

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP:  
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: There is no funding associated with this MOA 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AND PROCEDURAL DIRECTIONS
FOR SERVICES PROVIDED RELATED TO

THE PARENTING IN RECOVERY (PIR) PROGRAM OF
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AND VETERANS SERVICE

(DEPARTMENT) BY LONE STAR CIRCLE OF CARE (LSCC)

This Memorandum of Agreement and Procedural Directions (“Agreement”) includes a a statement of
procedural directions (“Procedures”) issued by Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans
Service (“Department”) related to services and activities provided in relation to the Parenting in Recovery
(“PIR”) Program of Travis County (“County”) administered by Department under the direction of Chuck
Roper, PR Director. It is understood that this is not an obligation of funds or an agreement by County to
make any payment for services; payment, if rendered, will be paid by Austin-Travis County Mental
Health and Mental Retardation Center, d.b.a. Austin-Travis County Integral Care (“ATCIC”) with County
only providing certain documentation and recommendations. It is understood that a portion of the
documentation and recommendations provided by County to ATCIC will be based on the Provider’s
compliance with the Procedures listed in this document. “PR Participants” are those individuals who have
met the necessary requirements of eligibility as detennined by County and ATCIC. Funding for services
provided will be from the Parenting in Recovery Regional Partnership Grant (“Grant”), and will be limited to
available Grant funds. All payments are based on complete and correct documentation as provided to County
and/or ATCIC, and compliance with any grant requirements related to PR funding.

It is understood that any previous agreements with any representative of Travis County not executed by the
Travis County Judge after full consideration by the Travis County Commissioners Court is void and of no
force or effect. If the agency or organization (“Provider”) referenced in these Procedures desires a written
and binding contract regarding the activities addressed in these Procedures, then those contracts would have
to be entered into with ATCIC at the Provider’s request.

It is understood that the following applies to this Agreement: this Agreement is signed by the authorized
representative of the Provider and the Department; those authorized representatives (those signing this
Agreement or designated by Provider or Department for future signatures) will also sign any changes under
this Agreement; and the authority of the representative of the Department is limited to agreeing to internal
procedures and does not carry the authority of the Travis County Commissioners Court necessary for any
contractual obligation of County.

PROCEDURES:

Provider: Lone Star Circle of Care

Type of Services: Medical and Behavioral Health Care

Procedures for Pifi Participants and their dependants to receive services from Provider are as
follows:

Provider Responsibifities:

1. Referral — Provider shall provide PR Participant referral form, as necessary, for use by PR
Participants and their dependants.
2. Acceptance — Provider shall accept referrals by Department of PR Participants and their
dependants.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



3. Release — Provider shall secure signature on appropriate release of information form at time of
first encounter.
4. Invoice — Provider shall provide Department with a detailed invoice for all charges due (including
documentation of services rendered, as requested by Department) according to these Procedures as they
occur or on a monthly basis. The invoice will include details as to each PR Participant’s separate
charges.
5. Payment — Provider shall accept payment as made by ATCIC for approved invoices for services
provided to PR Participants. Provider agrees not to bill or collect from PR Participants whose
encounters are paid for at Provider’s Prospective Payment Systems (PPS) rate by ATCIC, pursuant to the
terms of these Procedures.
6. Medical Primary Care — Provider shall provide medical primary care services, including
consultation and follow-up with a primary care provider, for PR Participants and their dependants at
Provider’s existing facility at 1221 W. Ben White Blvd., Suite B 200, Austin, Texas (Ben White Clinic),
or such other existing Provider facility as may be convenient to both a specific PR Participant and
Provider.
7. Behavioral Health Home Care - Provider shall provide behavioral health service, including
psychiatric evaluations, psychotherapy, and psychopharmacological assessments and medication
management, for PR Participants and their dependants at Provider’s Ben White Clinic, or such other
existing Provider facility as may be convenient to both a specific PR Participant and Provider.

Department Responsibilities:

1. Referral — Department shall refer appropriate PR Participants and their dependants to Provider
and shall provide an appropriate referral form to PR Participant as necessary.
2. Release — Department shall submit a suggested HIPAA (or other, as appropriate) release form to
Provider for use in providing patient information to Department.
NOTE:

(A) The form provided is a suggested format, and does not release Provider from the
obligation to ensure the securing of full and complete legal release of information (according to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations) by PR Participant prior to any release of information.
Department provides the form without warranty of any kind, either express or implied, arising by
law or otherwise and does not warrant the accuracy, authority, completeness, usefulness,
timeliness, or fitness for any particular purpose of the information contained therein. Travis
County and its officials and employees shall not be liable for any loss or injury caused in whole
or in part by its negligence, contingencies beyond its control, or errors or omissions in the
information provided herein.
(B) Provider is responsible for securing the execution of an appropriate HIPAA release form
prior to the PR Participant’s first clinic visit and prior to the release of any information.

3. Receipt of Invoice — Department shall receive invoices from Provider for services provided.
4. Submission to ATCIC — Department will submit the complete and correct invoice(s) to ATCIC
with the appropriate recommendation to ATCIC for reimbursement based on the invoice for all
appropriately documented charges due.
5. Payment Receipt — Department shall receive payment from ATCIC based on the invoice(s)
provided by Provider.
6. Provider Payment — Department shall provide ATCIC payment to Provider upon receipt of the
invoice(s), with payment generally to be expected within ten (10) business days of receipt of the complete
and correct invoice. The payment to Provider shall be Provider’s PPS rate per encounter with a medical
or behavioral health provider when the encounter is provided to PR Participants and their dependants
who are below 200% of the Federal Poverty Level and have no other payor.

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



General:

1. Referrals — A representative of Provider, identified by Provider and communicated to Department
(initially Heather Hosking), and a representative of Department, identified by Department and
communicated to Provider (initially Chuck Roper), will coordinate all referrals for medical primary care
services and behavioral health services.
2. Provider’s Services — All Provider’s services are provided in accordance with the standards
mandated by all applicable statutes and licensure requirements of federal, state, and local governing
authorities. Provider will provide proof of up to date licensure and insurance to Department, as requested,
and will consult with Department staff, as necessary.
3. Changes - If a need for changes to this Agreement or the Procedures included within is needed,
Department and Provider will work in good faith to agree to such changes. The parties may only change
or amend this Agreement by a written agreement, signed by both parties’ designated representative.
4. Publicity - Provider and Department may publicize this partnership in grant requests and reports,
in public forums and presentations, and in any other reasonable communication channel, including
electronic media.

Term of Collaboration:

This Agreement commences on the date executed by both parties and remains in effect until the one-year
anniversary of such date. This Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one-year tenns
thereafter unless terminated by either Provider or Department upon 30 days’ prior written notice to the
other party or unless terminated as a result of cessation of funding.

A2reement:

This Memorandum of Agreement and Procedures are acceptable to the parties, who have executed this
Agreement as of the dates specified below:

PROVIDI) LONE STAR CIRCLE OF CARE

By:___________
// Authorized Rep entative of Provider

Name: Peter Perialas. Jr.
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: .2012

DEPARTMENT -

TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH. HUMAN SERVICES AND VETERANS SERVICES

By:

______________________________

Authorized Representative of Department
Name: Samuel T. Biscoe
Title: Travis County Judge
Date: .2012

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



RECEIVED - -

0
TF?AVIS CO(J?ITY

ZOI2JUN..-7pi.

TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
and VETERANS SERVICE
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.

P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive

for TCHHSVS
(512) 854-4100

Fax (512) 279-1608

DATE: May2l,2012

TO: Me bers of the Commissioners Court

FROM: jlAJ
Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive for Travis County ‘health and Human Services
and Veterans Service

SUBJECT: Lone Star Circle of Care MOU for Parenting in Recovery project

Proposed Motion:
Consider and take appropriate action to approve a memorandum of understanding with
Lone Star Circle of Care to allow participants in the Parenting in Recovery project to
receive health and behavioral care services.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:
The Parenting in Recovery (PIR) project provides a flexible, comprehensive continuum
of services for families in the child welfare system as a result of parental
methamphetamine or other substance dependence. The primary objective of the project
is to keep families together in the community while they receive an individualized set of
interventions and supports that promote sustained recovery and independent
functioning.

The memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Lone Star Circle of Care (LSCC)
will allow PIR participants and their dependents to receive primary health care services
as well as behavioral care such as psychiatric evaluations, psychotherapy, and

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



2

medication management. Staff at Travis County Health and Human Services and
Veterans Service (TCHHSVS) will refer eligible PIR participants to the LSCC. Payment
for these services will come from the PIR grant funds contained in the System of Care
contract with Austin Travis County Integral Care.

TCHHSVS staff recommends approving the MOU.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
There is $120,230 in PIR grant money allocated to the System of Care contract to pay
for services from LSCC and other providers in FY’12.

Issues and Opportunities:
Children are put at risk when one or both parents have a substance dependence
problem. The cost of maintaining an addiction diverts a family’s financial resources from
providing basic needs such as food, clothing, and housing. Parental substance
dependence is a key factor underlying the abuse or neglect experienced by many of the
children entering foster care. The PIR project is designed to keep families together by
providing treatment and support. This MOU will allow the LSCC to provide important
services to these families.

Background:
TCHHSVS serves as the lead agency in a regional partnership (known as the Parenting
in Recovery project) that includes Austin Recovery, Foundation Communities, Texas
Department of Family and Protective Services, Austin Travis County Integral Care, and
Workforce Solutions, among others.

Cc: Andrea Colunga Bussey, Director, Office of Children’s Services, TCHHSVS
Susan A. Spataro, CPA, CMA, Travis County Auditor
Jose Palacios, Chief Assistant County Auditor
Janice Cohoon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney
Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget Office
Diana Ramirez, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Travis County Purchasing Agent
Shannon Pleasant, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Travis County Purchasing
Office

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 15



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Meeting Date: July 3,2012
 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 r';\.{Y)
 
Division Director/Man... a Anna rr.....g.er: ..... Division Director of Development ~'" 
Services ~1 

Department Head: Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 
authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two ten foot wide drainage easements 
and a 25 foot wide drainage easement located over and across portions of Lots 1 
and 2 of Baldwin Subdivision and a portion of Lot 15 of Westlake Highlands Section 
5, Phase 2, Revised - Precinct Two. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
TNR staff has received a request to vacate two ten foot wide drainage easements 
and a 25 foot wide drainage easement located over and across portions of Lots 1 
and 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 
2, Revised. The easements are dedicated per their respective plats and are 
schematically shown on the face of the plats. The subject lots front on Camino Alto, 
a street maintained by Travis County. 

To be more specific, there is a ten foot wide drainage easement located along the 
south lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and along with a 25 foot wide 
drainage easement located along the common lot line of Lots 1 and 2 of the Baldwin 
Subdivision. There is also a ten foot wide drainage easement located along the 
common lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of the Westlake 
Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, Revised. These easements run adjacent to each 
other to form one 6,864 square foot easement. 

Professional engineer Robert C. Thompson has stated that: 

"These easements are apparantly not needed and are an encumbrance to the full 
use of the property (such as the use of the easement, or area within 25 feet of the 
easement, for a septic system). In support of the fact that they are not needed, 
we've attached an exhibit with the City's GIS topography (Exhibit B) confirming that 
the easement area is on the order of eight (8) feet above the low point in the street 
(the easement is not helpful, currently or in the future, to the drainage of the street) 
and that no significant run-off from any lot discharges to the easement. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 16



Additionally, it can be seen from the GIS topography that the street currently 
discharges along the side of Lot 3 (next to Lot 2) in the Baldwin Subdivision. We've 
also attached photos (Exhibit C) showing views from the street further supporting 
these facts. Lastly, we can find no evidence of storm sewers in the area and 
therefore no evidence that there is a storm line in the easement. In fact, even the 
existing drainage from the cul-de-sac is overland, not in an inlet and storm sewer. 
Therefore, we are not sure why the easement was dedicated but we cannot find a 
reason for it being needed now or in the future." 

After review of the submitted request and recommendation, staff has no objections 
to this vacation request. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As of this memo staff has not received any inquiries in regards to this vacation 
request. The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation 
requests meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends the 
vacation. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
According to the request letter the subject drainage easements are not necessary 
and are a encumbrance to the full use of the property. These uses could be future 
construction and septic setbacks to drainage easements. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes and Sketch 
Request/Engineer's Letter 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director Development Services 854-7561 
John Ellis /),·4./ Enqineer Development Services 854-9805 

--0 

cc.
 
Stacey Scheffel Proqrarn Manager TNR Permits 854-7565 

SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services - Baldwin Subdivision and Westlake Highlands Section 5, 
Phase 2, Revised 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ORDER OF VACATION
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owner requests the vacation of the ten foot wide drainage easement 
located along the south lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision, the 25 foot wide drainage easement 
located along the common lot line of Lots 1 and 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision, and the ten foot wide 
drainage easement located along the common lot Line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of 
the Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, Revised with the Baldwin Subdivision being recorded at 
Volume 87, Pages 106A-l 06B and the Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, Revised being recorded at 
Volume 31, Page 2 - both of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas; 

WHEREAS, an independent Professional Engineer has submitted a letter recommending the 
vacation of the subject easements; 

WHEREAS, a Travis County Engineer has stated that there is no objection to the vacation of the 
drainage easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department recommends the 
vacation of the subject drainage easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners Court 
held a public hearing on July 3,2012 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 
orders that the ten foot wide drainage easement located along the south lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin 
Subdivision, the 25 foot wide drainage easement located along the common lot line of Lots 1 and 2 of the 
Baldwin Subdivision, and the ten foot wide drainage easement located along the common lot Line of Lot 
2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of the Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, Revised with the 
Baldwin Subdivision, as shown on the attached sketch and described in the attached field notes, are 
hereby vacated. 

ORDERED THIS THE DAY OF 2012. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY mDGE 

CONIMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

CONIMISSIONER KAREN HUBER COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXIllBIT " "	 EASEMENT RELEASE AREA 
PG.I0F3 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEING 6,864 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, OR 0.158 OF AN ACRE OF LAND, 
MORE OR LESS, BEING A PORTION OF LOT 1, BALDWIN SUBDIVISION, A 
SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN VOLUME 87, PAGES 106A-I06B OF THE PLAT 
RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS CONVEYED TO ROBERT B. 
BALDWIN, m AND JANNIS S. BALDWIN.. IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 
2007163969 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS, A PORTION OF LOT 2, BALDWIN SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION 
OF RECORD IN VOLUME 87, PAGES I06A-I06B OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS CONVEYED TO LENDOL L. DAVIS AND MARINA 
P. SIFUENTES IN VOLUME 13281, PAGE 1072 OF THE REAL PROPERTY 
RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND A PORTION OF LOT IS, 
WESTLAKE HIGHLANDS SECTION S, PHASE 2, REVISED, A SUBDIVISION 
OF RECORD IN VOLUME 31, PAGE 2 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS CONVEYED TO LENDOL L. DAVIS AND MARINA P. 
SIFUENTES IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2008079364 OF THE OFFICIAL 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS; SAID 6,864 SQUARE FEET 
OF LAND ALSO BEING ALL OF A 10 FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND A 
25 FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT CONVEYED UNDER AFORESAID 
BALDWIN SUBDIVISION AND BEING ALL OF A 10 FOOT DRAINAGE 
EASEMENT CONVEYED UNDER AFORESAID WESTLAKE HIGHLANDS, 
SECTION 5, PHASE 2, REVISED SUBDIVISION; SAID 6,864 SQUARE FEET 
OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLWWS: 

BEGINNING at a point in the easterly right ofway line ofCamino Alto, said point being 
in the westerly line of said Lot 2 and being the northwesterly comer of said 10 foot 
drainage easement in said Baldwin Subdivision for the northwesterly comer and the 
PLACE OF BEGINNING, hereof; 

TIlENCE, departing said right ofway, running through said Lot 2, in part, and said Lot 1~ 

in part, being the northerly line of said 10 foot and 25 foot drainage easement in said 
Baldwin Subdivision, the following three (3) calls: 

1.	 N 85°53'04" E, a distance of 125.81 feet to a point, said point being the 
northeasterly comer ofsaid 10 foot drainage easement, the northwesterly 
comer of said 25 foot drainage easement, for an angle point hereof; 

2.	 N 85°54'48" E, a distance of28.27 feet for an angle point hereof; 
3.	 N 81°39'59" E, a distance of 148.35 feet to a point in the westerly line of 

Lot 79, Block A the Replat ofWestview on Lake Austin, Phase C, Section 
2, a subdivision ofrecord in Volume 95, Page 6 of the Plat Records ofsaid 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PG.20F3 

County and being in the easterly line of said Lot 1; said point also being the 
northeasterly comer of said 25 foot drainage easement and being the northeasterly 
comer hereof; from which a 60D Nail found at an angle point in the east line of 
said Lot 1 bears N 08°14'24" W, a distance of60.31 feet; 

THENCE S 08°14'24" E with the common boundary line of said Lot 1 and Lot 79, being 
the easterly line of said 25 foot drainage easement and being the easterly line hereof: a 
distance of25.00 feet to a point, said point being the southeasterly comer of said 25 foot 
drainage easement and the tract hereof; 

THENCE S 81°39'59" W, running through said Lot 1 and with the southerly line of said 
25 foot easement and the tract hereof: a distance of 149.58 feet to a point in the easterly 
line ofsaid Lot 15, said point being an exterior angle point of said 25 foot easement and 
being the southern most comer hereof; 

THENCE N 04°27'32" W, running with the common boundary line of said Lot 1 and Lot 
15, a distance of5.02 feet to a point, said point being the southeasterly comer of said 10 
foot drainage easement in Westlake Highlands for an interior an angle point hereof; from 
which an iron pipe found at the northeasterly comer of said Lot 15, being the 
northwesterly comer ofsaid Lot 1 bears N 04°27'32" W, a distance of5.00 feet and from 
said pipe found, a ~" rebar found at the southeasterly comer ofsaid Lot 2, being an 
interior angle point of said Lot 1 bears N 81°39'59" E (BEARING BASIS), a distance of 
113.89 feet; 

THENCE, running through said Lot 15 with the southerly line of said 10 foot drainage 
easement in Westlake Highlands and the southerly line hereof, the following two (2) 
calls: 

1.	 S 85°54'48" W, a distance of28.86 feet to an angle point hereof; 
2.	 S 85°53'04" W, a distance of 132.77 feet to a point in the aforementioned 

right ofway line ofCamino Alto for the southwesterly ofsaid 10 foot 
easement and the tract hereof; 

THENCE, 5.68 feet along the arc ofa curve to the left, along said right ofway being the 
westerly line of said Lot 15, said 10 foot easement, and the tract hereof: having a radius 
of50.00 feet and a chord bearing a distance ofN 24°04'12" E for 5.67 feet to a 60D Nail 
found; said point being the southwesterly comer ofsaid Lot 2 and being the 
northwesterly comer of said Lot 15 for a point online hereof; 

THENCE 15.67 feet along the arc ofaforesaid curve, continuing along said right ofway 
with the westerly line of said Lot 2, said 10 foot easement in Westlake Highlands, said 10 
foot easement in said Baldwin, being the westerly line hereof, having a said radius of 
50.00 feet and a chord bearing and distance ofN 17°57'04" E for 15.60 feet to the 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



- -

PG.3 OF 3
 

PLACE OF BEGINNING hereofand containing 6,864 Square Feet of land, more or 
less. 

TIllS DESCRIPTION TO BE USED WIlli THE ATTACHED SKETCH ONLY. 

MICHAEL LANCASTER, R.P.L.S. 5529 DATE 
B & G SURVEYING, INC. 
1404 W. NORlli LOOP BLVD. 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78756 
(512) 458-6969, FAX: (512) 458-1129 

B0402412 ESMT REL 
TCAD Parcel ill: 0123110357, 0123110355, & 0123110318 

http://www.bandgsurvey.com 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



5.67'
15.60'N 17'57'04" E 

N 24'04'12" E 5.68'
15.67'

C1 I 50.00
C2 I 50.00

CURVE I RADIUS ARC BEARING CHORD EXHIBIT 'B' ~ 
tf)LOT 2 
\a~BALDWIN SUBDIVISION 
~. ~-

~ -- V. 87, PG. 106A-1 06B t-3S\
\"" 

sr<1 

~ 
-- TCAD PARCEL 10-0123110355 

~. 

-I-..l..6864 SQ.FT. 
-liD 

:... --
~0.158 ACRE 

N 85-54'48- E 28.2;' . 

.I N 8S-53'04- E 125.8;':,
 
~ 1z <: " <:: 'Z '(\\\\\.\$$[10' D.E.)
 

LOT 1A 
BALDWIN SUBDIVISION~_./ '" . . V. 87, PG. 106A-1 068 ---- R=50.00, A=65.42 

/ ---- C8=S 64-48'12- W, 60.85' TCAD PARCEL 10-0123110357
LOT 9 LOT 15
 

WESTLAKE 'HIGHLANDS
 
SECTION 5, PHASE 2, REVISED
 

V. 31, PG. 2f~l'~·,<,;.~,,:~--'(:;"~ r; LEGEND
I~" JI',..~,. ," • ,',
'.t .t,.,'tf Ie';" <:,:f,,;;c.' . C ~. ."'-<~\ TCAD PARCEL 10-0123110318 

LINE DISTANCE BEARING

L1 5.00' N 04'27'32" W 
L2 5.02' N 04'27'32" W 

___ 1/2" REBAR FOUND /Ufr.t ICC :"", ~.1t;'U)! .... ~'"'''~'''n~ ~;) ------0------ CALCULAT£O POINT iQ ~L J. ,\...;,N"'j,\,v :"::"';",,1: NOTE: OTHER EASEMENTS, IF ANY, ARE NOT --0--- 1/2" IRON PIPE FOUND
itt ,~".",n; ,~~ Vi SHOWN OR ARE NOT A PART OF THIS EXHIBIT. --A-- 600 NAil FOUND
'~ ...~ ')5251 ~ .. .J:t'tr,i B.L BUILDING LINE 

\";-.. ",rl ", 1> ." • ~+",." C) ~p P,U.E. PUBLIC UTILITY fASEMENT 
,\ ... ' ()I:'-*:""\ "'J... n, D.E. DRAINAGE fASEMENT
'~~ A~"~~~~"<~ .:» () PER V. J I. PG. 2 

\.,r~~~ ,v. '~~J>'~>' [] PER V. 87. PG. I06A-I06B 
C.M. CONTROL MONUIJENT 
R.O.W. RIGHT Or WAYSKETCH TO ACCOMPANY FIELD NOTES 
P.O.B. PLACE OF' BEGINNING 

40' a 40'
 
I I I
 FOR EASEMENT RELEASE 

&i
 BIt GSURVEYING, INC.
 
DEWEY H. BURRIS It ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~.~ Surveyed by: B & G Surveying, Inc. 

WWW.BANDGSURVEY.COM ~ /'-119//7
1404 West North Loop Blvd. Austin, Texas 78756 

Office 512$458-6969, Fax 512$458-9845 MICHAEL LANCASTER, R.P.L.S. 5529 DATE 

JOB #: 8040241 2_TA_ER 
DATE: 04/19/12 
SCALE: ,-. 40' 

F1£L1) WORK BY JESUS 04/16/12 
CALe'O BY TONI 04/18/12 
DIWT[D BY TONI 04/19/12 
CHECKED BY ML 04/19/12 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Land Fl:l1lllinfj. ...S,te Design, "Subdivision [~.ngincering 

May 4,2012 

Mr. Steven Manilla, P.E., County Executive 
Travis County TNR 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

RE: Release of 25 foot and 10 foot Drainage Easement at 2507 & 2510 Camino Alto Drive 
Lots 1 and 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15, Westlake Highlands Section 5, Ph 2 

Revised 
TLE Job No. 1164 

Dear Mr. Manilla, 

This letter is to request the release of the 25 foot drainage easement that is shown on the recorded plat 
between for Lots 1 and 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision, the related 10 foot drainage easement on Lot 1 of 
the Baldwin Subdivision, next to Lot 15 of the Westlake Highlands Section Five, Ph. 2 (Revised) 
Subdivision, and also the related 10 foot drainage easement on Lot 15 and 16 of the Westlake Highlands 
Section 5, Phase 2 Revised (Lot 16 later becoming Lot 1 of the Baldwin Subdivision). See Exhibit A 
attached for the definition of these easements. These easements are apparently not needed and are an 
encumbrance to the full use of the property (such as the use of the easement, or area within 25 feet of the 
easement, for a septic system). In support of the fact that they are not needed, we've attached an exhibit 
with the City's GIS topography (Exhibit B) confirming that the easement area is on the order of eight (8) 
feet above the low point in the street (the easement is not helpful, currently or in the future, to the 
drainage of the street) and that no significant run-off from any lot discharges to the easement. 
Additionally, it can be seen from the GIS topography that the street currently discharges along the side of 
Lot 3 (next to Lot 2) in the Baldwin Subdivision. We've also attached photos (Exhibit C) showing views 
from the street further supporting these facts. Lastly, we can find no evidence of storm sewers in the area 
and therefore no evidence that there is a storm line in the easement. In fact, even the existing drainage 
from the cul-de-sac is overland, not in an inlet and storm sewer. Therefore, we are not sure why the 
easement was dedicated but we cannot find a reason for it being needed now or in the future. 

We hope that this information is sufficient for your review of the release of these easements. Please 
contact me at 512-328-0002 if you have any questions.
 

Sincerely,
 

THOMPSON LAND ENGINEERING, LLC
 

~~ 
Robert C. (Ric) Thompson, P.E. 
M.S., C.P.M., C.P.E.S.C. 

~'" Thompson Land --rOF TE~~~\\ Engineering, LLC 
/t:~...."".~~ '. (F-I0220) 
,~.., ~ ...~ I 

'J11 ... '•• ',:.i ··~···Ie: : ~..psQ"l ~ .,.. . .... ........
 
~.... c:o.1C. ••.••••• ~ 
~ f\Qa,;.n •••.•••• :tI:~ 

", : 69524 itt::'t #4.'. (}t.~...~-' 
',~O...~~GIS~ •••~~~' 
\(~$ x,~ 1J:J-

May 4,2012 

904 N. CUERNAVACA, AUSTIN TEXAS, 78733 (512-328-0002) 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TRANSPORTA.TION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
STEVENM. NL\NILL\, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
411 West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
P.O.Box 1748 
Austin,Texas 7876"' 
tel 512-854-9383 
fax 512-85~-4649 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

TO:	 County Judge 
County Commissioners 
Travis County, Texas 

A Public Notice of Vacation of a Drainage Easement sign was posted on 
~~ l? ,2012, on the east side (end of cul-de-sac) of Camino Alto at 
the common lot line of Lot 2 of the Baldwin Subdivision and Lot 15 of Westlake Highlands 
Section 5, Phase 2 Revised at a point as near as practical to the area being vacated, and was also 
posted at the Travis County Courthouse. 

CERTIFIED THIS THE 
--~----

SIGNATURE: ~ C~ 
~ 

NAME (PRINT): '\, ft4't1-\e..- Carc/e-,-
TITLE:/f1J(2.jf}15 cS~IJI~O,{ 

cc: Garcia (sign shop) 
M:\PERMITS\Vacate\12DE\06-CaminoAlto\Sign Request-CaminoAlto.doc 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



--

I 

I 'f'I:"STI/J/;-H~ LTD, 
14'1•. 4,'..9,9 P$. llJ89':-A \j

f / rll\c- _ 
'.4(J002'41.E~ » /~A~-;;"OI'OrP 

6D.6'~ ~", / HII~ '6fJ.()(JJ 
, "L:~ '91.16' "'\ / (;, "",a' \ 

~ ;:'!:/JMDjI" .;)( eiJ.iiN"WI'.W \ 
" /... ~?I.1',.. I.'!o1'v C • 11. 14' Jc')AN HOliJ.?WAY'
 

I -« ~ ; Jfi'f;,a.J"w 1'«: ..''1M P$. ,'44,' I·SUBJECT EASEMENTS
 
~ " (Baldwin Subdivision) 

\ IfIc.~e,"r'.A/(l:· "'flGHI.AA'C~,)
 
SEC.' F/IIIf ,'We 2 ,~9EI~'~~'EC)
 

\ s,'<. ..':Jt' PG.· 2
 
\ \ NtQ O.~UHW.,
 
\ \ 18."" f'
\ ........-a- ---.- ...J.-_a_~~
 

I ...... ----.... I {-- ----.... ".' \ .; 
6,'4 ~.. ,,"-( ,'... 

I 

\,." "IIJ......---------- ,~ 

\ 
~ 

, l..,,\ 
\.L. ' ?..A\ '1""\- ( \'. 

".

...1.(J' I r: ~f , ,,- - , ... 4 
\ • I,,! ,,"'4'. ... !'~ 

-m'1J x 
cc~ 

.....0: 
o ~ ....... »
 
~

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



VOLUME :31 PAGE 2_00 ._,t.((;.f,,/(!-(,'1Z£'J.I~ 9r3 ? 9 ,.r /f'rrp .. 
•
 

rs· 
)0· 
54
90· 
er 

Iae-

Balance of Easement to be 
released 

-m
"'Ox 

CC:::T 
I\,)tT 
o ::+ 
~» 
I\,)-

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



°1 
Exhibit B 

.::il 

!{@ 
(:'50I ~ ., c -0I (1) <V 

(fJ (J) 

m rn 
W (1) 

(J) .... (i3
Q) U ~. 

.~ Q)t 

..0 ..0 IQ) 
o, ::J 

ef) .8o 

~ . .-' ..---- .--.----.- ----',60-.-.-...-- -

... I 
.. I 

, '" I 
~:--\ I 

I 
I, 

'" t 

:~ '\ 
1 

•, 

\r 
• 

.--.. -~-- .. 
... --

a.. 
t5 
Q) 

:.0 
::J 
if) 

..,,, 
\,/ ,, 

..., .. 
.,.,*' 

_~_ .JI# .,..-' 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



/ 

/'11/rsr I/,Ito 
I/(/f.~ 4,'<.9<.9

"A 

\ 
111J: "C' T I A I/r..- I-II/"IJI /.I.I'"'L'"

C. \.7, L_ =l'1l:' I" ,~, "_/-I/l U\..J
 
c-rrr> c: I I /L- 0LI 'J /0£:'"1/1 c...rrr» J
oc: l,.,. I, /L:. I I r, r: ( I Tt: , ..7/.: L./ / 

01/ :;t7 O~.. 'J\ L_" 1. ..) I I C/. 0 L. 

\ \ N43053'43"W
\ 

.\\ __ .~ --~ r: ~--- \ 
~O\O 

~ O·

,\, ---- ---- ----/11"),'t/// ~N84 029'26"£ ~r;. \\ 

~~4 ~ 34.93' ~ 

»> ~~ 
~o 

~.. 
\ OS?~~ 

\ I ~-• , . I 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



01 
s 

C/-.3&i' 
40.0C.', ' 
16e-54' 
':7c~90' 
& zs.e.' 

I' J~c.
O·~ 

WESTLAKE 

'Ill 

5 ~ji1r~ I:w., flAJC,lUt: 

~ 

HiGHLANDS 

4' Y,[7:" 

BY THESE PRESENTS 
JOlIN liWn:;, JR., acti.ng by and 

t and Attorney-in-Fact, beirig 
~ the David Thomas Survey, 
tion 5, Phase 2, as shown by 
Je 1, Travis County Plat Records, 
Jy Joan Holloway, who joins in 
nan, being the owner of three 
Survey, conveyed to him by 
31~5, Pages 1466, 1469 and 1473, 

1 Records, and shown on the 
1 14, do hereby subdivide all of 
:~:~ r~~~! said Subdivis!on to 

EaSt,~~t to
 

SEC TION S. PH//SE tE, £?EVIS£D
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
. COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

I, Miss E~ilie Limberg, Clerk of the County 
Court within and for the County and State aforesaid, 
do hereby certify that the within :md foreg-,in9 in
strument of v r ;:ng with its certitica~e of authQn
tication waS' AI- '~Q f.or record in :11'\,: off ice on'th~ 

10 day of '-JJ-,.·L,t:;:- 1\0 1966, at r. {J 0 ~'cloc~ r-:~. 
and dul~ recorced, the 10 day of c.Q-<-~ AD 1966, 
at t :D~ 0 'clock f'1'~},. in the Plat Records of Raid 
County in Book..3 at Page ~ 

WITNESS ~.~y HAND AND SEAL of the Cour.t of said
 
County.
 

Hiss Emilie Limberg, Clerk Travis County, TexaR 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ILegend 
I - State Maintained 

I --------- Park Road 

Incorporated 

----- Travis County Maintained 

Not Maintained 

: -- Private 

Rejection of Dedication 

Undedicated, Private 

Precinct 3 

I 

Map Disclaimer. The data IS provided 
"as IS" With no warranties of any kind 

Travis Countt,,,~.~cation Map 
.r;;r;"'~"'n-

\., ~ ~;~..--. i ~i 
"m.1 (r'J:".;-~•.:,~.'_.~. A l 

v ;•..~.<" i<;;JL:~'F i r-----7.~

t:O-:"-'tB"/ 
.... "'L"'....'::::.l 

-......~.~., 

Hays County 

Source(s). City of Austin Roads - COA 2011. 
Unincorporated Roads - Travis County 
8f2011, Toll Road - various sources, 
Creeks- NHD 2005. Parks - Travis County 
2011, Commissioner Precincts - Travis County 
Voter Registrar 2002 

Map Prepared by: Travis County, 
o 1 Dept. of Transportation & Natural 
I I I Resources Date 8/9/2011

MilesTravis County Roadways, Map 0 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By: Randy Nicholson, Plannin Manager, TNR Phone #: 854-4603 
Division Director/Manager: 

Department Head: Steven . Man la, .. , County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the following 
regarding Imagine Austin Comprehensive Plan : 
A) A proposed resolution in support of the shared values, geographic framework 
and policies as common ground to guide collaboration with the City of Austin as it 
begins to implement its newly adopted Comprehensive Plan; and 
B) To publicly express appreciation to the Court's appointed Imagine Austin Task 
Force members who helped guide the development of the plan . 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
On June 14, the City of Austin adopted the Imagine Austin Comprehensive Plan. 
The Citizens Advisory Task Force endorsed the plan by a vote of 21-3. Travis 
County was represented on the Task Force by appointees Jack Gullahorn , Mark 
Lind , Carol Torgimson , and Ira Yates. In addition to the Task Force members 
working throughout the process, formal interactions with the Commissioners Court 
regarding Imagine Austin occurred as follows : 

• April 20, 2010: Update on plan and vision statement 
• September 7, 2010: Update on plan and upcoming community forums 
• December 7, 2010: Update on plan and alternative future growth scenarios 
• December 14, 2010: Court adopted Resolution Regarding the Imagine Austin 
Comprehensive Plan (Exhibit 3) 
• January 7, 2011 : Court assigned nine staff members to serve on the Working 
Groups 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends the Court's adoption of the resolution and forward to the Austin 
City Council. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The Imagine Austin Plan presents numerous opportunities for collaboration which 
are outlined in Exhibit 2 relative to Land , Water, Transportation , and Partnerships. 
Additionally, there are issues and needs which are highlighted below. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 17



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By: Thomas Weber Phone ~54-4629 
Division Director/Manager: Jon A. Whit · 

Department HeadITitle: ~a, .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests regarding a final 
cover maintenance plan for the closed Travis County Landfill located at 9500 E US 
290: 
A) To fund the cost of the final cover maintenance plan from the Travis County 
allocated reserve; 
B) Approve a cooperative agreement between Travis County, landowners Joe T. 
and Joyce L Robertson, and Austin Country, Inc.; and 
C) To authorize the County Executive of TNR to submit a municipal solid waste 
permit modification to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality requesting 
approval of a final cover maintenance plan and the addition of enclosed structures at 
the closed Travis County Landfill. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
On land now owned by Robertson Farnily 290 Property, LLC, Travis County 
operated a municipal solid waste (MSW) landfill at 9500 E. U.S. 290. The landfill 
accepted waste from approximately 1968 until 1982 when closure of the landfill was 
completed. Travis County continues to maintain and operate the closed landfill 
during the post-closure care period. After closure, the landowner leased the land to 
Austin Country, Inc. (AC). Beginning in 1983, AC constructed and operated a flea 
market on top of approximately 21 acres of the 95-acre landfill, an operation that 
continues today. 

After a fire in August 2009 burnt down approximately 40% of the market, the TCEQ 
conducted an inspection and cited the landowner and Travis County for alleged 
violations of state MSW rules. The TCEQ noted that the owner and lessee had failed 
to register the enclosed structures of the flea market and had failed to ensure 
unacceptable levels of methane had not accumulated in the facility structures. TCEQ 
also noted that Travis County had failed to adequately correct subsidence and 
ponding of water on the closed landfill and failed to ensure the final cover is 
composed of at least two feet thickness of soil. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 18



In 2010, TNR secured engineering services to develop a plan to address the 
deficiencies. On August 12, 2010, the Commissioners Court directed staff to seek 
partial financing of the remedial action plan from the landowner and AC. Through 
2011 and early 2012, TNR and AC funded additional engineering, surveying, and 
geotechnical assessments and developed an alternative final cover maintenance 
plan that would allow the flea market to continue operation. The technical 
specifications and engineer's cost estimate for the plan is included in Exhibit A. TNR 
and the County Attorney negotiated a cooperative agreement with the landowners 
and AC to set out financial obligations, operational procedures, and land use 
restrictions on the landfill site (See Exhibit B). 

TCEQ Region 11 staff was briefed on the proposed plan and was provided a 
compliance schedule to implement the plan. In response, TCEQ requested final 
compliance by April 30, 2013 and Travis County was directed to submit the final 
cover maintenance plan to TCEQ as part of a permit modification request. The 
proposed permit modification application is included as Exhibit C. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
A. TNR recommends that Commissioners Court approves the funding of the 
remedial action plan from the allocated reserve for an estimated amount of 
$1,320,525. If approved by the Court, the plan will be provided to the TCEQ as a 
permit application for approval. Once approved by TCEQ, TNR and Travis County 
Purchasing would develop an Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the construction work. 

B. TNR recommends that Commissioners Court approve the cooperative agreement 
included as Exhibit B. The agreement sets out funding of $100,000 that AC will 
provide Travis County to pay a share of the cost of implementing the plan. That sum 
is in addition to a $30,000 credit for some of AC's costs-to-date contributed towards 
assessing remedies to address the subsidence on the 21-acre flea market site. 
Under the cooperative agreement, AC would immediately remit $30,000 and then 
provide the remaining commitment of $70,000 under the terms of a 3.5 year 
installment plan. The amount AC provides is commensurate with aspects of the final 
cover maintenance plan that include demolition of structures, re-surfacing of portions 
of the flea market parking lot, and similar costs. 

The cooperative agreement also requires AC and the property owner to ensure 
proper stewardship of the land and cap, to fulfill TCEQ and County development
related requirements, to allow County erection of security fencing, and to allow 
County access and management of the remedial construction as well as future post
closure care activties. 

C. TNR recommends Commissioners Court authorize TNR's County Executive to 
submit an application to TCEQ for a permit modification to our existing MSW permit 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



for the landfill. The existing permit was issued by the Texas Department of Health 
and allowed for the disposal of municipal solid waste and set out closure 
requirements that were fulfilled. TCEQ has requested that the permit be modified in 
two ways: first, to incorporate the final cover maintenance plan into the permit; and 
second, to identify the flea market structures that were built and now exist on the 
landfill. The permit must be modified in order to allow AC to complete its registration 
requirements with the TCEQ for the enclosed structures. Exhibit C includes the 
application that has been prepared for submittal. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The TCEQ NOV and compliance schedule have been an informal enforcement 
matter handled from the Austin Region office. Failure to diligently implement the 
compliance plan and to eliminate the subsidence, ponding, or cap thickness issues 
would likely result in escalation of the matter for formal enforcement and monetary 
penalties. 

TCEQ suggested that Travis County submit the permit modification request without 
providing adjacent landowner information, under a preliminary determination that this 
matter does not require public notice and opportunity for a contested case hearing. 
TCEQ indicated that determination could change once the actual submittal is 
evaluated under the state rules. The modification process is used for minor changes 
to an MSW facility that do not substantially change the permitted limitations already 
set. 

Travis County must continue the post-closure care of the landfill after the final cover 
maintenance plan has been completed, until such time as it can be verified to the 
satisfaction of TCEQ that the closed landfill is stable and no releases to the 
environment are likely to occur. It should be noted that "final" cover refers to the 
clay-rich liner and vegetated soil over the top of a closed landfill, to differentiate 
cover that is "daily" cover placed atop lifts of waste during active landfilling prior to 
closure. The owner and operator of the closed landfill are responsible for maintaining 
final cover throughout post-closure, including the need for future repairs. The 
recommended plan will improve the integrity of the cap and greatly reduce infiltration 
of surface runoff through the cap. However, it is anticipated that future efforts and 
funding will be necessary to investigate upgradient groundwater flow and its impact 
on the landfill and leachate collection system. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The allocated reserve is recommended as the funding source for the proposed final 
cover maintenance plan's construction phase. TNR has periodically discussed this 
expenditure with the Court and PBO since late 2009, in anticipation of this expected 
outlay. The current estimated cost is considerably less than the estimated costs 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



identified in 2010, largely due to the development of an alternative that does not 
result in demotion of the AC flea market. The Court should also be aware that the 
actual cost of the construction could be more or less than this estimate. Among the 
factors are the prevailing marketplace, actual bids received, input or revisions 
required by TCEO during the permitting process, or unexpected construction-related 
issues. 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A - Technical Specifications and Engineer's Cost Estimate for the Final Cover 
Maintenance Plan 
Exhibit B - Proposed Cooperation Agreement for Remediation of the U.S. 290 
Municipal Solid Waste Landfill by Travis County, Austin Country, Inc., and Joe T. 
Robertson 
Exhibit C - Proposed MSW Permit Modification application to TCEO 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Jon A. White Division Director TNR, NREQ 854-7212 

cc: 

Thomas Weber Environmental 

Program Manager 
TNR, NREQ 854-4629 

Diana Ramirez Budget Analyst, Sr. PBO 854-9694 
Marvin Brice Asst. Purchasing 

Agent 
Purchasing 854-9700 

Thomas Nuckols Division Director County Attorney 854-9262 

0801 - NREQ· 4908 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXHIBIT A 


Final Cover Maintenance Plan 


Technical Specifications and Engineer's Cost Estimate 


for the Closed U.S. 290 MSW Landfill 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

FINAL COVER MAINTENANCE PLAN 


U.S. mGHWAY 290 LANDFILL 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 


MAY 2012 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


This project includes the maintenance of five locations on the cap of the U.S. Highway 290 
landfill. The project site is the closed U.S. Highway 290 Landfill. a former disposal site for 
municipal solid waste. This project site includes an operating flea market and associated access 
and parking areas. 

For purposes of these specifications, the OWNER is defined as Travis County, Texas. The 
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the work as described in this document and as indicated 
in the Final Cover Maintenance Plans, U.S. Highway 290 Landfill, dated May 2012 
(construction drawings). CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing secure worksite 
storage, security for CONTRACTOR's parked equipment and materials (if deemed necessary by 
CONTRACTOR) and temporary services such as portable toilets, water and electrical power, if 
required. Payment for work will be made as indicated in the pay items listed below. Payment 
will be made based upon in-place quantities (or plan quantity if so indicated) and will be verified 
by a Registered Land Surveyor. 

The CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary actions needed to meet the proposed schedule, 
taking into account weather as could be normally expected for the project location and season. 

Access to the site shall be via the Flea Market entrance from U.S. 290 and the landfill perimeter 
gate located on the southeastern side of the landfill. The Contractor shall provide a double lock 
on the landfill gate to allow access. The CONTRACTOR may work from 7:00 am until dusk 
Monday through Friday, exclusively. Saturday and Sunday work will not be allowed. A 
CONTRACTOR laydown area is indicated on the Construction Drawings. Access to the 
construction area is shared with access to the flea market which operates on weekends. The 
CONTRACTOR shall cordon off areas under construction (Areas A, B, C and D) with traffic 
barriers. fencing or warning tape as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall provide traffic control if 
necessary to avoid any conflicts between construction operations and flea market traffic. Ingress 
and egress from the flea market entrance shall be maintained at all times. If off-site clay is 
brought in to the construction area, such deliveries shall be limited to days when the flea market 
is closed to the general public. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The CONTRACTOR shall initiate construction activities within 60 days of receipt of Notice to 
Proceed from Travis County. CONTRACTOR shall complete work within 90 days of initiating 
construction activities. 

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a construction schedule with the BID. 

1 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND us. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

DESCRIPTION OF PAY ITEMS 

The specifications and bid items for this project are found in the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of 
Highways, Streets and Bridges adopted June 1, 2004 (see TxDOT web site 
http://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm.) and as modified in this description of pay 
items and/or on the construction drawings. These TxDOT specifications are adopted for this 
project unless otherwise modified with this description of pay items or with the Construction 
Drawings. This includes the adoption of Items 1 through 9, General Requirements and 
Covenants. 

Bid Item 1: Mobilization 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 500, Mobilization. This project will 
require a Payment Bond, Perfonnance Bond, and Insurance. This item will be measured as lump 
sum as the work progresses. Payment for this item shall be made for "Mobilization" as 
described in Item 500, Section 500.3, Payment. 

WEST CAP MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 2: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Limits of West Cap Maintenance. There are two drainage chutes within the project work area. 
These chutes shall be protected and any damage during construction will be repaired at 
CONTRACTOR'S sole expense. Work will be conducted as described in Item 100, Sections 
100.1 and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site at the location indicated on the Construction 
Drawings. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Preparing Right ofWay" as described in Item 100, Section 100.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 3: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 4: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil, either CR, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 

2 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm


Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Spec!fications 

responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. There are existing drainage berms within the project area. 
Contractor to construct the drainage berms to their original configuration and location. 
Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 132, Section 132.3. 
Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts and compacted. In case of a 
conflict in construction requirements, the Construction Drawings shall control. This item will be 
measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, Section 132.4(A). Payment for this 
item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 5: Topsoil 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 160, Topsoil. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 160, Section 160.1. Material will be topsoil as described in Item 
160, Section 160.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 160, Section 160.3. A twelve (12) inch thickness of topsoil shall be applied as directed on 
the Construction drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
160, Section 160.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Topsoil" as described in Item 160, 
Section 160.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 6: Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding (Temp) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 164, Seeding for Erosion Control. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 164, Section 164.1. Material will be as described in 
Item 164, Section 164.2 for the appropriate growing season. Construction will be in accordance 
with thc Construction Drawings and Item 164, Section 164.3 with Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
as described in Section 164.3(B). This item will be measured by the acre as described in Item 
164, Section 164.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
(temp)" as described in Item 164, Section 164.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 7: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(J) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

3 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Spec({ications 

AREA"A"MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 8: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Area "A" Maintenance. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. Stabilized base and 
asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any additional stabilized base 
and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered Excavation and will be 
included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 9: Extavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 10: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil. either CH, SC, or CL materiaL Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 
responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 11: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247, Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247, Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 

4 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specffications 

directed on the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 12: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 
measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 Yz" Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 13: Riprap 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 432, Riprap. Work will be conducted 
as described in Item 432, Section 432.1. Material will be 12" of common, dry, stone riprap as 
described in the Construction Drawings and Item 432, Section 432.2. The stone riprap will be 
placed over a filter fabric. Construction of the 12" common, dry, stone riprap with filter fabric 
will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 432, Section 432.4. This item 
will be measured by the cubic yard as described in Item 432, Section 432.5. Payment for this 
item shall be made for "Riprap" as described in Item 432, Section 432.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 14: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(1) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(I}. 

AREA "B" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 15: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Area "B" Maintenance. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. Stabilized base and 
asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any additional stabilized base 
and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered Excavation and will be 
included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 

5 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Spec!{ications 

105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 16: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 17: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Plans and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall be 
clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 
responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. In case of a conflict in construction requirements, the Construction drawings 
shall control. This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 18: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247, Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247, Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 
directed on the Construction drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 19: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 

6 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 20: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(J) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 50604 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506A(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(I). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

AREA "C" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 21: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Non-Paved Limits of Area "C" Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item 100, 
Sections 100.1 and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site at the location indicated on the 
Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Preparing Right ofWay" as described in Item 100, Section 10004, Payment. 

Bid Item 22: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Paved Limits of Area "c" 
Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. 
Stabilized base and asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any 
additional stabilized base and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered 
Excavation and will be included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard 
as described in Item 105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing 
Stabilized Base and Asphalt" as described in Item 1 05, Section 10504, Payment. 

Bid Item 23: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110. Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 11004, Payment. 

7 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Spec{{lcations 

Bid Item 24: Block Sodding 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 162, Sodding for Erosion Control. 
For this project~ the block sodding will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as 
the Non-Paved Limits of Area "C' Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item 
162~ Section 162.1. Material will be as described in Item 162, Section 162.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with Item 162, Section 162.3. This item will be measured by the acre as 
described in Item 162, Section 162.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Block Sodding" 
as described in Item 162, Section 162.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 25: Vegetative Watering 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 168, Vegetative Watering. Work will 
be conducted as described in Item 168, Section 168.1. Material will be as described in Item 168, 
Section 168.2. The CONTRACTOR will water the block sodded areas (Non-Paved Limits of 
Area "c" Maintenance) with 1,000 gallons of clean water two times a week (once every 3 to 4 
days) for four (4) weeks. A watering event will be skipped if more than W' rainfall has fallen on 
the site since the prior watering event. Construction will be in accordance with Item 168, 
Section 168.3. This item will be measured by the 1,000 gallons as described in Item 168, 
Section 168.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Vegetative Watering" as described in 
Item 168, Section 168.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 26: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247~ Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247~ Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 
directed on the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 27: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 '/z" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 
measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 28: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Install) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 

8 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND US. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specffications 

Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(A) for Rock Filter Dam. 
Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 506, Section 506.4 
with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506.4(C)(1)(a). This item will be 
measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock Filter 
Dam, Type 1 (Install). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 
(Install)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 29: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
506, Section 506.4 with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506.4(C). This item 
will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock 
Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 
1 (Remove)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 30: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(1) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(I). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

AREA "D" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 31: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Limits of Area "D" Regrading Area, Limits of Area "D" Non-Regrading Area, and limits of 
existing structure to be demolished and removed. Approximately 150 linear feet of existing flea 
market structure will be demolished and removed from the site. The structure will be saw cut at 
the closest structural support. Any electrical or plumbing (water and/or wastewater) utilities in 
the area to be demolished will be disconnected by a licensed electrician and/or plumber before 
demolition work commences. Work will be conducted as described in Item 100, Sections 100.1 
and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site within the limits of the Area "D" Non-Regrading 
Area. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Preparing Right of Way" as described in Item 100, Section 10004, Payment. 

9 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

Bid Item 32: Removing Concrete 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 104, Removing Concrete. For this 
project, the limits of concrete that will be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 104, Sections 104.1 and 104.2. This item will be 
measured by the square yard as described in Item 104, Section 104.3. Payment for this item shall 
be made for '<Removing Concrete" as described in Item 104, Section 104.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 33: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Pavement to be 
Removed. Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections ]05.1 and 105.2. 
Stabilized base and asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any 
additional stabilized base and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered 
Excavation and will be included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard 
as described in Item 105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing 
Stabilized Base and Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 34: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item] 10, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 35: Waste Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 158, Specialized Excavation Work. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 158, Sections 158.1, 158.2, and 158.3. Waste will 
be removed from the site and disposed ofat a TCEQ permitted solid waste disposal facility at the 
sole cost of the contractor. Excavated waste shall be removed from the site at the end of each 
working day. Exposed waste shall be covered with 6 inches of clean soil at the end of each day. 
This item will be measured by the cubic yard as described in Section 158.4.A, Measurement, 
Original. Payment for this item shall be made for "Waste Excavation" as described in Item 158, 
Section 158.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 36: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 

10 May 20]2 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT. BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specffications 

responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 37: Topsoil 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 160, Topsoil. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 160, Section 160.1. Material will be topsoil as described in Item 
160, Section 160.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 160, Section 160.3. A twelve (12) inch thickness of topsoil shall be applied as directed on 
the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
160, Section 160.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Topsoil" as described in Item 160, 
Section 160.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 38: Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding (Temp) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 164, Seeding for Erosion Control. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 164, Section 164.1. Material will be as described in 
Item 164, Section 164.2 for the appropriate growing season. Construction will be in accordance 
with the Construction Drawings and Item 164, Section 164.3 with Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
as described in Section 164.3{B). This item will be measured by the acre as described in Item 
164, Section 164.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
(temp)" as described in Item 164, Section 164.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 39: Soil Retention Blanket 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 169, Soil Retention Blanket. Work 
will be conducted as described in Item 169, Section 169.1. Material will be Class 1, Slope 
Protection, Type A Soil Retention Blanket as described in Item 169, Section 169.2. Construction 
will be in accordance with Item 169, Section 169.3. This item will be measured by the square 
yard as described in Item 169, Section 169.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Soil 
Retention Blanket" as described in Item 169, Section 169.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 40: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Install) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(A) for Rock Filter Dam. 
Construction win be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 506, Section 506.4 

11 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 50604(C)(1)(a). This item will be 
measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock Filter 
Dam, Type 1 (Install). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 
(Install)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 41: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
506, Section 50604 with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506.4(C). This item 
will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock 
Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 
1 (Remove)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 42: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(1) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
50604(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(I). 

Bid Item 43: Chain Link Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. The Chain Link Fence will be 6 feet tall. 
Material will be as described in Item 550, Section 550.2. Construction will be in accordance 
with the Construction Drawings and Item 550, Section 55004. This item will be measured by the 
linear foot (foot) as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Chain Link Fence" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

Bid Item 44: Vehicle Gate 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. Each Vehicle Gate will be 20 feet wide and 
6 feet tall and consist of two 10 foot wide sections. Material will be as described in Item 550, 
Section 550.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
550, Section 550.4- This item will be measured by each as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. 
Payment for this item shall be made for "Vehicle Gate" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

12 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specffications 

Bid Item 45: Pedestrian Gate 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. Each Pedestrian Gate will be 4 feet wide and 
6 feet tall. Material will be as described in Item 550, Section 550.2. Construction will be in 
accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 550, Section 550.4. This item will be 
measured by each as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Pedestrian Gate" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

Bid Item 46: Removing Concrete Pilings 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 104, Removing Concrete. For this 
project, the limits of concrete pilings that will be removed are indicated on the Construction 
Drawings. Concrete pilings are approximately 2 feet by 2 feet by 3 feet deep. Actual 
dimensions may vary. Concrete pilings will be backfilled with a minimum of 18 inches of 
compacted clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material and 12 inches of topsoil. The 18 inches 
of compacted clay rich soil may be replaced with 18 inches of bentonite powder or pellets. Work 
will be conducted as described in Item 104, Sections 104.1 and 104.2. This item will be 
measured by each as described in Item 104, Section 104.3. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Removing Concrete Pilings" as described in Item 104, Section 104.4, Payment. 

END OF TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION SECTION 

13 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



u.s. mGHWAY 290 LANDFILL 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE 
MAY 2012 

Bid Spec. No. or S.P. S.S. 
Description Unit QTY Unit Price Amount

Item Desc.Code 
,', 

No No. 

1 500 Mobilization LS 1 $65,000.00 $65,000.00 
WEST CAP MAINTENANCE 

2 100 
Preparing Right of AC 

11.8 $2,420.00 $28,556.00
Way 

3 110 Excavation CY 38,094 $4.00 $152,376.00 
4 132 Embankment CY 19,047 $4.25 $80,949.75 

5 160 To!!soil SY 57,140 $8.00 $457,120.00 
AC 

6 164 Straw or Hay Mulch 11.8 $1,500.00 $17,700.00 
Seeding (Temp) 

LF 
7 506 Temporary Sediment 2,580 $2.50 $6,450.00 

Control Fence 
AREA "A" MAINTENANCE 

Removing Stabilized SY 
8 105 Base and Asphalt 3,815 $8.55 $32,618.25 

Pavement 
9 110 Excavation CY 435 $4.00 $1,740.00 

10 132 Embankment CY 37 $4.25 $157.25 

11 247 
Flexible Base, 6" SY 

3,815 $13.30 $50,739.50TypeD 
Dense-Graded Hot- TON 

12 340 Mix Asphalt, I W' 315 $95.00 $29,925.00 
TvpeD 

13 432 Riprap CY 30 $100.00 $3,000.00 
LF 

14 506 Temporary Sediment 80 $2.50 $200.00 
Control Fence 

AREA "B" MAINTENANCE 
Removing Stabilized SY 

15 105 Base and Asphalt 2,110 $8.55 $18,040.50 
Pavement 

16 110 Excavation CY 32 $4.00 $128.00 

17 132 Embankmenl CY 140 $4.25 $595.00 

18 247 
Flexible Base, 6" SY 

2,110 $13.30 $28,063.00TypeD 
Dense-Graded Hot- TON 

19 340 Mix Asphalt, I W' 175 $95.00 $16,625.00 
TypeD 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



LF 
20 506 Temporary Sediment 250 $3.00 $750.00 

Control Fence 
AREA"C" MAINTENANCE 

21 100 
Preparing Right of AC 

0.02 $2,420.00 I $48.40Way 
Removing Stabilized Sy 

22 105 Base and Asphalt 285 $8.55 $2,436.75 
Pavement 

23 110 = [§;avation CY 100 $4~ 
24 162 Block Soddin~ SY 98 S2.00 $196.00 
25 168 Vegetative WaterinQ KG 8 $500.00 $4,000.00 

26 247 
Flexible Base, 6" SY 

285 $l3.30 $3,790.50TypeD 
Dense-Graded Hot- TON 

27 340 Mix Asphalt, 1\12" 23 $95.00 $2,185.00 
TypeD 

28 506 
Rock Pilter Dam, LP 

20 $] 5.00 $300.00Type I (Install) 

29 506 
Rock Filter Dam, LF 

20 $9.00 .00Type 1 (Remove) 
LF 

30 506 Temporary Sediment 88 $2.50 $220.00 
Control Fence 

AREA "D" MAINTENANCE 

31 100 
Preparing Right of AC 

2.8 $4,000.00 ,200.00Way 
32 104 Removing Concrete SY 955 $8.55 $8,165.25 

Removing Stabilized SY 
33 105 Base and Asphalt 5,500 $8.55 $47,025.00 

Pavement 
34 110 Excavation CY 5,733 $4.00 $22,932.00 
35 1 ,vation CY 2,483 $14.00 $34,762.00 
36 D Embankment CY 3,820 $4.25 $16,235.00 
1.7 I Topsoil SY 12,870 $8.00 $102,960.00 

AC 
38 164 Straw or Hay Mulch 2.66 $1,500.00 $3,990.00 

Seeding(Temp) 

L::J 169 
Soil Retention SY 290 $8.25 $2,392.50Blankets 

40 506 
Rock Pilter Dam, LF 

65 $15.00 $975.00Type 1 (Install) 

41 506 
Rock Filter Dam, LP 

65 $9.00 $585.00Type 1(Remove) 
LF 

42 506 Temporary Sediment 580 $2.50 $1,450.00 
Control Fence 

43 550 Chain Link Fence LF 1,965 $22.50 $44,212.50 
44 550 Vehicle Gate EA 2 $1,150.00 $2,300.00 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



45 550 Pedestrian Gate EA 2 $425.00 $850.00 

45 104 
Remove Concrete 
Pilings 

EA 
80 $200.00 $16,000.00 

Base Bid Total $1,320,524.15 

Note: The TravIs County CommissIoner's Court Reserves the right to reject any and all bids at 
their sole discretion. 

Please note the followintz listed abbreviations used for orooosed units: 
Unit Abbreviations: CY = Cubic Yard, LF =Linear Foot, STA Stations, AC =Acre, EA = Each, SY = 
Square Yards, GAL Gallon, KG =:: 1000GAL, LS =Lump Sum, SF =Square Feet, TON = Ton, MO = 
Month, EAlDA Y = per Each per DAY 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXHIBIT B 

Cooperative Agreement Between Travis County, 


Joe T. and Joce l. Robertson, and Austin Country, Inc. 


Regarding Remediation of the u.s. 290 MSW Landfill 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Cooperation Agreement for Remediation of the U.S. 290 Municipal Solid Waste Landfill by Travis 


County, Austin Country, Inc., and Robertson Family 290 Property, LLC 


This Cooperation Agreement, hereinafter referred to as "Agreement" is made and entered into by and 

between Travis County (the "County"), Austin Country, Inc., ("Austin Country"), Robertson Family 290 

Property, LLC (the "Owner") hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties," and individually as a 

"Party") upon the premises and for the consideration stated herein. 

RECITALS 

Whereas, Lot 1, Browning-Cook Subdivision at 9500 Highway 290 East is identified in Travis County 

Appraisal District records as being a 146.782 acre tract owned by Joe T. Robertson ("Property"). 

Whereas, in approximately 1968, the County began leasing the Property from Joe T. Robertson for the 

purpose of operating a municipal solid waste landfill ("Landfill"). 

Whereas, on October 10, 1977, the Texas Department of Health issued Permit no. 684 authorizing the 

County to continue operating the Landfill for disposal of solid waste and to properly close the Landfill in 

accordance with all applicable regulations. 

Whereas, a lease between Joe T. Robertson and the County was executed by Joe T. Robertson and the 

County on December 29, 1980 ("County Lease"). 

Whereas, the County Lease provided, among other things, that the "County agrees to take any 

corrective action resulting from County closure operations and found insufficient for final closure 

approval by the Texas Department of Health". 

Whereas, in 1982, the County physically closed the Landfill and has invested resources on tasks 

associated with the post-closure care of the Landfill. 

Whereas, Austin Country and Owner represents that, in 1983, Austin Country began leasing from Joe T. 

Robertson a major part of the Property and in October, 2002, Joe T. Robertson and Joyce L. Robertson 

entered into a lease with Austin County whereby Austin Country leased approximately 130 acres of the 

Property in accordance with the lease attached hereto as Attachment "A/' which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein for all purposes, ("Austin Country Lease") and during all such lease periods, Austin 

Country has been using the entire leased property, including approximately 21 acres on the East Mound 

of the closed Landfill to operate a flea market, including the construction of buildings, parking facilities, 

and an on-site sewerage facility ("Flea Market Site"). 

Whereas, since Landfill closure in 1982 and continuing up to the present time, the County has managed 

ongoing post-closure activities at the Landfill, including conducting environmental investigations and 

assessments, cover and cap maintenance, correction of erosion, mowing of the cover vegetation, and 

operation of a leachate collection and conveyance system. 

1 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Whereas, in 1990, Joe T. Robertson and Austin Country granted County a license, attached hereto as 

Attachment "B," which ;s attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, ("license") to enter 

and use the Property for certain activities related to the closed Landfill. 

Whereas, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality ("TCEQ"} performed a site investigation at 

the Landfill site and issued a notice of Violation ("NOV") to the Parties on October 14, 2009, citing 

allegations that included the fa ilure of the Parties to register existing structures over a closed landfill 

unit and not ensuring methane has not accumulated in structures, the failure to correct subsidence and 

ponding of water on the closed landfill unit, the failure to investigate into the nature and extent of a 

release and impact to groundwater, and the failure to ensure final landfill cover is composed of no less 

than two (2) feet of soil. 

Whereas, the TCEQ NOV required a compliance plan and schedule from the Parties to correct all 

outstanding alleged violations. 

Whereas, the County developed and submitted to the TCEQ a compliance plan and schedule to resolve 

the outstanding alleged violations and Austin Country also submitted responses to the TCEQ to address 

the requirement for an enclosed structure registration and addressed the question of unsafe methane 

accumulations using monitoring equipment. 

Whereas, the County secured professional services and developed a Landfill Final Cover Evaluation of 

the East Mound in June 2010 and prepared a preliminary remedial plan that, for the first time, included 

cap maintenance activities in the flea market area, including an alternative to demolishing the flea 

market. 

Whereas, Austin Country agreed to cooperate and share in the costs with the County for remediation to 

address the TCEQ NOV in a manner that would allow the flea market to continue operation at the Flea 

Market Site. 

Whereas, Austin Country funded additional assessment activities and prepared a preliminary 

engineering design in 2011 to support a revised landfill cover remedial plan and provided the design to 

the County. 

Whereas, the County funded and received a final engineering design, documents suitable for bidding 

the construction phase of the remedial plan, including an engineers cost estimate of One Million Three 

Hundred Twenty Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Four Dollars and 15/100 ($1,320,524.15). 

Whereas, the engineer's cost estimate for the project provided the Parties with a basis for cost sharing 

and the agreement by the Parties that Austin Country will fund remediation costs in the amount of One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), as provided below. 

Whereas, the post-closure care requirements of the TCEQ in 30 TAC Section 330.463 require the owner 

or operator to retain right of entry and maintenance of rights-of-way in order to conduct maintenance 

and remediation activities, groundwater monitoring, gas monitoring, and operation of the leachate 

collection system for the entire term of the post-closure care period. 

2 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:1,320,524.15


Whereas, the Parties desire to resolve certain issues concerning the NOV and the continued operation 

of the flea market at the Flea Market Site, induding the following: (a) approval of a request to pave 

asphalt in an area totaling 185 feet by 400 feet to be used by Austin Country for parking or structures for 

the flea market operations that will be located west of the existing pole barn in accordance with the 

plans and specifications reflected in Attachment "C' attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 

purposes by this reference ("Asphalt Addition"); and (b) an agreement by the County to assist Austin 

Country in obtaining the approval of registration of enclosed structures currently pending before the 

TCEQ. 

Whereas, Joe T. and Joyce Robertson have recently conveyed the Property to the Robertson Family 290 

Property, LLC, a Texas limited liability company ("Owner") and, in conjunction with that conveyance, 

have assigned all of their rights and obligations associated with the County Lease, the Austin Country 

Lease, and the License to Owner, which has assumed all rights and obligations assigned. 

Therefore, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. 	 Austin Country will pay a share of the costs of the remedial work in the total amount of One 

Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars and no/100 ($130,000.00). The County will give Austin Country 

a credit towards this obligation in the amount ofThirty Thousand Dollars and no/l00 

($30,000.00) to reflect Austin Country's previously funding assessment activities and making 

other payments in connection with efforts with the County so that Austin Country's final 

outstanding obligation under this Agreement shall be One Hundred Thousand Dollars and 

no/l00 ($100,000.00) ("Austin Country Obligation"). Upon execution ofthis Agreement, Austin 

Country shall remit to the County a payment of Thirty Thousand Dollars and no/100 

($30,000.00). Austin Country shall pay the remaining balance of the Austin Country Obligation 

to the County in quarterly (every three (3) months) installments, due on the first business day of 

July, October, January, and April, without interest or any other charges. Each installment 

payment shall be in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars and no/l00 ($5,000.00), until the 

Austin Country Obligation is paid in full. If Austin Country fails to timely and satisfactorily 

comply with the payment requirements of this prOVision, the County may, at its option, 

accelerate the maturity of the remaining installments, in which event the unpaid balance of the 

Austin Country Obligation shall become immediately due and payable without demand or 

notice. In addition, the failure of Austin Country to meet the payment schedule of this 

Agreement constitutes the failure of Austin Country to timely and satisfactorily comply with the 

terms of this Agreement. If one or more payment is not timely or satisfactory in amount and 

only after Austin Country is provided a 10-business day cure period following receipt of notice of 

default from the County, at its option, the County may exercise any legal option or remedy 

available to it in order to secure payment of the remaining balance of the Austin Country 

Obligation. 

3 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:5,000.00
http:30,000.00
http:100,000.00
http:30,000.00
http:130,000.00


2. 	 Simultaneously with its execution of this Agreement, the County has approved for filing a permit 

modification application to amend Permit No. 684 for submittal to TCEQ for the following 

purposes (a) for the existing enclosed structures located within the flea market area; and (b) the 

County's final remediation plan for the landfill cap, and any necessary application fee. Each 

required Party has signed and certified the application. The County agrees to submit the 

approved application for permit modification to the TCEQ within ten (10) days of the effective 

date of this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the County would not have 

approved this permit modification application absent Austin Country and the Owner entering 

into this Agreement and that this Agreement was essential to the County's agreement to 

approve the permit modification application. In addition, the County hereby approves a request 

by Austin Country to pave the Asphalt Addition on the Flea Market Site for parking or structures 

for the flea market operations that will be located west of the existing pole barn, as reflected in 

Attachment "c" attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes by this reference. 

3. 	 The solicitation, selection, accepted project cost provided by bid and subsequent negotiation, 

payment for work, and contractor oversight for the construction phase of the remediation work 

will be carried out, determined and decided by the County in accordance with all applicable 

requirements and policies of the County, with appropriate consideration of input and comments 

from the Parties. 

4. 	 The Owner and Austin Country will allow temporary shutdown of use to limited portions of the 


Flea Market Site or other parts of the Property to allow for construction activities associated 


with the remediation. Unless an emergency arises, the County agrees to ensure its contractor 


provides at least forty-eight (48) hours of notice of the need for a shutdown of an area and to 


ensure the contractor keeps the time of a temporary shutdown of use to an area to the 


minimum time necessary to complete remedial work and tasks. 


5. 	 To the extent practicable, the County will ensure its contractor will consider alternative methods 

to accomplish the remedial work that results in a lesser disruption of flea market operations and 

shall provide Austin Country with advance written notice of when the County's contractor will 

be on the Flea Market Site or other parts of the Property. However, if Austin Country desires an 

alternative method that would increase the contractor's cost, including the need for a change 

order, then Austin Country shall promptly provide payment to the County prior to approval of 

the change order by the County, in the full amount of the added cost. In addition, unless an 

emergency arises, the County will ensure its contractor shall perform the necessary work by 

using sequencing of work areas and only perform work in or around the Flea Market Site 

Monday through Friday in order to attempt to avoid disruption to Austin Country's flea market 

operations. The County shall ensure that the contractor chosen by the County shall implement 

best management practices in connection with all work performed in and around Austin 

Country's flea market area. 

4 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



6. 	 The Parties agree that the County's activities and use of the Property under this Agreement are 

all9wed by the license. Owner and Austin County shall be provided written updates periodically 

as to the activities undertaken (including results/outcomes) by the County and directed by TCEQ 

on the premises. 

7. 	 No later than August 1, 2.012, Austin Country agrees to submit a written Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention Plan for the Flea Market Site (hereinafter "SWP3") to the County. The SWP3 shall be 

prepared by a qualified, Texas-licensed professional engineer or a Certified Professional in 

Erosion and Sediment Control (hereinafter "CPESC"). The SWP3 shall address the requirements 

of Provisions 1I1.A.1-4., IlI.A.5.(a)(4), III.A.S.-8., and III.B.2.-3. in the TCEQgeneral Permit No. 

TXROSOOOO applicable to facilities that discharge storm water associated with industrial activity. 

8. 	 Upon review of the SWP3 submitted by Austin Country, the County may, in writing, request 

additional information or revisions to the submitted SWP3, in which case Austin Country agrees 

to promptly address the comments and prepare revisions within thirty (30) days of the date of 

the request from the County. 

9. 	 Upon approval by the County, Austin Country agrees to fully implement the SWP3. The SWP3 

procedures must be updated to make changes that will eliminate erosion, promote drainage 

without causing ponding of runoff, to prevent and eliminate the co-mingling of solid waste or 

non-storm water waste streams with rainfall runoff. Austin Country agrees to promptly address 

reasonable written requests by the County or the TCEQ and to make SWP3 inspection records 

available to County staff for periodic audit or review. 

10. Simultaneously with its execution of this Agreement, County has issued all permits/certificates 

previously applied for by or on behalf of Austin Country relating to certain improvements to 

Austin County's existing septic system for the flea market operations ("Existing OSSF"). The 

Parties acknowledge and agree that without the issuance of the permits/certificates previously 

submitted by or on behalf of Austin Country relating to Austin County's septic system, Austin 

Country would not have entered into this Agreement and that this issuance was essential to 

Austin Country's agreement as reflected herein. In addition, Austin Country shall manage and 

dispose of all sanitary wastewater without discharge or leakage from sewage collection lines 

over the landfill cap. Any expanded or additional On Site Sewerage Facility ("New OSSF") 

planned for the flea market or other use of the Property following the Effective Date of this 

Agreement must be authorized by the County prior to operation and use, which authorization 

will not be withheld, delayed, or conditioned except as provided in the County and State of 

Texas OSSF regulations. All On Site Sewerage Facilities ("0SSF") shall be operated and 

maintained in accordance with all County and State ofTexas requirements, including where 

5 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



applicable all manufacturer or installer guidelines. Prior to construction of the EXisting OSSF, all 

sanitary wastewater must be removed from storage tanks at the flea market at a frequency that 

prevents any overflow or discharge. Sanitary wastewater must be transported by a TCEQ 

licensed hauler and conveyed to a facility authorized for the processing and disposal of the 

wastewater. Austin Country must maintain records as required by applicable State and County 

requirements, available for County inspection, showing the dates of transport, the quantity of 

wastewater collected, and manifest information showing the receipt of wastewater at an 

authorized facility. 

11. Once issued by TCEn, Austin Country shall comply with all requirements of its registration of the 

flea market's enclosed structures, including but not limited to 30 TAC Section 330.954(d) 

regarding gas monitoring. 

12. Owner and Austin Country shall notify the County in writing of any proposed significant 

construction proposed at the flea market area or on other parts of the Property that may affect 

the Landfill, other than as reflected in an attachment to this Agreement. Based upon the nature 

of the construction, the activity may be subject to a County Basic Development Permit, if 

required by applicable County rules and/or regulations. The permit must be issued prior to 

commencement of construction and shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld by the 

County. Owner and Austin Country shall not violate, disturb, alter, remove, or interrupt the 

integrity of the final cover of the Landfill. If Owner or Austin Country proposes to violate, 

disturb, alter, remove, or interrupt the integrity of the final cover, the Owner and Austin 

Country shall notify the County of the proposal and the activity must receive the prior written 

authorization from the TCEn, in accordance with 30 TAC Section 330.954(e) or other applicable 

rules. 

13. Austin Country and the Owner agree to allow the County to erect an intruder-resistant fence as 

a barrier between the flea market personnel, vendors, and customers and the remaining Landfill 

area. Austin Country shall provide adequate security to prevent unauthorized persons from 

entering the Landfill from the Flea Market Site. 

14. All Parties agree that TCEQ determines whether use of the Property, including the current use of 

the Property, is or is not materially detrimental to the TCEQ's landfill closure and post-closure 

care requirements and agree not to use the Property for any purpose that would be materially 

detrimental to TCEQ's landfill closure and post-closure care requirements. 

15. 	The Owner shall provide the County with written notice and the opportunity to review all future 

lease agreements, licenses, sales, or similar arrangements that allow for a continued use by 

Austin Country for the 21-acre flea market or any new use of the Property that affects the area 

above the closed Landfill that become effective subsequent to the Effective Date of this 

6 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Agreement. Upon review, ifthe proposed use ofthe Property is incompatible or will 

compromise the maintenance of the Landfill's closure care, the County may deny the proposed 

lease, license, or other arrangement for use of the Property. Any dispute will be resolved by 

declaratory judgment action in a Travis County District Court. 

16. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in this Agreement eliminates, 

changes, or otherwise affects any defenses, claims, rights, or duties of the Parties and their 

successors or predecessors in interest regarding the Austin Country Lease, the County Lease, the 

License, or federal, state, or local law. 

17. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Any notice given hereunder by any Party to another must be in writing and may 

be affected by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, when mailed to 

the appropriate Party's Designated Representative, at the addresses specified in Section 4, 

above, with copies as noted below: 

County: Steve Manilla (or successor), County Executive, Transportation and 

Natural Resources Department 

Address: P.O. 1748 

411 W. 13th St. 

Copy to: 	 David Escamilla lor successor) 

Travis County Attorney 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 

Attn: Tom Nuckols 

Owner: Robertson Family 290 Property, LLC 

Address: 3506 Bonnie Road 

Austin, Texas 78703 

Copy to: Jim Arnold,Jr. 

Attorney at Law 

Address: 406 Sterzing Street 

Austin, Texas 78704 

Austin Country: Austin Country, Inc. 

Attn: Marion B. Cook, President 

Address: 9500 Highway 290 East 

7 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Austin, Texas 78724 

Copy to: David Rodriguez 

Richards Rodriguez & Skieth, llP 

Address: 816 Congress Avenue, Ste. 1200 

Austin, Texas 78701 

The Parties may change their respective addresses for purposes of notice by giving at least five 

days written notice of the new address to the other Parties. If any date or any period provided 

in this Agreement ends on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the applicable period will be 

extended to the next business day. 

(b) As used in this Agreement, whenever the context so indicates, the masculine, 

feminine, or neuter gender and the singular or plural number will each be deemed to include 

the others. 

(c) This Agreement contains the complete and entire Agreement between the 

Parties respecting the Project, and supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements, 

representations, and understandings, if any, between the Parties. This Agreement may not be 

modified, discharged, or changed except by a further written agreement, duly executed by the 

Parties. However, any consent, waiver, approval or other authorization will be effective if 

signed by the Party granting or making such consent, waiver, approval, or authorization. 

(d) No official, representative, agent, or employee of the County has any authority 

to modify this Agreement, except pursuant to such express authority as may be granted by the 

Commissioners Court of the County. 

(e) The Parties agree to execute such other and further instruments and documents 

as are or may become necessary or convenient to effectuate and carry out the stated purposes 

of this Agreement. 

(f) If performance by any Party of any obligation under this Agreement is 

interrupted or delayed by reason of unforeseeable event beyond its control, whether such event 

is an act of God or the common enemy, or the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign 

conduct other than acts of the County under this Agreement, or the act of conduct of any 

person or persons not a party or privy hereto, then such Party will be excused from such 

performance for such period of time as is reasonably necessary after such occurrence to remedy 

the effects thereof. 

(g) To the extent allowed by law, each Party will be responsible for, and will 

indemnify and hold harmless the other Parties, their officers, agents, and employees, from any 

and all claims, losses, damages, causes of action, lawsuits or liability resulting from, the 

8 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



indemnifying Party's acts or omissions of negligence or misconduct or in breach of this 

Agreement, including but not limited to claims for liquidated damages, delay damages, 

demobilization or remobilization costs, or claims arising from inadequacies, insufficiencies, or 

mistakes in the Plans and Specifications and other work products or any other materials or 

services a Party provides under this Agreement. Each Party will promptly notify the others of 

any claim asserted by or against it for damages or other relief in connection with this 

Agreement. 

(h) Before attempting to terminate this Agreement for default, the Party alleging 

the default shall notify the other Parties in writing of the nature of and the means of curing the 

default. No Party may terminate this Agreement without providing the defaulting Party a 

reasonable amount of time to cure the default. The Parties acknowledge that in the event of 

default on any obligation under this Agreement, remedies at law will be inadequate and that, in 

addition to any other remedy at law or in equity, each Party will be entitled to seek specific 

performance of this Agreement. 

0) This Agreement will be construed under the laws of the State of Texas and all 

obligations of the Parties hereunder are performable in Travis County, Texas. Any suits pursued 

relating to this Agreement will be filed in a court of Travis County, Texas. 

(j) Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement held by 

a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective will not impair, invalidate, or 

nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof will be confined to the clause, 

sentence, provision, paragraph, or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective. 

(k) This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 

hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns. No Party may assign 

its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent of the other Party, 

provided, however, that the Owner may sell or otherwise transfer part or all of its interest in the 

Property to a third party who agrees to be bound by this Agreement and all related agreements. 

(I) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement, 

express or implied, is intended to confer upon any person, other than the Parties hereto, any 

benefits, rights or remedies under or by reason ofthis Agreement. 

(m) This Agreement is effective upon execution by all the Parties. This Agreement 

may be executed simultaneously in one or several counterparts, each of which will be deemed 

an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. The terms of 

this Agreement will become binding upon each Party from and after the time that it executes a 

copy hereof. In like manner, from and after the time it executes a consent or other document 

authorized or required by the terms of this Agreement, such consent or other document will be 

binding upon such Party. 

9 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



(n) The County and Owner hereby acknowledge that by entering into this 

Agreement, Austin County, Inc. is not assuming or agreeing to assume any responsibilities, 

financial or otherwise, for the remediation of the existing landfill cap under either the 

requirements ofthe Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act or RCRA Subtitle D. 

(0) Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to hinder or prevent Owner from 

making lawful use of part or all of the Property in a manner that does not {i} have a material 

adverse impact on the maintenance or care of the landfill and/or (ii) violate the terms of this 

Agreement, the license, the County lease (to the extent still applicable), or the Austin Country 

Lease. 

TRAVIS COUNlY, TEXAS 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, County Judge 

DATE:___________ 

ROBERTSON FAMILY 290 PROPERlY, LLC 

JOYCE l. ROBERTSON, President 

DATE:___________ 

AUSTIN COUNTRY, INC. 

MARION L. COOK, JR., President 

DATE:___________ 

10 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXHIBIT itA" 

lEASE 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PAGE Bl/12
11124/2009 06:43 15122318613 

NOV-2"-2ee~ 12 ;:)'0 Pt1 1'1",.." 1..,-00\.11'1'''''''' 

, . 

LEASt 

This LC8$O, lnado and cnt\!l'e\\ int.'O this aD ~IV ofCkltober, 2002, by and 1lctwoeIx.JOE T. 

aOBBRTSON andI0YCEL.ROBlmTSON. A\I.$dn,'f.nwlsCounty.nXM,herelnaftc:collcctlvely 

tef'cmd to u'1..and1oId,n and AUSTtN COUNTRY.me.,II, TtmS tor,porntl.oD,bcxct~ndCmd 

WITNESSETH, 

1. DHWt!oI,U&ft'emis ThatuHlQ.QS.Iliennion ot'theoovenanfsbcrcincontained on 

the part ottheTenant10 bekeptandper!ormcci. th&l.a:ndlQrddocs hereby teJllJO attd demise u:alo the 

Tenantthat~ ttat property ofapproximately 130 a(n"eS and Unpt'OVWlOntB thCUlOD,located on 

U.S. HighWay 290 East in Tmvis C<lutttyt Texae, more particu18J'\Y described oli Bxhjbit "A'n 

llttache4 hltoto end iftC()tpohltcd heccln by ~ for lIl.l pertinent purposes. 

2. Tmm W!d Romal. 'l'be tcro\ otthis Lc~ shall bro tQr a period often (10) y~ to 

COlD.Ill.mCC NO\l~ber 1~ 201)2. and to end atmidnJgb.t. Octobet 31 t 2012. 

a. Durlng tbetenuhmof.Tenant$hlllpaytot.DDdIordamiDbnuln;vear1yt~ 

of Thirty ThoU$ftlld aud NoflOOtha Dollars ($30,000.00) payable in.. semI-tmn:u.al in~ of 

Fifteen 'l'ho'l..iS'$1ld and NollOOths DDllars (S15.0oo.00) each or aballllllY Landlord a. sum equal to 

~von and olle-blilfpereent (7 %%) of the yearly gt'b9S reJ:ll:lJ.l recoip~ (as d~d below) ofthe 

fi1rmerslilea.:mar~t business dono by it on the d~mlsed premi.ses, wbitlhevcr sum shall be greater. 

b. Thetetm"gtossTel'ltaJ. teeeipts,a 81llSedher~.shallll!l\tbjcd;to th$exeepti.oD 

and authori2acl d~uot1onsas bereino.ib:r $~\ furth, mean1hO graBS amount received by Tenant from 

Pagtl 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:th$exeepti.oD
http:S15.0oo.00
http:semI-tmn:u.al
http:30,000.00


COOl<MARKETINGLLC PAGE 132/12 
012 926 2?"'~ p. u, 

to be open for.a f~flea ma:r.kct operation 52 weekends pet year (104 days). Gro8!l rentals 

apeoiflcally do not includo any other income, espeoially, but not limited to. food and beverage 

cow::cssions and. patidng charges. 

c. ~;8ex~ted fromTenant's ~s rentals, as 'the term is U!edhe\'~m, the 

amount of any tax receipta which bas to be accounted. for by Tenant to MY gOVmmlel1t or 

governmental agency. Th_ sball be deducted frons Tenant'~ gross rentals fur the purpose of 

accounting to Landlord the arnowrt. ofany actual refunds or credits made by Tenant. 

d. Tenant 5hall keep ful1, complet~ abd lll'Oper books, reoo~ and accounm-of 

preJlllses; such as boob~ reeords and IlCC!1UIltlJ ill\;luding my mlleJ tmt ~rt that1'mant JIUly bo 

req,u.ir<:d to fumiah to any Suvommcnt or covc:nuncntlll t1Scn~. The boob, rc::oo:rda and. acGoun~ 

ahell at w.1 "limes be open to hupettion of Latidlord, Landlord's auditor, or other roUborhled 

e. Wi1hin fifteen (IS) days after the end of e~h ealendaunontJuxnnmDnoing 

with the Qffective date of tb.iB Leaset end ending with the fifteenth (1S'1 dq of tho month next 

succeedi:og the last month of'th6 tease tetm> Tenant sha111:imtlsb Laodlord with a $t.Irtement to be 

ec:rtiftedas cOl)'ettby TenantortheemployeeofTerumtanthorlzcd.o to certify.wblQh shall setfbrth 

the gross rentals of each splCe in the demised premi* for the month just concluded and the 

authorlud deduatious, ifany, therefrom. IfTenant shall at arrJ time cause aD audit ofTcnam1s 

btlJiness to be made by a certified public accountant. TenJmt shaD fumish LatlcllOl'd with Acopy of 

suoi1auditwithout any cost or expc:nse to Landlord. Landlordmay) ODce in any oalenw},ear, callS! 

an audit of the business ofTenant for the P~l1g twelve (lZ) month pcriOO to be ma~e by a
'-'-- ..--,.,..............--......_-*.-...._... _.... - ... _ 

__n.__._ __..-....-.1......... 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PAISE. 03/12COOKMARKETIt-lGLLC
11/24/2009 e6:43 15122318613 

oertWed public IlOOountant of Landlord's own selt:Olion) and- if the statemen.ts of aross rentals 

previously xnsde by Ten.antto L'UIdlor.d for suchtwelve(12) month pettod sballbe to\U1d tQ bt more 

than £lve pmcent (S%) lessthan the amount ofTCl'Iatit's gross Nntala shown by such audit. Tet1ant 

. shal.1 bnmedhncly pay thel!Ostafsuch aucllt(l'lotto oxQCcd FiveThousand Dollars [SS,OOOD as wen 

.us the additioll81 rmtW tb.etelu sbo~ to be: payable to Tenant to Landlord~ otherwise, tho cost of , 
AUch audit ~n be lIDid. by Wdiotd. 

f. TheacccptMcoby Landlonlofanymoney paidto himbyTonantssadditioxW 

rental fOr the demiflM premisn Id shown. by any ~CDt thrnished by l'cwmt shall not be an 

admi8sion of the ICCU1l1CY of the: statement, or of 'the suflioif;1\aj> or the amoum of the addfticmal 

tental ps:yment. but Lmdloro sball 'be entltled at &1y time within tbi.rt.y (SO) dILYS a;ft¢t tho .re«rlpl of 

at:r¥sucbaddltlonaJ.rentalpaymenttoqueftionthesufficicneyofthemnountt'hereolamthe~ 

cfthe $~tements furnished-by Tenant tojustify the 8&\1110. For the p~stofenablb)g theT..andlord 

to ohcck the aec::ura,0Y ofany sucb statetnenu, and tM sufficIency ofatJ:f additional rental payment 

ma.d$ in. accOl'<taMc th~withtTen8f\t $hall for such period oftwelVt (12) months aftersubmission 

andQthor datawhleh in. tiJ:ryway beaJ:on Tenant's gross space~talBand any autho~ deductions 

therefrom. as shown by any such statem~t, and sball upon requMmake the same available to the 

Landlord, :t.andlordtsaudltor.1'eptc!lentatlveotagentror~natMytimcduri»g such twelve 

(l~) month. pcrlod. 

3. PAl!! 9iEmmiac,a 1'h~ Tenant aovemmts that dtlriIl.s the tean hereof. it will use the 

\eased~ises for .. ftmnerslfl.ea ma:rk~tOf Dn"! othc:t la.wful.,!,Uposc and sball not permit the same 

to be used for any illegal p\lIPosell. 

Page 3 

----------- -_..... 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:ftmnerslfl.ea
http:statemen.ts


PAGE 04/12COOKMARKETIHGLLC 
p.e151.1 "as 2?.,:s -----.,-... 

" 

4, ~ All 'taltcson1bebuildinasandimp~verrtlmt!ilocatcd oD1l1edenUsed~ses 

sblill be pata by tho Tenant upon the presentatlOrl oflbe tall: bilt to Tenant~nNlOvemberofoacb. year 

5. Aaianment .,au:blf®ns. The Tenant or the TellBt\t's successon in intotest. by 

operation of law at otherM8O, shall not B8sign this Lease withollt the Llndlord~s wrItten COllI~~ 

which ,b(Ul Dot bo unn::asonably withheld. except Tenant may aa8ign thit Lease to It COIpOIation or 

limited liability oom.f!auy f'ormod by Tenant and own_a or OOlltroDc:d by 'the shareholdels ofTl!IiaDt. 

6. Dlilif,jes and Setyjr&l· The 'I'4Mt1t shall,Pfly Coran Utilities1\unishedto the dcmi8Cld 

all the utility deposits. 

7. Btrtty _ Ialimaiml by umdkd. Th~ Tenrurt:, a1811)" time during the't.etms shall 

permit retIlIonab1e hlspeetlon of the demised premlacs durina xeuonablc noun by 'the LDndlotd or 

the Landlord's agents, !ePresentatives or att/)me'1s. 

8. ~ Allnotices wbicbmaybepropetandneees93lYfGrthepartiesh~to serve 

on eQoh other may blS pusonatly scrved~ or may be effectually served by serving upon saidplll1y or 

pBrtitl$ by mailine thl1: origina1. of!lmd notice, addmle(J to the pm:t)' or paniO$1Q be served. prop"d» 

surmped,. rogfsmed and 1ldckessed to die 111.11 known addteu of.$uoh patl1 or parti=. 

9. ~oftm»iBi. On the last day ofthe te1'mlli~tQin demised or t>n the: sooner 

temii.nll.tion thereof. the Tenant shall peaceably and qnletl.y reteu.a, surrendet and y1$ld up to the 

LandiM'd all and singular the demised premises except that Tenant ma)' remove any or all 

imprO'VtDlc.ott located on the premises provided alllease paytnel')te are current 

10. FiISt B-~. Ifduring the tmn of1his Lease1he LftJld10td shaU l'ecei....e Ilbonaftde 

. offer to purchase: the demised premises which the LandlQrd desires to accept. the LandIOtd shall 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



11/24/2a09 B6:43 15122318613 COOKMARKETlt-aLC PAGE 05/12 

NUY-2~-2GQ9 t2t54 PM 512 ~2e 2796, . 
1""-TR-ANSM--I-SS-I-ON-\lER-l-F-:tC-A-~-ION-R-EP-QRT--.....T------·--..·-

DOffil'1. CD . • ~ ~ ~IMf16 
FAX: allis 

notify tbe Tenant by ft~mall of &Uob bona fide offtr statina "Il~t .. f. 

lIW~~~!tingBS to whe:thcr the TOlW1t&l$im~ ~demlsed~ .1btaNnO 
. DlRA,TlON B 
-&e~id OR the um01enD8 SIi ~()nttit1ed hl1he b(,.\~gto.melvt:d. by LaDCllbtd. 

MlDE 5TANDAP..D 
...Imumt fQ msptmd trt tho I.tmCIlIUd's DOtlQc oftba 

bonan.deo~~~~~~bean et~ol'1nDttopurobu~tbcdcmist:dp[l;mI!lts. 

!tthc tCIlllllt elects '0 purchase the demiitd P1'*ttllses.1he Landlord slWl GORvey the same to ahe 

Tenant for the price and 011 ~ terms contained in salr;l 'bona tide offer. Ifthe Tenant e)~either 

db:eotly or iIIdlIeotly not to purobase ihe dom!lJeQ prem!ses in BCCOt&!nCC 'With the 'Rl:tm! and 

conditioJ:\S6fMldboWl fida of&tthon 'theLalidtortblUlll be811ilxttty to 110\1 and COtJlley 'the demiSed 

p~ for l.meo equal to orinClX:CCSS ofthat contained in tbe 'bona fide Q&r and und.r 00 l~ 

onOt(lU$ terms and conditlO1ll. /ml' such conveyance to a thiN party shalt be su~iaot to Tenat\t'll 

rights under this Lease.. 

LandlOJd gdnts Tenant tbrte (3) opOOI'lS to mltwtbis Lease for sut.Ct.9sive perl.od$ ofiive 

(S) years each begUming with the expiration otthc term oftbis Lwe. The tenm. covenants. ~ 

IUld oondtttons ofthe~ tease shall bet.lle same astllose herem, eltcepttheperoCJ1tagcofPH 

rc:ntai recoiptIJ to be p0.i4 aJ tcIlt abaIl incrcuc to nine: IWd O11~IWr~nt(~ ~%) during the. fimt 

fk,e (5) YIlm'1:onewal tmn. to ten and one·baltJli'rcaru: (l0 ~%) dnri"g tbe !IeC(lud five (5) )'9Q:t 

r611tWal Winn tmd to elevenand OIJcobalfperccnt(ll ~%)during1hethird:fivc (5)yCJaranewaI lotm. 

To ~eroi,e any opde>1l Tenant must gave Landlord wdtim ~co ofits .Intention to do so at least 

ihirty (30) days botare the renewal term (l()rnmen~. 

11. Quiet £JUoymtnt. Ifend SO long lIS the Tenant \?AYS the rent reserved by this Lease 

trageS 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



pA(£ 06/12a::JOl(MARKETINGLLC 
p.e..;S'\2 921'3 ~T!:t5 

and petforms.,d obsorvet aU the COVOlWlts and ptO'ViSiOWl htreof, "the T~t shall quietly ~oy 

the dettWJedPtenll$q subject to the tenDS ofthis Lease. 

12, Sycceuou .. Aulans. The tmnsf coVtm.antll, eonditiol'!!. provisions and 

agn:lUllenUi in this Lease contained slwll in every case apply tot be blndins upon. and inure to the 

benefit ofthe pmtietl hereto aMtheir respective BUectBSOl$ and assigns. 

13. LlabUitx Juu!JlI1Si. It.is Alrllla stipulated and agteed by and between the partle.s 

hereto thatthc Tenant shall 'J)frIVida. LMdIOtd and TeMnt Liability lmnuance Cor1h$jointbenc1it of 

the Landlord and Tenantand shall keep suchinsurancein1he.amo\Wtotno leM tlum 'l'hreo,Hundmd 

Thousand and NoIIOOtbs Dollats ($300,000.00) for injury to one PlUSOtJ, and One Million IlI1d 

No/lOOths Donars ($1,000>000.00) for iojwy to mOle than Qne: person dw:ing the lifo oftbls 'f..ea&eI. 

14. Qgfault or Bankni,t>lcy otr,nallt. Should the tenant make defilult in ~ fU11l11ing, 

keeping, observing or performing ofanyone or mote ofthe covenants, condition! oragreemcotsin 

this l.ea$C set forth and contained on the part of the Tenao.t to be fulfiUed. kept, performed lJl' 

obaorvcd, LIWdlQpJ Shall110tif:{ th~ Tenan.t by registered. mail and $hould tho Tenant tan to mttiif 

or cure said def'.\lJtwithin thirty (30) days aftC1' suchza:eiptQtwellnotice, then theLandlordQ1I\y. 

It its optiOIl, temlinatc the LtJL'IC nnd I!Oniide.r th~ T.-nam IU tenant ~ !llIffi:rance and immediately 

t'emtel1aPQn and l'eJ)OSSCsl the said demiaed premJsea. If, by reasQl'I of'su¢h default on the part of 

the Tcnant, the Landlord shallpa.y or be Hable to pay any au.ms ofmoney \Vha1$ocvCt:' or to do any 

801 requiring the payment ofmonoy. Qr ittb~Tenant.shall fAil to pay any sum. Of SUlU$ ofmoney 

agreed to be pnid by the Tenant under pro~isions ofthq Lease, sBid sum8 ofm~ together with 

all in.t~t, (l()sUs and &mlagos tl1aYbedet(Qed atLan.dlord'lI optionadditional rent sndmaybeadded 

to any subsequent Installment of l'e6t and bt coUedible il) 't11e same tnaruler and with the same 

Page 0 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:1,000>000.00
http:300,000.00


11/2~/2B89 06:43 15122318613 COOI<MARKETINGLLC PAGE 87/12 
nUT ...."'-..:.00:1' .I:"":~f$ 1"1'1 Aust. i I"'.-Coun't; 1"'" $12 ~::2;e 2"195 "'.04 

remedies as ifthe samcbad l)eOt1ret\t specifically memd h~ln. Should the demised premi!es be 

dCle.rted,vaoatod orabandoned duringtlwdcmiHdterms, thctLandlordIhIlllba:vethc:righttorc:emer 

'the same by forcct or otherwlso, 'Without'bcb:lg UlIblc to any prosto\'ltion tlw:efor Wldnmy relet said 

p.re,tnises as ili.agent anclthc aceountofthe Tenant, reeeivo the tentlb.-or. applying II8m6 fimt to 

the PlI1D1Ct1.t of ImCh expenses M the Landlmd may be pm to 1I>'cnteriDIJ. rd~g and putting tho 

demised~ in gOoOotderand c:ondition, andihtu to thopa.yme,nt o£tho borelribef<»:o:tll8er'led 

iNtalhnents ofre~t aild at1m' sums added theMo by LlIl1dlord 'J)\l1'$\1JIDt 10 the provisions ofthiJ 

Leasewilh inteIes~and thebalaru:e.ifany~to brJ paidoverby tlmBDt-and any defi.oimcy whichmay 

ariae, TenAnt hereby covenanu to pa.y i1\ run forthwith upon statement rendered by Lendloxd. 

Showd the Ttnant fail or omit to nlIIke any payment of f4tJ.'1 installment oftent and/or the 

othct &UlIlS added thereto by tho Landlord puxsuant to th~ provklonll of this Ltasc. or $DY part of 

eitherOt 'bothwithin.thirty {SO} days afterthesame sbalt havebecome due, orshouldTenant4efautt 

in tbe perfonmmce ofany of1h.e otheronTenam', part to be1UItl1led;, kept. observtd Of ptIfonned 

and 1lill to tectlry we same for 11 puriud of'tWtly (~) days a&x Ifuch de:ftwll, or shQubll11C Tenld 

make :D'I a.sd~ for the benefit of Nitors. or be fllsu:lI~d i:n liquidation,. (IJ: file II vobUltaly 

peti.tiOtJ. illbanb'uptcy. 01: by IllYcourta<\iudieated abankrlrptor insolventl or Mould ape1ition. f()t 

~za.tionofthe Tenantbe tiled agaiItsttheTenutun(l(\rtho BI.t)Jk,rupk.y Aot and b"approved 

by the. Court in which filed. or shoUld an ~elJUtion o.r attachmlult bo is$U~ against 1110 Teaant or 

agabmt a!W Dftho tenant's property or effects 8Ild. as a result thereo~ there be an actual tll1dl:lg or 

occupation of tho demised p~ses by someone other thaD. 1h_ TClWlt; or shoul4 a. temporaxy ot 

permanent receiver, trostl;C or tIflsignefl oftbe property ofthe Tenant. 'be appointoot th.ttl In any ()Qe 

Or more ofsuch ClIents. in addition to landlord', Eight to =Join any actuld or1hIeatened bIeaeb of 

Page? 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:balaru:e.if


11/24/26S9 06:43 15122318613 COOKMARKETIHGLLC PAGE 09/12
NUv-~6-~ae9 12:$6 PM A~s~ln-CoY~~ry en 7. 'J)2S 279~ p.es 

my ofsaid ~,oo'Vrm~tB,COliditionsol' agreements, theLandlordmay1 a~ theLan.d1ord'a optiOIlt 

~onsider the TetW1t II.!I a ttnant at suffi:rsnce and reeD1ct'u~n *11d. ~~I the: whole of thr: 

d<mUacd premi3CfJ. 

notice oftlte foot tbatdleTenantlihaUnever uod.cr /Uly tlro\JDlll'aoCl:St have the: PQWClt to Bubject the 

in~n::stofthcLandlordfnfJ:u:,pnmlIse9tomjJml)lw.do·s:laborotmI\ttriBlmantBlienorliC'DS9to.ny 

Jdtld.. All pernnns who tna.y herea:ftCt'. durinC the life or 'Ibis Least, fu.mi9A 'WtIrk. labor. Jet"lJict, 

and/or materials to the pretl'Ji.$t$ upon the request or order of the Tenant O't' 8IlJ pc;IfOl1 <llaimina 

under, by ortbrougb.theTenant mu,tlook. wholly10 the brtercst oftheTenantadnot to tbe.t ofthe 

LanOlOId. Tenant coverumts and agrees with1he t.nndlord tbat Tenant wilt not pJ:mnt or suffer to 

be aledorotalmed aallinst1beintet'e!l1oftl1e Llbidlord Inweleasedpremiscsdurlng thecontinuance 

oftbisLeaseany lien <If;' liens tJfDD9lcind, and troysuphlieJl beCllQmedor rued, it shall bQ 1he. duty 

of the Tenant promptly to ca\l8f lhl premises to be released ftom $U.Ch claitn u fonows~ eith« 

tluOugh the deposIt into IroU~ pursuwrt l(Hlbl~llte. Ot'then~11Il'Y SIlDlS oimQn~Y7or in any other 

WAy which ie oompat.""t le~a1ly to eft'ec:t1ht -releas& oftb.e Landlotd's interest ib the ptemise. fotm 

the said. cllIhll. 

16. Erniunt Domain. It is further undemood and agreed that it at any time dltting the 

oontin~ceofthiaLeas~ the legal tiue tothc demised real estnte or lbo hnprovem.entsorbuildings 

located thcJeo14 or any portion thereof~to be taken or appropriatedthrough1heelCetOi~ofthe ~wer 

of cm.1nttlt domain, there shPll be a di\liaion ofthe proceeds and awatds in suoh condemnation 

proceedhJ&s, and the same $hall be thll: award to Landlord IIccordlng to real efItate 'Value clCC1U$lv~ 

ofitnprove.tl1Cni!. Awards to Teuant shall be according to improvements and income. 

Pages 

.
. ' 
f • 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:in~n::stofthcLandlordfnfJ:u:,pnmlIse9tomjJml)lw.do�s:laborotmI\ttriBlmantBlienorliC'DS9to.ny


PAGE 09112COQKMARKETIN8LLC 
512 9:ote 279:5 P_1lI6 

11. A;ttomC!lts F@. !fat any Umc itman be nocessatY for the parties to institute suit, 

or to retain an attorney to tmbrce the ptovisi011l ofthis Lease. then the losing pany sl1a11 PAY the 

prCMilingparty .te88Onableattornoy"sfees,~ and suchothetohaIges lIS saidpart;y mayinoor 

in so doing. 

18:. Mmonmdum of~. 'ThiJ Lease is nM to bo tceomcd by either parly, bowtvef, 

1\ memonmdum ()flc8SC win be :recmded. 

19. Qptll"ln to brehm. twdlord _ granted 'I'et'llUlttho option to purdlasethe lcMed 

p.temise1Jpon terms endconditiOl1S fl'I.l'Il'e padiculady !:et f'Q1't1l in. the: attached eol:1l:mCt tor weand 

tmrohasc. Tenant may cxc:ro~ said option at any time as setforth thece;ll. Allleesepaymanullh$1l 

be paid and ~ \1DtU ttanaf'et oftitlt has ooouned. 

~O. Temm1's Right to IsmJnate. Notwitbst.aDding any provision in this Lease to the 

contrary, Tenant sbNlm\lc the tight and option to terminate this Lease ifitbecomes JmpossIble or 

impracttc.alfor T(:J1anttQ openlte Tf)lUll1fs flea. mati<et busmm. onthedemisedptemisesfor~ 

beYond Tenant's comrol sacb. as go\,tmmel\taI rolc, tcgulatlon, prohibition or momoIinm or 

PJlSo9 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:impracttc.al


PAGE 18/12~IHGLLC 

$12 '>128 2;i.,O p.07 

IN WlrNESS WImR.'BOP, tb.opartie8_tobav~hO'{cuac1orsetthekmmdsa.ndaf.6x~their 

seals an the date thst above~. 

~\anM. sealed And dslivered 
in the ptesenclS of: 

AUSTl.N COUNtRY. INC.. aTfOOIS 
~~on 

By, .21~~ 

MsdQn Leo Cco1s:..1r., Pmldt:ilt 

'Page 10 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:Cco1s:..1r


11/24/28a9 06:43 15122318613 COIJ!(MARKETlNGl.LC PAGE 11112 
NUV-"'~-~ItI\lI'5I 12:59 PM Au:!!!.'t. II'l-COUI."........ 
 ::it:2 928 279M 

omONFORSALJI! AND PURCIfASE 

It i8 htreby agreed by end between Landl'Ord and Tenant that an option to pun;hase Hid 

promises isaranted10Tenant at thcond ofthe tmtloflheLcaseoratl1tx.tCD!lOD thereof,:/Ia mfcired 

to in Paragmph. 19 ofat:t.Qcbed Leak. 

Pricc afsaid pmpmy ,ball 'bEl detemdD.C4 as follows: 

1. Tonmt ab.aU "t_on ~p~r;d30r with at lout flve (5) y~ cxpct:il:J)CC 

prcpari.ng.appra.iWIJ ofco~jalpropetty inTmvill Co~ty,Texas. and require An 

appraisal to be :made oftho ptcmiscs. 

2. Landlord sball seloct M appraiser with at least fl'lfc (5) years experience 

prepsrl.ngappraisals ofcomtnereiapropert.y;nTravisCounty, Texas, andrequire an 

appraisal to 'be tn:ade oftbcpremises. 

Those tw'O figw:es shllll '-to1aled and dlvided bytwo to determine said price. TetJ:n$ shallbeoash 

within one hundred eighty (180) clays Of teIms tIS agteed11pOn by both, parties. 

Appraisers wUl Otl.udvised tQ ~I!:I propeny :Cor tts blghest gel best uao without 

T~ shall notitY LandIold ofhis intent10 \'fUICbase six (6) months prior: to termmalion elf 

this Lease or &ny ICI16Wal term. 'tenant may exercise this op1iQ1l only ifaU rents and mOllie! due 

Landlord are current and ptdd til ful1. 

WHness: 

/k;d ~.r2~ . 

Pagel! 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:detemdD.C4
http:COIJ!(MARKETlNGl.LC


COOKMARl<ETIHGl..LC PAGE 12/1~11124/2009 06:43 15122318613 

p.eli\ 

Pago 12 


--~----------------'-'--------- ---- --... 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



LICENSE AGREEMENT 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



, ... 

. ! .... 

'., . ,"'" or '1'IlWl I 
S 
S 

. ' 

COUWfT or TRAVIS 

'l'hle IIqreelllent. ill entered into tilt. day by and bet_n 
'ka"b County, .. political .ubdivbion of the State of 'rex•• , 
lIildiI!naft.r called "Lice.....,· and JOII ".. Robert.on and Au.tin 
CouDt.ry, Ina., of A.u.tin .. 'texa., h.ez:.inaftor collectlve1y 
nlerred to a. "Licenlor ,.. who ..re the owners, 48 record title 
~-lg••or and 1 •••••, respectively, of that certaln Browning , 
'Coolie SubcUvlalon d••cr.1bed In a plat recorded at Plat Book 83. 
pag•• 72A lind 72B of the Plat Record. of Travi. County, 'rexa., 
Iler.lnafter referred to •• the ·Property,

WHEREAS, ~he Licens.. deair., to exercise certain ri9ht. and 
privilege. upon the pro~rty; 

.aw, THBRB'ORB, 1t 1. agreed •• follow•• 

I. Grant of Licene. 

Lio.naoz do•• hereby trent unto Licon... , it. -.ploy"',"''''1:'' and a.sJ.9ne, the l'i9ht to a"tAr onto the Pl'OptIrty
fro. tI.e to tr.e fOE the followin9 purpose. and .ubject to 
the conditione 88t. fox~h hereint 

1) 

2) 

J) 

to conduct 8urveyin9. obae~e conditIon., take 
~a.ure.ent., and collect inforaatlonr 

at the option of Licenaee, to conduct an 
environlllontal ••••••l!M!nt'.' on • po:rtion of 
the Frope~y In connection .~th .. clo8$d solid 
" ..to facility, Lncluding the rlqht. to drill 
test boring', collect •••pl•• , lind .anitor 
well atationl, .nd 

At the aption 01 LiC:,.R.,e,., to parfor-. any 
n.c••••ry ra••di.l work to .itlgal:e any 
.nvi...en••nt.l concern. rev••led by the 
$n~lro~ntal ........nt or otherwlle. 

II • Condition. 

Licen... _or... to 1.1.11: u.. aetivit.1•• on the Prope...ty to 
~t: portion of the property.. i_ reasonable and neee.,aty 
t.o carry out the purpo••• of tlthCJrant. ticen••e further 

1 
QIJ 132 1897 

.j, 

" 

__ --ol 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



••a.. to "..-1.: ••, f.ncin; O~ ot.hel' lJIpcOHll4tau ot 
Lloeaaor xelocate4 during ita activit1•• upon the '~rty.
In ...1\1on, LJ.c.... &91'"- I:hat U 18 ll:ellpo.lbl. foc anr 
ia,uzy or da.a9. call,.d by trl. .cta and ne,lltnc_ of 
Lice...., ita ap1o,..., agent, and a••19nl 1n conn.etLon. 
with the riiht. granted under thl. Agree.ant. 

III. 1'al:1ll 

Tnl. 1l1r....nt .hall ren." autClllatically froa yaar t.o year
•• nec•••ary to a1101l tl\4l Li,cen__ to COndll1::t the work, 
t ••t.ll\9. and DOnLtoriftg cont.Hplated by th1B AgreMent.. 

IV. Notice., 

Any noUce to be Q1Yen hereunder by altha&' party to tbe 
ot.her shall be in wdUn'll and ••y ba effected t»y penonel
Ii.livery or raglatered or certified ...11, ratucn :receipt. 
requa.t., Qddreaaed to the proper party, at. the following 
adelre_II••• 

LICEMSJ!'8' 	 Trayis County, Texa. 

cia Director. P.I.7.D. 

P.O. Box 1148 

AIl.tin, Texa. 18767 


LoICDBOIlI 	 Ilr. Joe '1'. Roblu:uon 

1107 lIu8ee. 

1U1t1D, !ex.. 78701 


Auetin Country. Inc. 
'500 U.S. Highway 290 Ba.t 
~.tin, reK•• ,.'24
Attna Kt:'. Luke Brownlng 

COpy TO. 	 ~onor&bl. Xen Oden (or bie eucceaaor in offLee)
Travi. County Attorney 
P.O. Box 114. 

Aua~in, ~... 78767 

Attn I Gordon Bo'IIIIan. 111111t1tant county Attorney 

rile No. 90-61.21' 


••eh party 	..., change UII add:... for notice by ghin" 
not~c. ~f lueh change 1n accordance with the provialonl in 
tbi. plu:agl'apl\. 

2 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:90-61.21


." 

'I. v.au. and Cholc. of Law 

'flIi. A9~nt ahall be eon.trued under and 1ft accordance 

with lava of the State of ~••• , and all obligatlona of the 

~tll. cr••ted by this AgreeNeAt are parfo~bl. In !Tavi. 

county I Tell••• 


VI. Severability 

In ca.. on. Oll:' 1lIO.II:8 of the I'~QviBlon. contained 1n this 

Agreslllent shall for Iny reallon be held to be invaUd, 

ille9al, OJ:' unenforceable in Any rellpoct, such InvdlcUty,

illlt9aUty, or Ilnenforeeabi11ty sbaU not affect IIny other 

provhion of the Agr••••nt, and this Agreement sball be 

can. trued aa if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 

provi8ion had never been inoluded in this AgreeNent. 


VII. Entire Agtee~.nt 

Th1a Aoree••nt repre.ents tbe entire and int.sqratecl 
aqre...nt bet_n L1cen80r and L108n... and lIuptlrr.edea all 
prior negotiatlonl, repX1l••ntat.ton., or _oraa_nt., either 
oral OJ: wz:ltten, relating t.o the .ubject lIIatter hcu:eof. 
Tbi. Aqreeaant ~y be ..ended only by Licen.or and ~icenabr. 

TO HAVB AND TO "OLP the right. granted har.in unto tho Bald 
LJ.c:.JUloe &nd Ud91l8 forever. 

Illcurao this ~ day of June, 1990. 

LTJ 1 f}/$ L'?iir;;;'~ 
Byl- ••:, ~:.on ~ ~By 

TravLI Co.nty Judge 

3 .'32 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http:Licen.or
http:Agtee~.nt


S'l'Aft or TSIAS I 
S 

COUII'f'f or nAV1S S 

'thia lnatrullent w.. acJtnovledved before .e by .::roe '1'. 
RObertaon on the ~ day of June, 1"0. 

~P~J~~th. 
State of Texa' 

ACKNOWLBI)GBMElI'l' 

aUlD or '1'IXAS s 
s 

COl8I'f'f or 'l'rIlVIS s 
'fbl. lnatl:Ullent 'II•• aeknowl-.dged before M by Luke Br':lwnlug.

the 'tuideat: of Au.tin Country, Ine., 011 the nth day
of Jane, 1990, In the oapacity ltat-.d hereln. .-

."""-....: " 

Janet Le. Jonota 
print.a or typed na.e of nota!y
By cODal••ion explr••1 4-29-91 

4 
••32 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



·. 

fJ'I!aft 01' 'dXAS S 
5 

COW'ft or TRAVIS 5 

5 .'32 

.~ 
I 


:! 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXHIBIT "CJI 


APPROXIMATE TENT PAD LOCATION 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



! between tNO points on ti",~ ground 

100,34 [Fe~------;' 

100,35 

29 \, 39 degrees 

~j Oear 
=~;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 

f · "II' 

.' 

,~<,' . 

" ...... ;-'~. 
Approximate Tent 

(Not to S 

Cooperation Af 
Remediation of 

Municipal Solid" 
June 2( 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



EXHIBIT C 


Application for Modification of MSW Permit No. 684 


Relating to the U.S. 290 MSW Landfill 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNlY EXECUTIVE 

NATURAL RESOURCES & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALIlY 

1010 Lavaca Street. 3rd Floor 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-6474 

July 3,2012 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Attention: Municipal Solid Waste Permits Section, MC-124 
Waste Permits Division 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

Re: 	 Application for Modification of Permit 
TCEQ MSW ID #684, Travis County landfill, 9500 E. Hwy. 290 

Dear Sir or Madame: 

Enclosed are an original application and two full copies for a permit modification to the 
municipal solid waste permit for the Travis County landfill at 9500 E. U.S. Highway 290 in 
Austin, Texas. This landfill was closed in 1982 and is currently undergoing post-closure care. 

Travis County (the operator) and Robertson Family 290 Property, llC (the landowners) request 
modification of the permit for two specific purposes: 

1. 	 The first modification is to add the Austin Country, Inc. flea market as an authorized 
activity at the closed landfill site; and 

2. 	 The second modification is to obtain approval of a proposed Final Cover Maintenance 
Plan to correct subsidence, ponding, and inadequate cover thickness conditions present 
at the closed landfill site. 

The request for modifications stems from a TCEQ Region 11 compliance evaluation and notice 
of violation {NOV}. The requested modifications are associated with addressing and resolving 
the issues described in the NOV. An additional description ofthese requests is detailed in the 
Part 1form and associated documents. 

The entire application submitted includes: 

1. 	 This cover letter; 
2. 	 TCEQ Core Data Form 10400; 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Application for Permit Modification 
TCEQ MSW ID #684 
Page 2 of2 

3. 	 TCEQ Form 0650, Part I Application, signed by the operator and property owner; 
4. 	 Attachment 1, describing totally enclosed structures of the Austin Country, Inc. flea 

market; 
5. 	 Attachment 2, Final Cover Maintenance Plan prepared for the applicant by SCS 

Engineers in May 2012, including technical specifications, base bid quantities, and a set 
of engineering drawings; 

6. 	 Attachment 3, General Location Map of the Travis County Landfill; and 
7. 	 A check for payment of the $150.00 application fee along with a copy of the check. 

If you need further information, please do not hesitate to contact me at {512} 854-4629. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas W. Weber 
Environmental Quality Program Manager 
Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Division 
Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

Enclosure 

cc: 	 Mr. Barry Kalda, TCEQ Region 11 

Robertson Family 290 Property, LLC, 3506 Bonnie Rd., Austin, TX 78703 

Mr. M. Lee Cook, Austin Country, Inc., 9500 U.S. Hwy. 290 E., Austin, TX 78724 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TCEQ Use Only 

TCEQ Core Data Form 
For detailed instructions regarding completion of this form, please read the Core Dala Form Instructions or call 512-239-5175. 

SECTION I'.General Information 
1. Reason for Submission (If other is checked please describe In space provided) 

0 New Permit, Registration or Authorization (Core Data Form should be submitted with the program application) 

0 Renewal (Core Data Form should be submitted with the renewal form) I r:gJ Other I MSW Permit Modification 
2. Attachments Describe Any Attachments: (ex. Tdle VApplication, Waste TranspOrter Appjication, etc.) 

r:gJVes DNo i MSW Part I Application (Form 0650) with Attaclnnents 1, 2, and 3 
3. Customer Reference Number (if issued) Follow this link 10 search 4. Regulated Entity Reference Number (if issued) 

eN 600338388 
for CN or RN numbers in 

Central Regis!!)!" RN 100629211 

SECTION n- Customer Information . 
5. Effective Date for Customer Information Updates (mm/dd/yyyy) I 7/3/2012 I 

6. Customer Role (Proposed or Actual) - as it relates to tile Reaulatl1.d Entitr.listed on this form. Please check only ~ of the foliowing: 

DOwner r:gJ Operator DOWner & Operator 
DOccupational Licensee o Responsible Party Voluntary Cleanup Applicant oOther: 

7. General Customer Information 

o New Customer o Update to Customer Information o Change in Regulated Entity Ownership 

OChange in legal Name (Verifiable with the Texas Secretary of State) ~ NoChange** 

**Jf "No Change" and Section i is comgiete, skj~ to Section I1J - Regulated Entit'l.informi,tlon. 


o Corporation o Individual o Sole Proprietorship- ORA8. Type of Customer: 

o Federal Governmento City Government o County Government o State Government 

Limited Partnershipo Other Government o General Partnership o Other. 

Ifnew Cus/omer. enter previous Customer9. Customer Legal Name (If an indNidual, print last name first ex: 009, John) End Date:below 

Travis County I I 
10. Mailing 
Address: 

ty I IState I JZIP I IZIP+4 I 
• 11. Country Mailing Information (Ifou/$Icfe USA) 112. E-Mail Address (if applicable) 

I 
14. Extension or Code 15. Fax Number (if applicable) 

( ) - I ( ) -
•16. Federal Tax ID (9digr/sJ 117. TX State Franchise Tax 10 (11 digits) \18. DUNS Number~lappflcalieJ 119. TX SOS Filing Number (j(flPpJicsbleJ 

20. Number of Employees 21. Independently Owned and Operated? 

00-20 021-100 0101-250 0251-500 o 501 and higher I o Yes 0 No 

SECTION III: Re2u1ated Entity Information 
22. General Regulated Entity Information (If 'New Regulated Entity" Is selected below this form should be accomp
o New Regulated Entity o Update to Regulated Entity Name o Update to Regulated Entity Information 

anied by apermit application) 
~ No Change·· (See be/ow) 

"If "NO CHANGE" is checked and Section Iis complete. skip to Section IV, Preparer Information. 

23. Regulated Entity Name (name oftlle sHe where the regulated action is taking place) 

TCEQ·10400 (09/07) Page 1 of 2 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



I 

24. Street Address 
of the Regulated 
Entity: 
tHo P.O. Boxesl City I IState • IZIP I I ZIP+4 

25. Mailing 
Address: 

City I I State I IZIP J I ZIP+4 I 
26. E·Maii Address: 1 

27. Telephone Number 28. Extension or Code 29. Fax Number (ifapplicable) 

( ) - I I ( ) . 
32. Primary NAICS Code 33. Secondary NAICS Code30. Primary SIC Code (4 digits) 31. Secondary SIC Code (4 digits) (5 or 6 digits) (5 or 6 digits) 

I I I 
34. What is the Primary Business of this entity? (Please do not repeat the SIC or NAIeS description.) 

Questions 34- 37 address geographic location. Please refer to the instructions for applicabilitv. 

35. Description to 
Physical Location: 

36. Nearest City County State Nearest ZIP Code 

I I I 
37. Latitude (N) In Decimal: 1 38. Longitude (W) In Decimal: I 
Degrees I Minutes I Seconds Degrees I Minutes I Seconds 

1 I I 1 

39. TCEQ Programs and 10 Numbers Check all Programs and write in the permits/registration numbers that will be affeded by the updates submuted on this form or the 
updates may not be made. If your Program 1$ not listed, check other Md write il in. See the Core Data Form instructions for additional guidance. 

o Dam Safely o Districts o Edwards Aquifer o Industrial Hazardous Wasle o Municipal Solid Waste 

[J New Source Review - Air DOSSF o P_um St""ll' ~ o Sludge 

o Siormwaler o TilleV-Air 0 Tires I o Utilities 

o Voluntary Cleanup o Waste Waler 0 Wastewater Agriculture o Water Rights o Other: 

SECTION IV: Preparer Information 

! 40. Name: I Thomas W. Weber 141. Title: 1Environmental Program Manager 

42. Telephone Number 43, Ext./Code 44. Fax Number 45. E-Mail Address 

(512) 854-4629 I I(512) 854·6474 1 thomas.weber@co.travis.tx.us 

SECTION V: Authorized Signature 
46. By my signature below, I certifY, to the best ofmy knowledge, that the information provided in this form is true and complete, 
and that I have signature authority to submit this fonn on behalf of the entity specified in Section II, Field 9 and/or as required for the 
updates to the ID nwnbers identified in field 39. 

(See tile Core Data Form instructions/or more in/ormadoll 011 Jvllo should siglJ this/orm.) 

Company: Travis County I Job Title: 1 County Judge 
Name(11l Print} : Samuel T. Biscoe Phone: \ (512) 854·9555 

Signature: Date: I 

TCEQ.10400 (09/01) Page 20f 2 

I 

1 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Permit or Registration Application for 


Municipal Solid Waste Facility 


, 
Part I 

A. General Information 

Facility Name: Travis County Landfill- Permit No. 684 
Physical or Street Address (if available): 9500 Highway 290 E 
(City) (County){ State){ Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX 178754 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 854-4629 
Charter Number: 
If the application IS submitted on behalf of a corporation. provide the Charter Number as recorded WIth the 
Office of the Secretary of State for Texas. 

Operator Name 1 
: Travis County, Transportation & Natura) Resources Dept. 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1748 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis ITX 178767 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 854-4629 
(Area Code) FAX Number: (512) 854-6474 
Charter Number: 

If the permittee is the same as the operator, type "Same as Operator". 

Permittee Name: Same as Operator 
Physical or Street Address (if available): 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): I I I 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: 
Charter Number: 

I 
I 

If the application is submitted by a corporation or by a person residing out of state, the applicant must 
register an Agent in Service or Agent of SeNice with the Texas Secretary of State's office and provide a 
complete mal mg a h e aQen t b exas reSI ent.I T ddress for t e aQent, Th t mus ea T 'd 
Agent Name: I 
Mailing Address: I 
(City) (County)( State){ Zip Code): I 

I I I 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: I 
(Area Code) FAX Number: I 

A r f Ti ype:PP Ica Ion 
~ I Permit U Major Amendment l J I Minor Amendment 
[ J I Registration t8J Modification LJ · Temporary Authorization 

[ J wlPublic Notice 
r;gJ wlout Public Notice LJ I Notice ofDeficiency Response 

I The operator has the duty to submit an application if the facility is owned by one person and operated by another 
[30 TAC 30S.43(b)]. The permit will specify the operator and the owner who is listed on this application [Section 
361.087 Texas Health and Safety Code]. 

TCEQ·0650, Pun I Application (rev. 12/12108) Page 1 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



elV 
eIV AE 

check all that appl 
Processing 

Composting 

Landfills 

Type IX 
Energy/Material 
Recove 

• Is this submittal part of a Consolidated Permit Processing request, in accordance with 30 TAC Chapter 

No 

es, state the other TCEQ pro ram authorizations re uested. 

·331 


Provide a brief description of the portion of the facility covered by this application. For amendments, 
modifications. and temporary authorizations, provide a brief description of the exact changes to the 
permit or registration conditions and supporting documents referenced by the permit or registration. 
Also, provide an explanation of why the amendment, modification, or temporary authorization is 
requested. 
Modification Request No.1 (flea market structures) 
This application for permit modification is to add the Austin Country, Inc. flea market as an authorized 
activity at the dosed landfill site. Austin Country Inc. (the "Flea Market") includes existing structures 
that were constructed over a closed Travis County Landfill located at 9500 Highway 290 East, Austin, 
Travis County, Texas. The Travis County landfill was operated as a Type I landfill under Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Permit No.684 from 1968 through 1982. This landfill 
consisted of approximately 95 acres. Correspondence and documentation between Travis County and 
the Texas Department of Health identify that final closure of the landfill occurred by November, 1982. 
Travis County provided an Affidavit to the Public identifying the closure of the facility on February 25, 
1983. The landfill property is owned by Robertson Family 290 Property, LLC (TCEQ CN601S40289). 
Under an agreement between the owners and Travis County, the landfill's post-closure care is being 
maintained by Travis County (TCEQ CN600338388). 

The landfill property owners leased the property to Austin Country Inc. in 1983. Over the years, the 
Flea Market has grown to its current size of approximately 21 acres. The structures placed on top of 
the closed landfill area consist of, but are not limited to, an office, restrooms, on-site trailers used by 
vendors, an on-site trailer used by site security, concession stands, booths used by vendors, a storage 
building, parking lots, underground and aboveground utilities, and a septic tank system. The current 
septic system license was granted by the Austin/Travis County Health Dept. in 1992. The sanitary 
wastewater facilities consist of aboveground and below ground pipelines running from the flea market 
area to five holding tanks and a septic tank located Within the landfill boundaries. The effluent from 
the septic tank is currently being manually pumped out and hauled off-site to an authorized facility, 
until repairs to a drain field (that is located outside the boundaries of the landfill) can be authorized by 
Travis County (OSSF Authorized Agent) and completed by Austin Country, Inc. 

TCEQ-0650, Part) Application (rey. 12112/08) Page 2 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



On August 2,2009, there was a fire at the Flea Market that destroyed approximately 200 vendor 
booths, approximately 40 percent of the vendor area. These structures were located at the northeast 
portion of the market. These structures have not been rebuilt. As a result of the fire, TCEQ 
investigators conducted an inspection of the Travis County landfill to determine the regulated entity's 
compliance with applicable requirements specified in Title 30 of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 
Chapter 330. One of the findings of this inspection was the failure of the landfill owner to obtain a 
registration for the construction of structures over a closed landfill. A Notice of Violation was issued to 
Mr. Joe Robertson on October 15, 2009, to correct that deficiency. On June 3, 2010, an extension to 
the compliance schedule was granted for the submittal of required compliance documentation until 
July 5,2010. The current leaser of the property (Austin Country, Inc.) agreed to provide the required 
application documents and retained the services of a consultant on June 21, 2010. 

The registration application was received by TCEQ on September 2, 2010. An administrative notice of 
deficiency letter from TCEQ dated October 26, 2010, requested that Permit#684 be modified to 
include the flea market activities. Once the administrative deficiency is resolved, the registration 
application will undergo technical review. 

The registration application identifies structures associated with the Austin Country, Inc. flea market 
that are subject to methane gas monitoring. The property usage for structures constructed over the 
landfill is entirely for vendors to display and sell merchandise. Accordingly, activities consist of 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic for customers and vehicular traffic for vendors to transport and 
load/unload merchandise. On the landfill, the structures described in Attachment 1 are considered to 
be totally enclosed and subject to the requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 330. 

Modification Request No.2 (repairs to correct subsidence and ponding) 
This application for permit modification is also to request approval of engineering plans that will repair 
locations on the dosed landfill cap where cover is of inadequate thickness, subsidence occurs, and 
ponding occurs. As a result of the aforementioned fire and TCEQ inspection of the landfill, other 
findings of the inspection included the failure of the owner and operator to correct subsidence and 
ponding water on the closed landfill unit and the failure to ensure the final cover is composed of no 
less than two feet of soil. 

A Notice of Violation was issued to Travis County and Mr. Joe Robertson on October 15, 2009, to 
correct these deficiencies. Travis County submitted a compliance plan to address these deficiencies on 
December 14, 2009, and a revised compliance plan on October 25, 2011. On March 14, 2012, an 
extension to the compliance schedule was granted by TCEQ for the submittal of required compliance 
documentation until April 30, 2013. Travis County was directed by TCEQ Region 11 staff to provide the 
engineering plans associated with correction of the subsidence, ponding, and inadequate cover 
thickness as a permit modification. Accordingly, Attachment 2 includes the May 2012 proposed 
Technical Specifications of the Final Cover Maintenance Plan, the base bid quantities associated with 
the proposed maintenance plan, and the engineering plan sheets showing the details of the 
maintenance plan. Following approval of the Final Cover Maintenance Plan by the TCEQ, Travis County 
will issue a competitive Invitation for Bids (IFB) to hire a contractor for the construction identified in 
the plan. 

I Does the application contain confidential Material? I 0 Yes tEl No 

If yes, cross-reference the confidential material throughout the application and submit as a separate 
document or binder conspicuously marked "CONFIDENTIAl." 

TCEQ-0650, Part! Application (rev. 12112/08) Page 3 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Alternative Language Notice Instructions 

For certain permit applications, public notice in an alternate language is required. If an elementary school 
or middle school nearest to the facility offers a bilingual program, notice may be required to be published 
in an alternative language. The Texas Education Code, upon which the TCEQ alternative language 
notice requirements are based, trigger a bilingual education program to apply to an entire school district 
should the requisite alternative language speaking student population exist However, there may not 
exist any bilingual students at a particular school within a district which is required to offer the bilingual 
education program. For this reason, the requirement to publish notice in an alternative language is 
triggered if the nearest elementary or middle school, as a part of a larger school district, is required to 
make a bilingual education program available to qualifying students and either the school has students 
enrolled at such a program on-site. or has students who attend such a program at another location in 
satisfaction of the school's obligation to provide such a program as a member of a triggered district. 

If it is determined that an alternative language notice is required, the applicant is responsible for ensuring 
that the publication in the alternate language is complete and accurate in that language. Electronic 
versions of the Spanish template examples are available from the TCEQ to help the applicant complete 
the publication in the alternative language. 

Alternative Language Notice Application Form: Not applicable; modification not subject to public notice 

Alternative language notice confirmation for this application: 

1. Is a bilingual pr.2£}ram required by the Texas Education Code in the school district where the 
facility is located? U YES D NO 

(If NO, alternative language notice publication not required) 

2. 	 If YES to question 1, are students enrolled in a bilingual education program at either the 
elementary school or the middle school nearest to the facility? DYES D NO 

(IF YES to questions 1 and 2, alternative language publication is required: If NO to question 2, then 
consider the next question) 

3. 	 If YES to question 1, are there students enrolled at either the elementary school or the 
middle school nearest to the facility who attend a bilingual education program at another 
location? DYES D NO 

(If Ves to questions 1 and 3, alternative language publication is required: If NO to question 3, then 
consider the next question) 

4. 	 If YES to question 1, would either the elementary school or the middle school nearest to 
the facility be required to provide a bilingual education program but for the fact that it 
secu red a waiver from this requirement, as available under 19 T AC • 89.1205(g)? 
DVES 0 NO 

(If Yes to questions 1 and 4, alternative language publication is required; If NO to question 4, alternative 
language notice publication not required) 

If a bilingual education program(s) is provided by either the elementary school or the middle school 
nearest to the facility, which language(s) is required by the bilingual program? 

TCEQ-0650, Patti Application (rev. 12/12/08) 	 Palle4 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Nate: Applicants for new permits and major amendments must make a copy of the administratively 
complete application available at a public place in the county where the facility is, or will be, located for 
review and copying by the public. 

Publicplace where administratively complete permit application will be located. 
Public Place (e.g., public library, county 
court house, city hall, etc.): 
Mailing Address: 
(City) (County)( 8tate)( Zip Code): I I I 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: 

TCEQ'()650, Part I Application (rev. 12112/08) PageS 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



B. Facility Location 

• Except for Type I AE and Type IV AE landfill facilities, for permits, registrations, amendments, and 
• modifications requiring public notice, provide the URL address of a publicly accessible internet web 

site where the a lication and all revisions to that a lication will be osted. 
N/A - modification is not sub'ect to ublit notice 

Loeal Government Jurisdiction: I Travis County 
Within City Umits of: I N/A 
Within Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of City of: I Austin 
Is the proposed municipal or industrial solid waste disposal or processing facility located in an area in 
which the governing body of the municipality or county has prohibited the disposal or processing of 1 

municipal or industrial solid waste? (If YES, provide a copy of the ordinance or order): 
DYES IZI NO 

Provide a description of the loeation of the facility with respect to known or easily identifiable 
landmarks. 
Highway 290 E at a location 2.5 miles east ofits intersection with Hwy 183 in Austin, Travis Co, 
TX 

I 

Detail the access routes from the nearest United States or state hi 
Located on north side (westbound lane) of U.S. H 290 

Provide the latitudinal and longitudinal geographic coordinates of the facility. 
Latitude N 300 20' 02" 
Longitude W 97° 37' 57" 
Elevation (above mst) 670 feet 

I Is the facility within the Coastal Management Program boundary? I 0 Yes ~ No 

Texas Department 0 ransportatlon D'Istrlct Loeatlon:fT , 
TXDOT District Name & Number: Austin (AUS) 
District Engineer's Name: Carlos Lopez, P.E., District FJlwneer 
Street or P. O. Box: P. 0, Drawer 15426 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX I 78761-5426 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 832-7000 
(Area Code) FAX Number: (512) 478-8243 

The local governmental authority or agency responsl 'ble for road mamtenance: 
I Agency Name Travis County Transportation & Natural Resources 

Department 
Contact Person's Name: Don Ward, P.E., Director. Road Maintenance & Fleet Services 
Street or P. O. Box: P.O. Box 1748 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis ITX I 78767 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 854-9317 
(Area Code) FAX Number: (512) 854-4648 

State Representative' 
District Number: 50 
State Representative's Name: Texas State Representative Mark Strama 
District Office Address: P.O. Box 2910 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX I 78768 

TCEQ'()6S0, Part I Application (rev. 12/12/08) Page 6 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



(Area Code) Telephone Number: 
(Area Code) FAX Number: 

State Senator" 
District Number: 14 
State Senator's Name: Texas State Senator Kirk Watson 
District Office Address: P.O. Box 12068, Capitol Station 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX I 78711 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 463-0114 
(Area Code) FAX Number: (512) 463-5949 

Council of Government (COG) Information: 
COG Name: Capital Area Council of Governments 
COG Representative's Name: Betty Voights 
COG Representative's Title: Executive Director 
Street or P. O. Box: 6800 Burleson Rd 
(City) (County)( 8tate)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX 178744 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 916-6000 
(Area Code) FAX Number: (512) 916-6001 

River Basin Information: 
River Authority: Lower Colorado River Authority 
Contact Person's Name: Becky Motal 
Watershed Sub-Basin Name: Unnamed tributary, thence to Walnut Creek, thence to the 

Colorado River below Lady Bird Lake (Segment No. 1428) of 
the Colorado River basin 

Street or P. O. Box: 3700 Lake Austin Blvd. 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX I 78703 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: (512) 473-3200 
(Area Code) FAX Number: N/A 

C. Maps 

General 
For permits, registrations, and amendments only, submit a topographic map, ownership map, county 
highway map, or a map prepared by a registered professional engineer or a registered surveyor which 
shows the facility and each of its intake and discharge structures and any other structure or location 
regarding the regulated facility and associated activities. Maps must be of material suitable for a 
permanent record, and shall be on sheets 8-1/2 inches by 14 inches or folded to that size, and shall be on 
a scale of not less than one inch equals one mile. The map shall depict the approximate boundaries of 
the tract of land owned or to be used by the applicant and shall extend at least one mile beyond the tract 
boundaries sufficient to show the following: 

each well, spring, and surface water body or other water in the state within the map area; 

the general character of the areas adjacent to the facility, including public roads, towns and the 
nature of development of adjacent lands such as residential, commercial, agricultural, 
recreational, undeveloped, etc; 

the location of any waste disposal activities conducted on the tract not included in the application; 
and 

TCEQ-0650, Pal1 I Application (rev" 12/12/08) Page 7 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



the ownership of tracts of land adjacent to the facility and within a reasonable distance from the 
proposed point or points of discharge, deposit. injection, or other place of disposal or activity. 

General location maps 

For permits, registrations, and amendments only, submit at least one general location map at a scale of 
one-half inch equals one mile. This map shall be all or a portion of a county map prepared by Texas 
Department of Transportation (TxDOT). If TxDOT publishes more detailed maps of the proposed facility 
area, the more detailed maps shall also be included in Part I. Use the latest revision of all maps. 

Land ownership map 

Provide a map that locates the property owned by adjacent and potentially affected landowners. The 
maps should show all property ownership within 1/4 mile of the facility, on-site facility easement holders. 
and all mineral interest ownership under the facility. 

Not applicable; modification not sublect to public. 

Landowners list 

Provide the adjacent and potentially affected landowners' list, keyed to the land ownership map with each 
property owner's name and mailing address. The list shall include all property owners within 1/4 mile of 
the facility. easement holders, and all mineral interest ownership under the facility. Provide the property, 
easement holders', and mineral interest owners' names and mailing addresses derived from the real 
property appraisal records as listed on the date that the application is filed. Provide the list in electronic 
form, as well. • 

Not applicable: modification not subject to public notice. 

D. 	 Property owner information 

For permits, registrations. amendments, and modifications that change the legal description, a change in 
owner, or a change in operator only, provide the following: 

(1) the legal description of the facility; 

(A) 	 the abstract number as maintained by the Texas General Land Office for the surveyed 
tract of land; 

(8) 	 the legal description of the property and the county, book, and page number or other 
generally accepted identifying reference of the current ownership record; 

(C) 	 for property that is platted, the county. book, and page number or other generally 
accepted identifying reference of the final plat record that includes the acreage 
encompassed in the application and a copy of the final plat. in addition to a written legal 
description; 

(D) 	 a boundary metes and bounds description of the facility signed and sealed by a registered 
professional land surveyor; 

(E) 	 on-site easements at the facility, and 

(F) 	 drawings of the boundary metes and bounds description; and 

(2) a property owner affidavit signed by the owner. 

E. 	 Legal authority 

TCEQ-0650, Part I Application (rev. 12/12/08) 	 Page 8 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Provide verification of the legal status of the owner and operator, such as a one-page certificate of 
incorporation issued by the secretary of state. List all persons having over a 20% ownership in the 
proposed facility. 

Indicate Ownership status of the facility: 
[Z] Private U Corporation U Partnership U Proprietorship U Non-Profit 

Organization 
[ ] Public [ ] Federal [ ] Mi1ita~ l J State l J Regional 

U County 0 Municipal 0 Other 
(Specify) 

I Does the operator own the facility units and the facility property? DYes t2l No 

If "No," for permits, registrations, amendments, and modifications that changes the legal description, a 
change in owner, or a change in operators submit a copy of the lease for the use of or the option to buy 
the facility units or facility property, as appropriate, and identify: 
Owner Name: Robertson Family 290 Property, LLC 
Street or P. O. Box: 3506 Bonnie St. 
(City) (County)( State)( Zip Code): Austin I Travis I TX I 78703 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: 
(Area Code) FAX Number: 
Charter Number: Not Applicable 

F. Evidence of competency 

For permits, registrations, amendments, and modifications that change the legal description, a change 
in owner, or a change in operators submit a list of all Texas solid waste sites that the owner and 
operator have owned or operated within the last ten years. 

Site Name Site Type PermitlReg. No. County Dates of Operation 

Submit a list of all solid waste sites in all states, territories, or countries in which the owner and operator 
have a direct financial interest. 

Site Name Location Dates of Operation Regulatory Agency 
(Name & Address) 

A licensed solid waste facility supervisor, as defined in 30 TAC Chapter 3D, Occupational Licenses and 
Registrations will be employed before commencing facility operation. 

Provide the names of the principals and supervisors of the owner's and operator's organization, 
together with previous affiliations with other organizations engaged in solid waste activities. 

Name Previous Affiliation Other Organization 

For landfill permit applications only, evidence of competency to operate the facility shall also include 
landfilling and earthmoving experience if applicable, and other pertinent experience, or licenses as 
described in 30 TAC Chapter 30 possessed by key personnel. The number and size of each type of 
equipment to be dedicated to facility operation will be specified in greater detail on Part IV of the 
application within the site operating plan. 

TCEQ-0650, Part I Application (rev. 12112/08) Page 9 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Landfiliing/Earthmoving Equipment Types Personnel Experience or Licenses 

For mobile liquid waste processing units, submit a list of all solid waste, liquid waste, or mobile waste 
units that the owner and operator have owned or operated within the past five years. Submit a list of any 
final enforcement orders, court judgments, consent decrees. and criminal convictions of this state and the 
federal government within the last five years relating to compliance with applicable legal requirements 
relating to the handling of solid or liquid waste under the jurisdiction of the commission or the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency. Applicable legal requirement means an environmental law, 
If' d td th . treQu a lon, permit, or er, consen ecree, or 0 er reqUlremen . 

Solid waste, liquid waste, or mobile waste Texas and federal final enforcement orders, court 
units owned or operated within past 5 jUdgments, consent decrees, and criminal convictions 
years 

G. Appointments 

Provide documentation that the person signing the application meets the requirements of 30 T AC 
§305.44, Signatories to Applications. If the authority has been delegated, provide a copy of the document 
issued by the governing body of the owner or operator authorizing the person that signed the application 
to act as agent for the owner or operator. 

H. Application Fees 

For a new permit, registration, amendment, modification, or temporary authorization, submit a $150 
appl ication fee. 

For authorization to construct an enclosed structure over an old, closed municipal solid waste landfill in 
accordance with 30 T AC 330 Subchapter T, submit a $2,500 application fee. 

If paying by check, send payment to: 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Financial Administration Division, Me 214 

P. O. Box 13087 

Austin, Texas 78711-3087 


TCEQ-0650, Part I Application (rev. 121l2JOS) PageS 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PROPERTY OWNER AFFIDAVIT 

UI 
J 
--------------------------~----------~--------------------------------

(property owner) 
acknowleqge that the State of Texas may hold me either join~y or severally responsible for the operation, 
maintenance, and closure and post-closure care of the facility. For a facility where waste will remain after 
closure, I acknowledge that I have a responsibility to file with the county deed records an affidavit to the 
public advising that the land will be used for a solid waste facility prior to the time that the facility actually 
begins operating as a municipal solid waste landfill facility, and to file a final recording upon completion of 
disposal operations and closure of the landfill units in accordance with Title 30 Texas Administrative Code 
§330.19, Deed Recordation. I further acknowledge that I or the operator and the State of Texas shall 
have access to the property during the active life and post-closure care period, if required, after closure 
for the purpose of inspection and maintenance." 

(Owner signature) (Date) 

TCEQ-0650, Palt I Application (rev. 121l2/08} Page 9 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Signature Page 

I' _____~~--~~-------------, 
(Title) 

certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or 
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and 
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the 
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, 
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware there are significant 
penalties for submitting false information, induding the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing 
violations. 

Signature: _______________ Date: _______ 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE OPERATOR IF THE APPLICATION IS SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE OPERATOR 

I, ---:=--:---=---::c---~--:-----' hereby designate -:=-:--_=--:--=--___----,~_:_:_-
(Print or Type Operator Name) (Print or Type Representative Name) 

as my representative and hereby authorize said representative to sign any application, submit additional 
information as may be requested by the Commission; and/or appear for me at any hearing or before the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality in conjunction with this request for a Texas Water Code or 
Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act permit. I further understand that I am responsible for the contents of this 
application, for oral statements given by my authorized representative in support of the application, and 
for compliance with the terms and conditions of any permit which might be issued based upon this 
application. 

Printed or Typed Name of Operator or Principal Executive Officer 

Signature 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the said ____________________ 


On this ______d.ay of _______________ 


My commission expires on the _________--.1 of _________, _____ 


Notary Public in and for 

____________ County, Texas 

(Note: Application Must Bear Signature & Seal of Notary Public) 

TCEQ-0650, Part I Application (rev. 12112/08) Page 10 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ATTACHMENT 1 

TOTALLY ENCLOSED STRUCTURES 

AUSTIN COUNTRY, INC. 

On the landfill, the following structures are considered to be totally enclosed and subject 
to the requirements of30 TAC 330: 

Structure Function Size Equipment Utilized 

Office Building Main office for facility 
management, ticket sales, 
etc. 

40' x 56.1' Computers, copiers, 
filing drawers, and other 
misc. office equipment 

Public Restrooms 

(2 locations) 

Toilet facilities only Each 30' x40' NA 

Storage Building Storage of miscellaneous 
supplies, signs, boards, 
parts associated with the 
vendor booths 

40.1' x 59.8' Storage only; no 
equipment utilization; no 
heating or cooling. 

Main Kitchen Food preparation 40' x 50' Electrical and manual 
food preparation 
equipment, i.e. food 
processors, stoves, 
microwaves, can openers, 
fans, etc. 

Concession 
Buildings/Stands 

(6 locations) 

Preparation and selling of 
beverages and food 

No.1 Stand = 10.3' x 
8.3' 

"B" Stand = I 0' x 30' 

"H" Stand =10.2' x 
10.6' 

"J" Stand = 10.2' x 
10.5' 

Stage Stand - 10.2 x 8.2 

"X-Ray" =12' x 9.5' 

Electrical and mechanical 
dispensing and heating 
equipment 

Barber Shop Hair cutting 10.6' x24' ! Electric shears, heating 
and cooling. 

Entrance Booths 

(4 Stations) 

Parking Fee collection 4.7' x 7.3' Electric heaters, electric 
fans, radios, 
communications 

Application for Modification, TCEQ MSW Permit #684 

Travis County Landfill, U.S. 290 East, Austin, TX 78754 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ATIACHMENT2 


FINAL COVER MAINTENANCE PLAN 


MAY 2012 


Prepared by SCS Engineers for Travis County, Texas 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

FINAL COVER MAINTENANCE PLAN 


U.S. HIGHWAY 290 LANDFILL 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 


MAY 2012 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


This project includes the maintenance of five locations on the cap of the u.s. Highway 290 
landfill. The project site is the closed U.S. Highway 290 Landfill, a former disposal site for 
municipal solid waste. This project site includes an operating flea market and associated access 
and parking areas. 

For purposes of these specifications, the OWNER is defined as Travis County, Texas. The 
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the work as described in this document and as indicated 
in the Final Cover Maintenance Plans, U.S. Highway 290 Landfill, dated May 2012 
(construction drawings). CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing secure worksite 
storage, security for CONTRACTOR's parked equipment and materials (if deemed necessary by 
CONTRACTOR) and temporary services such as portable toilets, water and electrical power, if 
required. Payment for work will be made as indicated in the pay items listed below. Payment 
will be made based upon in-place quantities (or plan quantity if so indicated) and will be verified 
by a Registered Land Surveyor. 

The CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary actions needed to meet the proposed schedule, 
taking into account weather as could be nonnally expected for the project location and season. 

Access to the site shall be via the Flea Market entrance from U.S. 290 and the landfill perimeter 
gate located on the southeastern side of the landfilL The Contractor shall provide a double lock 
on the landfill gate to allow access. The CONTRACTOR may work from 7:00 am until dusk 
Monday through Friday, exclusively. Saturday and Sunday work will not be allowed. A 
CONTRACTOR laydown area is indicated on the Construction Drawings. Access to the 
construction area is shared with access to the flea market which operates on weekends. The 
CONTRACTOR shall cordon off areas under construction (Areas A, B, C and D) with traffic 
barriers, fencing or warning tape as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall provide traffic control if 
necessary to avoid any conflicts between construction operations and flea market traffic. Ingress 
and egress from the flea market entrance shall be maintained at all times. If off-site clay is 
brought in to the construction area, such deliveries shall be limited to days when the flea market 
is closed to the general public. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The CONTRACTOR shall initiate construction activities within 60 days of receipt of Notice to 
Proceed from Travis County. CONTRACTOR shaH complete work within 90 days of initiating 
construction activities. 

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a construction schedule with the BID. 

1 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

DESCRIPTION 0..., PAY ITEMS 

The specifications and bid items for this project are found in the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of 
Highways, Streets and Bridges adopted June 1, 2004 (see TxDOT web site 
http://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm.) and as modified in this description of pay 
items and/or on the construction drawings. These TxDOT specifications are adopted for this 
project unless otherwise modified with this description of pay items or with the Construction 
Drawings. This includes the adoption of Items 1 through 9, General Requirements and 
Covenants. 

Bid Item 1: Mobilization 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 500, Mobilization. This project will 
require a Payment Bond, Performance Bond, and Insurance. This item will be measured as lump 
sum as the work progresses. Payment for this item shall be made for "Mobilization" as 
described in Item 500, Section 500.3, Payment. 

WEST CAP MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 2: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Limits of West Cap Maintenance. There are two drainage chutes within the project work area. 
These chutes shall be protected and any damage during construction will be repaired at 
CONTRACTOR'S sole expense. Work will be conducted as described in Item 100, Sections 
100.1 and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site at the location indicated on the Construction 
Drawings. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Preparing Right of Way" as described in Item 100, Section 100A, Payment. 

Bid Item 3: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 1 10, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 11 OA, Payment. 

Bid Item 4: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 

2 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

http://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm


Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. There are existing drainage berms within the project area. 
Contractor to construct the drainage berms to their original configuration and location. 
Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 132, Section 132.3. 
Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts and compacted. In case of a 
conflict in construction requirements, the Construction Drawings shall control. This item will be 
measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, Section 132.4(A). Payment for this 
item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 132, Section 132.S, Payment. 

Bid Item 5: Topsoil 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 160, Topsoil. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 160, Section 160.1. Material will be topsoil as described in Item 
160, Section 160.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 160, Section 160.3. A twelve (12) inch thickness of topsoil shall be applied as directed on 
the Construction drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
160, Section 160.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Topsoil" as described in Item 160, 
Section 160.S, Payment. 

Bid Item 6: Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding (Temp) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 164, Seeding for Erosion Control. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 164, Section 164.1. Material will be as described in 
Item 164, Section 164.2 for the appropriate growing season. Construction will be in accordance 
with the Construction Drawings and Item 164, Section 164.3 with Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
as described in Section 164.3(B). This item will be measured by the acre as described in Item 
164, Section 164.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
(temp)" as described in Item 164, Section 164.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 7: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item S06, 
Section S06.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section S06.2(J) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item S06, Section S06.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
S06.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section S06.S(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item S06, Section S06.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

3 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCT/ON PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

AREA "A" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 8: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Area "A" Maintenance. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. Stabilized base and 
asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any additional stabilized base 
and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered Excavation and will be 
included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 9: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handJed and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 10: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 
responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion ofthe project Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 11: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247, Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247, Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 

4 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT. BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

directed on the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 12: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 Yl" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 
measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 Yl" Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 13: Riprap 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 432, Riprap. Work will be conducted 
as described in Item 432, Section 432.1. Material will be 12" of common, dry, stone riprap as 
described in the Construction Drawings and Item 432, Section 432.2. The stone riprap will be 
placed over a filter fabric. Construction of the 12" common, dry, stone riprap with filter fabric 
will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 432, Section 432.4. This item 
will be measured by the cubic yard as described in Item 432, Section 432.5. Payment for this 
item shall be made for "Riprap" as described in Item 432, Section 432.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 14: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(J) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(I). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

AREA "B" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 15: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Area "B" Maintenance. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. Stabilized base and 
asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any additional stabilized base 
and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered Excavation and will be 
included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 

5 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERlvf1T, BIDDING AND U. S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 16: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 110.4, Payment. 

Bid Item 17: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Plans and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall be 
clay rich soil, either CH, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 
responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. In case of a conflict in construction requirements, the Construction drawings 
shall controL This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 18: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247, Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247, Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 
directed on the Construction drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 19: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 

6 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 20: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(J) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506A with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506A(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

AREA "c" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 21: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Non-Paved Limits of Area "C" Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item lOa, 
Sections 100.1 and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site at the location indicated on the 
Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Preparing Right of Way" as described in Item 100, Section 100A, Payment. 

Bid Item 22: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Paved Limits of Area "C" 
Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 1 05.1 and 1 05.2. 
Stabilized base and asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any 
additional stabilized base and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered 
Excavation and will be included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard 
as described in Item 1 05, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing 
Stabilized Base and Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105A, Payment. 

Bid Item 23: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 1l0, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 11 OA, Payment. 

7 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

Bid Item 24: Block Sodding 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 162, Sodding for Erosion Control. 
For this project, the block sodding will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as 
the Non-Paved Limits of Area "c" Maintenance. Work will be conducted as described in Item 
162, Section 162.1. Material will be as described in Item 162, Section 162.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with Item 162, Section 162.3. This item will be measured by the acre as 
described in Item 162, Section 162.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Block Sodding" 
as described in Item 162, Section 162.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 25: Vegetative Watering 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 168, Vegetative Watering. Work will 
be conducted as described in Item 168, Section 168.1. Material will be as described in Item 168, 
Section 168.2. The CONTRACTOR will water the block sodded areas (Non-Paved Limits of 
Area "C" Maintenance) with 1,000 gallons of clean water two times a week (once every 3 to 4 
days) for four (4) weeks. A watering event will be skipped ifmore than y;" rainfall has fallen on 
the site since the prior watering event. Construction will be in accordance with Item 168, 
Section 168.3. This item will be measured by the 1,000 gallons as described in Item 168, 
Section 168.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Vegetative Watering" as described in 
Item 168, Section 168.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 26: Flexible Base, 6" Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 247, Flexible Base. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 247, Section 247.1. Material will be Type D as described in Item 
247, Section 247.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 247, Section 247.4. A six inch thickness of Type D flexible base shall be applied as 
directed on the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard (complete 
and in place) as described in Item 247, Section 247.5. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Flexible Base, 6" Type D" as described in Item 247, Section 247.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 27: Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 W' Type D 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 340, Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt 
(Method). Work will be conducted as described in Item 340, Section 340.1. Material Type D 
dense-graded hot-mix asphalt will be as described in Item 340, Section 340.2. Construction will 
be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 340, Section 340.4. This item will be 
measured by the ton of composite asphalt concrete mixture as described in Item 340, Section 
340.5. Payment for this item shall be made for "Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt, 1 Yz" Type D" 
as described in Item 340, Section 340.6, Payment. 

Bid Item 28: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Install) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 

8 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(A) for Rock Filter Dam. 
Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 506, Section 50604 
with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506A(C)(l )(a). This item will be 
measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock Filter 
Dam, Type 1 (Install). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 
(Install)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 29: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
506, Section 50604 with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506A(C). This item 
will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock 
Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 
1 (Remove)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 30: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(1) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 50604 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

AREA "D" MAINTENANCE 

Bid Item 31: Preparing Right of Way 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 100, Preparing Right of Way. For 
this project, the right of way will be that area indicated on the Construction Drawings as the 
Limits of Area "D" Regrading Area, Limits of Area "D" Non-Regrading Area, and limits of 
existing structure to be demolished and removed. Approximately 150 linear feet of existing flea 
market structure will be demolished and removed from the site. The structure will be saw cut at 
the closest structural support. Any electrical or plumbing (water and/or wastewater) utilities in 
the area to be demolished will be disconnected by a licensed electrician and/or plumber before 
demolition work commences. Work will be conducted as described in Item 100, Sections 100.1 
and 100.2. Top soil will be stockpiled on site within the limits of the Area "D" Non-Regrading 
Area. This item will be measured by the acre. Payment for this item shall be made for 
"Preparing Right of Way" as described in Item 1 00, Section 1 0004, Payment 

9 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Spec(/ications 

Bid Item 32: Removing Concrete 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 104, Removing Concrete. For this 
project, the limits of concrete that will be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 104, Sections 104.1 and 104.2. This item will be 
measured by the square yard as described in Item 104, Section 104.3. Payment for this item shall 
be made for "Removing Concrete" as described in Item 104, Section 104A, Payment. 

Bid Item 33: Removing Stabilized Base and Asphalt Pavement 

Work for this task will be in aecordanee with TxDOT Item 105, Removing Stabilized Base and 
Asphalt Pavement. For this project, the limits of stabilized base and asphalt pavement that will 
be removed are indicated on the Construction Drawings as the Limits of Pavement to be 
Removed. Work will be conducted as described in Item 105, Sections 105.1 and 105.2. 
Stabilized base and asphalt pavement shall be removed to a depth of six (6) inches. Any 
additional stabilized base and asphalt pavement at depths greater than this will be considered 
Excavation and will be included in that bid item. This item will be measured by the square yard 
as described in Item 105, Section 105.3. Payment for this item shall be made for "Removing 
Stabilized Base and Asphalt" as described in Item 105, Section 105A, Payment. 

Bid Item 34: Excavation 

Work for this task will be in aceordance with TxDOT Item 110, Excavation. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 110, Sections 110.1 and 110.2. This item does not include waste 
excavation. If waste is encountered, it will be handled and paid for as described in Bid Item 35, 
Waste Excavation. This item will be measured by the cubic yard. Payment for this item shall be 
made for "Excavation" as described in Item 110, Section 11OA, Payment. 

Bid Item 35: Waste Excavation 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 158, Specialized Excavation Work. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 158, Sections 158.1, 158.2, and 158.3. Waste will 
be removed from the site and disposed ofat a TCEQ permitted solid waste disposal facility at the 
sole cost of the contractor. Excavated waste shall be removed from the site at the end of each 
working day. Exposed waste shall be covered with 6 inches of clean soil at the end of each day. 
This item will be measured by the cubic yard as described in Section 158.4.A, Measurement, 
OriginaL Payment for this item shall be made for "Waste Excavation" as described in Item 158, 
Section 158.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 36: Embankment 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 132, Embankment. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 132, Section 132.1. Material will be Type C material as 
described on the Construction Drawings and in Item 132, Section 132.2. Embankment soil shall 
be clay rich soil, either CR, SC, or CL material. Embankment soil is available from the soil 
stockpile located to the northwest of the West Cap Maintenance area. The contractor is 

10 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specffications 

responsible for all clearing and temporary sediment control costs associated with the 
embankment borrow source. The embankment borrow source will have temporary erosion, 
sedimentation, and environmental controls including diversion berms and temporary sediment 
control fencing adequate to control runoff and erosion from the borrow source. The 
embankment borrow source shall be graded smooth to drain and approved by the OWNER prior 
to completion of the project. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 132, Section 132.3. Embankment soil shall be placed in maximum 8 inch loose lifts 
and compacted. This item will be measured by the "Final" cubic yard as described in Item 132, 
Section 132.4(A). Payment for this item shall be made for "Embankment" as described in Item 
132, Section 132.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 37: Topsoil 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 160, Topsoil. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 160, Section 160.1. Material will be topsoil as described in Item 
160, Section 160.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 
Item 160, Section 160.3. A twelve (12) inch thickness of topsoil shall be applied as directed on 
the Construction Drawings. This item will be measured by the square yard as described in Item 
160, Section 160.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Topsoil" as described in Item 160, 
Section 160.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 38: Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding (Temp) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 164, Seeding for Erosion Control. 
Work will be conducted as described in Item 164, Section 164.1. Material will be as described in 
Item 164, Section 164.2 for the appropriate growing season. Construction will be in accordance 
with the Construction Drawings and Item 164, Section 164.3 with Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
as described in Section 164.3(B). This item will be measured by the acre as described in Item 
164, Section 164.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Straw or Hay Mulch Seeding 
(temp)" as described in Item 164, Section 164.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 39: Soil Retention Blanket 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 169, Soil Retention Blanket. Work 
will be conducted as described in Item 169, Section 169.1. Material will be Class 1, Slope 
Protection, Type A Soil Retention Blanket as described in Item 169, Section 169.2. Construction 
will be in accordance with Item 169, Section 169.3. This item will be measured by the square 
yard as described in Item 169, Section 169.4. Payment for this item shall be made for "Soil 
Retention Blanket" as described in Item 169, Section 169.5, Payment. 

Bid Item 40: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Install) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(A) for Rock Filter Dam. 
Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 506, Section 506.4 

11 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND US. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Seeci{ications 

with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506.4(C)(1)(a). This item will be 
measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock Filter 
Dam, Type 1 (Install). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 
(Install)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 41: Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove) 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
506, Section 506.4 with Rock Filter Dam, Type 1 as described in Section 506.4(C). This item 
will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, Section 506.5(A) for Rock 
Filter Dam, Type 1 (Remove). Payment for this item shall be made for "Rock Filter Dam, Type 
1 (Remove)" as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(A). 

Bid Item 42: Temporary Sediment Control Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 506, Temporary Erosion, 
Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls. Work will be conducted as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.1. Material will be as described in Item 506, Section 506.2(1) for Temporary 
Sediment Control Fence. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings 
and Item 506, Section 506.4 with Temporary Sediment Control Fence as described in Section 
506.4(C)(9). This item will be measured by the linear foot (foot) as described in Item 506, 
Section 506.5(1). Payment for this item shall be made for "Temporary Sediment Control Fence" 
as described in Item 506, Section 506.6, Payment and Section 506.6(1). 

Bid Item 43: Chain Link Fence 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. The Chain Link Fence will be 6 feet tall. 
Material will be as described in Item 550, Section 550.2. Construction will be in accordance 
with the Construction Drawings and Item 550, Section 550.4. This item will be measured by the 
linear foot (foot) as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Chain Link Fence" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

Bid Item 44: Vehicle Gate 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. Each Vehicle Gate will be 20 feet wide and 
6 feet tall and consist of two 10 foot wide sections. Material will be as described in Item 550, 
Section 550.2. Construction will be in accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 
550, Section 550.4. This item will be measured by each as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. 
Payment for this item shall be made for "Vehicle Gate" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

12 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County 
FOR PERMIT, BIDDING AND U S. Highway 290 Landfill 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES Final Cover Maintenance Specifications 

Bid Item 45: Pedestrian Gate 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 550, Chain Link Fence. Work will be 
conducted as described in Item 550, Section 550.1. Each Pedestrian Gate will be 4 feet wide and 
6 feet tall. Material will be as described in Item 550, Section 550.2. Construction will be in 
accordance with the Construction Drawings and Item 550, Section 550.4. This item will be 
measured by each as described in Item 550, Section 550.4. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Pedestrian Gate" as described in Item 550, Section 550.5. 

Bid Item 46: Removing Concrete Pilings 

Work for this task will be in accordance with TxDOT Item 104, Removing Concrete. For this 
project, the limits of concrete pilings that will be removed are indicated on the Construction 
Drawings. Concrete pilings are approximately 2 feet by 2 feet by 3 feet deep. Actual 
dimensions may vary. Concrete pilings will be backfilled with a minimum of 18 inches of 
compacted clay rich soil, either CR, SC, or CL material and 12 inches of topsoil. The 18 inches 
ofcompacted clay rich soil may be replaced with 18 inches ofbentonite powder or pellets. Work 
will be conducted as described in Item 104, Sections 104.1 and 104.2. This item will be 
measured by each as described in Item 104, Section 104.3. Payment for this item shall be made 
for "Removing Concrete Pilings" as described in Item 104, Section 104.4, Payment. 

END OF TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION SECTION 

13 May 2012 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



PROJECT NAME, IFB NUMBER 

Texas Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of 
Highways, Streets and Bridges adopted June 1, 2004 is used as the project Standard Specification 
which can be found in TXDoT web site: http://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm. 

DESC. CODE is the TXDoT Specification Description Code and can be found in TXDoT web site: 
http://www.dot.state.tx.us/insdtdot/orgchart/cmd/cserve/usfel2004/usfe0101.htm. 

S.P. =Special Provision to the Standard Specification. 
S.S. = Special Specification. 

BASE BID 

Bid 
Item 

Spec. No. or 
Desc. Code 

S.P. 
No 

S.S. 
No. 

Description Unit QTY Unit Price Amount 

1 500 Mobilization LS 1 $0.00 
WEST CAP MAINTENANCE 

2 100 
Preparing Right of 
Way 

AC 
11.8 $0.00 

3 llO Excavation CY 38,094 

Ei= 
$0.00 

4 132 Embankment CY 19,047 
5 160 Topsoil SY 57,140 

6 164 Straw or Hay Mulch 
Seeding (Temp) 

AC 
11.8 

7 506 Temporary Sediment 
Control Fence 

LF 
2,580 $0.00 

AREA ItAt! MAINTENANCE 

8 105 
Removing Stabilized 
Base and Asphalt 
Pavement 

SY 
3,815 $0.00 

9 110 Excavation CY 435 $0.00 
10 132 Embankment CY 37 $0.00 

11 247 
Flexible Base, 6" 
TypeD 

SY 
3,815 $0.00 

12 340 
Dense-Graded Hot-
Mix Asphalt, 1 Yl" 
TypeD 

TON 
315 $0.00 

13 432 Riprap CY 30 $0.00 

14 506 Temporary Sediment 
Control Fence 

LF 
80 $0.00 

AREA "B" MAINTENANCE 

15 105 
Removing Stabilized 
Base and Asphalt 
Pavement 

SY 
2,110 $0.00 

16 110 Excavation CY 32 $0.00 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



17 132 Embankment CY 140 $0.00 

18 247 
Flexible Base, 6" 
TypeD 

SY 
2,110 $0.00 

19 340 
Dense-Graded Hot-
Mix Asphalt, 1 '12" 
TypeD 

TON 
175 $0.00 

20 506 Temporary Sediment 
Control Fence 

LF 
250 $0.00 

AREA "C" MAINTENANCE 

21 100 
Preparing Right of 
Way 

AC 
0.02 $0.00 

22 105 
Removing Stabilized 
Base and Asphalt 
Pavement 

SY 
285 $0.00 

23 110 Excavation CY 100 $0.00 
24 162 Block Sodding SY 98 $0.00 
25 168 Vegetative Watering KG 8 $0.00 

26 247 
Flexible Base, 6" 
TypeD 

SY 
285 $0.00 

27 340 
Dense-Graded Hot-
Mix Asphalt, I 'h" 
TypeD 

TON 
23 $0.00 

28 506 
Rock Filter Dam, 
Type I (Install) 

LF 
20 $0.00 

29 506 
Rock Filter Dam, 
Type I (Remove) 

LF 
20 $0.00 

30 506 Temporary Sediment 
Control Fence 

LF 
88 $0.00 

AREA "D" MAINTENANCE 

31 100 
Preparing Right of 
Way 

AC 
2.8 $0.00 

32 104 Removing Concrete SY 955 $0.00 

33 105 
Removing Stabilized 
Base and Asphalt 
Pavement 

SY 
5,500 $0.00 

34 110 Excavation CY 5,733 $0.00 
35 158 Waste Excavation CY 2,483 $0.00 
36 132 Embankment CY 3,820 $0.00 
37 160 Topsoil SY 12,870 $0.00 

38 164 Straw or Hay Mulch 
Seeding (Temp) 

AC 
2.66 $0.00 

39 169 
Soil Retention 
Blankets 

SY 
290 $0.00 

40 506 
Rock Filter Dam, 
Type I (Install) 

LF 
65 $0.00 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



41 506 

42 506 

43 
44 
45 

46 

550 
550 
550 

104 

Rock Filter Dam, 
Type I (Remove) 

Temporary Sediment 
Control Fence 

Chain Link Fence 

Vehicle Gate 

P,d""';an Gate ~ 
Removing Concrete 

80Pilings 

LF 
65 

LF 
580 

LF 1,965 
EA 2 

2 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

Base Bid Total $0.00 

INote: The TravIs County Commissioner's Court Reserves the right to reject any and all bids at 
their sole discretion. 

Please note the followine listed abbreviations used for orooosed units: 
Unit Abbreviations: CY = Cubic Yard, LF = Linear Foot, STA = Stations, AC ;;;; Acre, EA ;;;; Each, SY ;;;; 
Square Yards, GAL = GalJon, KG = 1000GAL, LS;;;; Lump Sum, SF =Square Feet, TON = Ton, MO 
Month, EAIDAY == per Each per DAY 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



ATTACHMENT 3 


GENERAL LOCATION MAP 


TRAVIS COUNTY LANDFILL 


MSW PERMIT NO. 684 


Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



o 

o 
.~/" 
S\~· 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 .... f'i 
Prepared By: Michael Hettenhausen hone #: 854-7563 '0 .I 

Division Director/Manager: Anna Bow. in , Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head/Title: Steven M. anil a, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 
A) A plat for recording: Raceway Single Family Subdivision Section Two Final Plat 
(A Small Lot Subdivision)(Resubdivision of Lots 16, 17, 24, and 25 Northridge Acres 
Number Two Subdivision - 69 lots - Travesia Way - City of Austin ET J); and 
B) A Travis County Subdivision Construction Agreement in Precinct Two. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
A) This resubdivision final plat consists of 69 single family on 10.576 acres. The 
proposed plat's boundaries are located within the previously-platted Northridge 
Acres No. 2 subdivision , and the applicant proposes to resubdivide lots 16, 17, 24, 
and 25 of the Northridge Acres Number Two subdivision into the Raceway Single 
Family Subdivision Section Two Final Plat. There are 2,229 linear feet of public 
streets proposed with this final plat, water and wastewater service will be provided 
by the City of Austin, and parkland fees in lieu of dedication have been paid to the 
City of Austin in the amount of $28,082.54. 

The applicant is currently utilizing the county's alternative fiscal agreement and the 
plat is being held in abeyance until the remaining fiscal has been posted. Fiscal 
surety in the amount of $239,189.00 was previously posted with the City of Austin 
and recently $283,346.00 has been posted with Travis County. In addition to the 
street and drainage facilities the developer has constructed on the site, the full fiscal 
amount of $522,535.00 has been satisfied. 

B) The applicant, Pulte Homes of Texas, wishes to enter into a standard subdivision 
construction agreement with Travis County. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As this plat was approved on December 6, 2011 , by the City of Austin Zoning and 
Platting Commission and approved on Januay 10, 2012, for alternative fiscal by the 
Commissioners Court, staff recommends approval of the resubdivision final plat and 
the subdivision construction agreement. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 19



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 22



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for 
the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, Judge’s Office, x49555 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST FROM 
THE AUSTIN TOWING ASSOCIATION TO REVIEW FEES RELATED TO 
CHAPTER 78 OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY CODE, TRAVIS COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE NON-CONSENT TOWING POLICY. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Our office received a request from the Austin Towing Association to review 
and consider an increase to the non-consent towing fees listed in Chapter 78 
of the Travis County Code, Travis County Sheriff’s Office Non-Consent 
Towing Policy. 
When a Travis County Sheriff’s Deputy determines that the owner or 
operator of a vehicle requiring towing is unable to select a towing company, 
the Deputy will request that a towing company be selected from the Non-
Consent Towing Rotation List.  The current fee is $95.00 set May 22, 2001. 
The Association was asked to provide a written statement of reasons in 
support of the proposed increases and changes.  They were also asked to 
meet with the Sheriff’s Office.  That meeting occurred last spring, however 
no agreement was met on the proposed increases and changes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
n/a 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
n/a 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
n/a 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 23



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gillian Porter, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Sessions of June 12 and 19, 2012. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C3

akerc
Typewritten Text



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, June 12, 2012  

 Voting Session 
Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 

512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on June 12, 2012, in the Ned Granger Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 
1st Floor, 314 W. 11th St., Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was represented by 
Deputies Gillian Porter and Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Public Hearings 

Added item 
A1. Receive comments regarding a street name change for a section of Deer Creek Skyview to be 

known as "Sly Fox Drive" in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Huber) (Action Item #a2) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gavino Fernandez, Deputy Director, District 12, League of United Latin American Citizens 

(LULAC) 
Gus Peña, Travis County Resident 
Giovanni Mastromatteo, Travis County Resident 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  

Special Items 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

1. Receive update on the Better Enterprise Financial Information for Travis County (BEFIT) 
(Systems, Applications and Products in data processing – SAP Program) Phase I Conversion 
on June 4th and recognize implementation team. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 

 
3. Receive briefing and take appropriate action on the regulation of fireworks in unincorporated 

Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
Lisa Block, Public Information Officer, STAR Flight 
Jim Collins, Assistant County Attorney 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Resolutions and Proclamations 
 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on Proclamation acknowledging June 2012 as “Travis 

County Pretrial Services Month.” 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dr. Geraldine Nagy, Community Supervision and Corrections Director, Adult Probation 
Rosie Ramon-Duran, Chief Deputy, Community Services and Corrections Division (CSCD) 
Irma Guerrero, Division Director, Pretrial Services 

 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 4. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 
 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on the annual application to the Texas Department of 

Agriculture for the Juvenile Probation Department to continue the National School 
Lunch/Breakfast Program and United States Department of Agriculture School Commodity 
Program. 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Receive update regarding Fiscal Year 2013 Preliminary Budget development. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Diana Ramirez, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Transition Budget Director, PBO 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on a draft Economic Development Policy for Travis 

County and set a public hearing on June 26, 2012 to receive comments. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Transition Budget Director, PBO 
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Susan Moffett, Travis County Resident 
David Porter, Vice President, Economic Development, The Greater Austin Chamber of 

Commerce 
 
MOTION: Approve setting the public hearing for Tuesday, June 26, 2012 at 9:00 AM. 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 

 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Strike the provision regarding a super majority vote to amend the draft 

Economic Development Policy. 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT NOT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Clerk’s Note: The Court approved without objection striking the provision regarding a super 
majority vote to amend the proposed Economic Development Policy. 
 

9. Consider and take appropriate action regarding Lone Star Rail Project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Joe Lessard, Senior Planning Director, Knudson & Associates 
Ross Milloy, Executive Director, Lone Star Rail District 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 
Joe Black, Rail Director, Lone Star Rail District 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

10. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 
for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$821,261.32 for the period of May 25 to May 31, 2012. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 
b. Non-routine request From Human Resources Management Department for a variance to 

Travis County Code § 10.03008, Promotion Policy.   
 
c. Non-routine request from Juvenile Probation for a variance to Travis County Code § 

10.030010, Demotion Policy. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 
 
12. Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 11T00264NB, Redwood Toxicology Laboratory Inc., 

for drug test kits. 

MOTION: Approve Item 12. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Sarah Eckhardt 

 
13. Approve Modification No. 13 to Interlocal Agreement No. IL060341RE, Austin Travis County 

Integral Care, for substance abuse services. 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 13. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Sarah Eckhardt 

 
14. Approve contract award to Caritas of Austin for professional services to provide rent, mortgage 

and utility assistance. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Declare certain vehicles and equipment as surplus property and sell at public auction pursuant 

to Section 263.151 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Approve application/contract with Moody’s for bond issuance rating. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

17. Consider and Take Appropriate Action on the Job Description for Travis County Chief 
Information Officer. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Diane Poirot, Director, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Accept the job description for the interim Chief Information Officer (CIO), 

removing Records Management and Communication Resources (RMCR) 
from the "Areas of Management" section. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Karen L. Huber 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 
 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on the following draft documents for public comment 

related to the use of Community Development Block Grant funds available through HUD:   
 

a. The Program Year 2012 Action Plan; and    
 
b. The Substantial Amendments to the Program Year 2011- 2013 Consolidated Plan and 

Program Year 2006-2010 Action Plans. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Items 
 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests for the Masonwood 71 

subdivision in Precinct Three:    
 

a. Variance request for block length;    
 
b. Variance request for single outlet;    
 
c. Phasing Agreement; and    
 
d. Preliminary plan. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security Agreement with Dillon Custom Homes 

for sidewalk fiscal for Overlook Estates Phase 1 Lot 40 Block 2, in Precinct Three. 
(Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Receive briefing on the Travis County Land, Water and Transportation Plan Background 

Report. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager, TNR 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

Wendy Scaperotta, Senior Planner, TNR 
Charles Watts, Senior Planner, TNR 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on the following regarding the Wells Branch Phase 2-A 

subdivision in Precinct Two:    
 

a. Whether to improve substandard roads located at Rick Whinery Drive, Emmett Parkway 
and Quiet Pond Court to comply with County standards;    

 
b. Assessing all or part of the cost of the improvements pro rata against the record owners of 

the real property along these roads;    
 
c. Set a public hearing on August 14, 2012 to receive comments on the proposed 

improvements and assessments; and    
 
d. Mailing informational letters and copies of the public hearing notice to the affected property 

owners. (Commissioner Eckhardt) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carol Joseph, Assistant Director, TNR 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Julie Joe, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 22.a–d. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Other Items 
 
23. Receive monthly financial reports for the month of April 2012 from the County Auditor’s Office. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Dr. Dennis (Denny) Hamill as a 

Precinct Two and Precinct Three appointee to the Travis Central Appraisal District Board of 
Directors, to fill an unexpired term effective immediately through December 31, 2013. 
(Commissioners Eckhardt and Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a new civil and family court house, including but 

not limited to:   
 

a. Appointment of a Court House Committee to recommend a delivery method and receive 
update on committee activities;   

 
b. Proposed membership for a second Community Advisory Committee; and   
 
c. Other related issues. 

Members of the Court heard from: 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Transition Budget Director, PBO 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety (JPS) 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
 

RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
26. Receive briefing from County Attorney on Attorney General of Texas Opinion GA-0935 

regarding water availability rules. 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
27. Receive briefing and take appropriate action regarding Circuit of the Americas and Formula 

One. 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 6/19/2012 

Consent Items 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 6, 10, 11.a–c, 14, 
15, 16, 18.a–b, 19.a–d, 20, 23, 24, and A2. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 12, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Sessions of May 22 and 29, 2012 and 
Special Voting Session May 25, 2012. 

 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, July 3, 2012 to receive comments regarding a 

request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two ten foot wide drainage easements 
and a 25 foot wide drainage easement located over and across portions of Lots 1 and 2 of 
Baldwin subdivision and a portion of Lot 15 of Westlake Highlands Section 5, Phase 2, revised -
Precinct Two. (Commissioner Eckhardt) 

Added Items 
 
A2. Consider and take appropriate action on a proposed street name change for a section of Deer 

Creek Skyview to "Sly Fox Drive" in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, June 19, 2012  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 

78714-9325 

June 19, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on June 19, 2012, in the Ned Granger Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 
1st Floor, 314 W. 11th St., Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was represented by Deputy 
Michelle Bryant. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent   
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Absent 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Morris Priest, Travis County Resident 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

Special Item 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED Reset for: 6/26/2012 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on a Proclamation to officially welcome home all Iraq War 

veterans and invite all Travis County and neighboring County residents to the Welcome Home 
Iraq Veterans Parade, Ceremony and Job and Resource Fair on July 7, 2012. (Commissioner 
Huber) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
David Thomas, Vietnam War veteran 
Guillermo Villareal, Afghanistan War veteran 
Robert Macias, Afghanistan War veteran 
Marco Antonio Orrantia, Iraq War veteran 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 19, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Morris Priest, Travis County Resident 
 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Transportation and Natural Resources Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of the dedication of the public street 

and drainage facilities within Villages of Hidden Lake, Section 6b-1 in Precinct One. 
(Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED  

 
5. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,150,995.87 for the period of June 1 to June 7, 2012. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on the following employee healthcare items for Fiscal 

Year 2013 Plan, effective October 1, 2012:   
 

a. Contribution levels for Travis County Employee Health Plan;   
 
b. Health benefit plan design changes; and    

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cindy Purinton, Benefit Administrator, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD);  
John Rabb, Human Resources Manager II, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Option #2 with regard to the co-pays. 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner  
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 

 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Approve Items 7.a and 7.b as proposed by Staff. 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 19, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
 
c. Defaulting of employees that do not complete entire open enrollment process to employee 

only Co-Insured Exclusive Provider Organization (CEPO) coverage and employee basic 
life. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cindy Purinton, Benefit Administrator, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD);  
John Rabb, Human Resources Manager II, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 7.c 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
8. Approve order exempting the purchase of BMW motorcycle parts and service from Lone Star 

BMW from the competitive procurement process pursuant to Section 262.024 (a)(7)(d) and 
Section 262.024 (a)(11) of the County Purchasing Act. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. PS110046JW, URS Corporation, for environmental 

monitoring services for Colorado River Corridor Plan. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Ratify interlocal agreement with City of Austin for Summer Youth Employment Program. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action regarding process to select vendor to manage County-

owned parking spaces during Formula One Race, including:   
 

a. Amend current parking contract with Parking Systems of America; or   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
John Carr, Division Manager, Engineering, Facilities Management 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 11.a. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
b. Initiate competitive process to select vendor;    

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 19, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
John Carr, Division Manager, Engineering, Facilities Management 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
c. Notify nearby neighbors of County’s decision regarding parking; and   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
d. Other related issues. 
 

RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
12. Receive briefing from the County Attorney in Leander ISO, et al v. David A. Sosby (Abraham S. 

Eliashar resale deed) and take appropriate action. 1 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 12 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Approve the proposed tax resale deed to Abraham S. Eliashar, who has paid 
Travis County the sum of $20,002.00. 

MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner  
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 

 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Authorize the County Judge to sign the resale deed on behalf of the 

Commissioners Court 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.



June 19, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

13. Receive briefing and take appropriate action regarding Circuit of the Americas and Formula 
One. 1 
 
Judge Biscoe announced that Item 13 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
14. Receive briefing from County Attorney on proposed interlocal agreement with South Central 

Planning and Development Commission for use of MyPermitNow and other software for 
facilitating the permitting process for members of the public and for County officials and 
employees. 1 

 
Judge Biscoe announced that Item 14 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Consent Items 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, and 
10. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Session of June 5, 2012. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, July 10, 2012 to receive comments regarding a 

request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a five foot wide public utility easement 
and a five foot wide guy wire easement located along the east lot line of Lot 10, Block F of River 
Ridge in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Eckhardt) 

 
 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 6/28/12, 3:30 p.m.


	Item 01
	Item 05
	Item 07
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item C3



